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CORPORATE PROFILE
TREHR

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to
as the “Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter of
longitudinal welded steel pipes and is engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 1938) since February 2010. The Group’s steel pipes
are mainly used for energy transmission including oil and gas
transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city gas networks, and
petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction, offshore

engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group’s production bases and offices are located in Panyu,
Zhuhai, Lianyungang, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Yunfu and Indonesia,
with five production lines for longitudinal submerged arc-welded
(“LSAW”), two production lines for spiral submerged arc-welded
(“SSAW”) and other production lines with a combined annual
production capacity of 1,800,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2023.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research
and development, holding 120 patents (including 41 invention
patents) and 14 international quality certificates and having a long
standing international and nationwide track record. Furthermore, the
Group is the first and only steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC to
manufacture and successfully develop deep sea welded steel pipes
for use at a water depth of 3,500m and a qualified supplier of
Petrobras and Petronas. The Group is a welded steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC that has received various honours and
awards, including “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical
Products”, “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical Products”, “National Key New Products”, “Province-
recognised Enterprise Technology Centre” and “High and New
Technology Enterprise”, hosted a “Academician Workstation” and is
the main drafter of the national standard for longitudinal welded
steel pipes in the PRC.

B =EEERE

WIABRRKARMEERERAR ([ARA]] - ERE
MEARN IXaEA((ARE])) ERFEARKM
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- :CORPORATE INFORMATION
R ARER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr CHEN Chang (Chairman)

Mr CHEN Guo Xiong (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 5 December 2023)

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr CHEN Ping

Mr AU YEUNG Kwong Wah

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023)
Mr ZHAN Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms WONG Pui Shan FCCA, CPA, ACG, HKACG, MSc (Fin)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr AU YEUNG Kwong Wah (Chairman)

Mr CHEN Ping

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023)
Mr ZHAN Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr CHEN Ping (Chairman)

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023)
Mr ZHAN Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023)
Mr CHEN Chang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (Chairman) (resigned on 1 September 2023)
Mr ZHAN Jian Zhou (Chairman) (appointed on 1 September 2023)
Mr CHEN Ping

Mr CHEN Chang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr CHEN Chang
Ms CHEN Zhao Nian

4 Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NAER

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

2/F., 3-5 Golden Dragon City

Yayun Avenue

511450 Panyu District

Guangzhou City

Guangdong Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 605—606,

Tower IIl Enterprise Square

No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

CCTH CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Unit 1510-1517,15/F, Tower 2
Kowloon Commerce Centre
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road
Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1938

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.pck.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Loeb & Loeb LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications

Bank of Jiangsu

China Bohai Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial Bank
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NAER

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

FEROBFETE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman lIslands
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

TEHRESE

Dear Shareholders, BRI ER
On behalf of the Board, | would like to present to you the audited AANERERESE M BETREAEEBEZ-ZT-=
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended FTZR=T—HBILFEZEERGEE2FEE -

31 December 2023.

ST =FEERE IR RAARREEIZERERATE 7
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-:El(t):HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ETEHRES

In 2023, while the COVID-19 pandemic no longer constituted a
public health emergency of international concern, the geopolitical
conflicts and the tightening of monetary policy in the U.S. has led
to bank failures, aggravating financial instability, global inflation
woes and multiple challenges and uncertainties for the global
economy. The global economic growth further slowed down in
2023, with the global and Chinese economies growing at 3% and
5.2% respectively. Notwithstanding the above, the Group recorded
sales of approximately RMB2,651 million (2022: RMB2,362 million),
representing an increase of approximately 12.2% over 2022. The
Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB183.8 million (2022:
RMB163 million). Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders was approximately RMB0.18 (2022: RMBO0.16). The Board
did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Group delivered a total of 553,000 tonnes of steel pipes during
the year and received orders for a total of 601,000 tonnes of steel
pipes,
Huai'an Gas Storage Branch Line Section of the Jiangsu Coastal

including the East African Crude Oil Pipeline Project, the

Gas Pipeline, the Nigeria AKK Project, the Terminal Engineering of
Guangxi Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) Phase Ill Expansion Project
and the Shell Offshore Platform Project and other projects. Among
them, the East African Crude Oil Pipeline Project was the largest
single order in the Group’s history during the year, with a total
procurement of 260,000 tonnes of steel pipes and a total sales
amount of US$370 million (approximately RMB2,600 million). The
East African Crude Oil
construction of a pipeline with a total length of 1,540 kilometers

Pipeline Project, which involves the
that transports oil from Ugandan oil fields to Tanzanian ports, is the
world’s longest heated crude oil transmission pipeline project. It is
anticipated that the construction of the pipeline will greatly promote

the economic development of the East African region.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

The Group successfully delivered all the LSAW steel pipes required
for the Ras Laffan Petrochemicals refinery project during the year.
This project involves the construction of an ethane cracker in Ras
Laffan, Qatar with an annual capacity of up to 2.1 million tonnes of
ethylene. We have delivered 2,230 tonnes of LSAW steel pipes,
with diameter of 610mm and wall thickness of 11.7mm and 9.5mm,
in this project. External double epoxy anti-corrosion technology was
adopted to protect the pipelines from corrosion. It is reported that
this project will be the largest ethylene project in the Middle East
and one of the largest ethylene projects in the world. The Board
believes that the successful delivery of this project demonstrates
the high recognition of the Group by large energy companies, and
helps to establish “Chu Kong Steel Pipe” as a world-class steel

pipe brand.

In terms of research and development technology, the Group
overcame the difficulties in manufacturing equipment and
technology for spiral arc-welded pipes with ultra-large wall thickness
during the year, broke through the century-long limit in the history
of spiral steel pipe manufacturing, and produced the world’s first
large-diameter ultra-thick-walled spiral steel pipe with a diameter of
3,000mm and a wall thickness of 30mm, which is a major
breakthrough in the global supply specification of spiral steel pipes
products with ultra-large wall thickness, and signified that the
technological standard of China’s manufacturing of spiral steel pipes
had moved up to a new level. The strength grade of the trial-
produced large wall thickness spiral arc-welded pipe is Q355C, the
length of the steel pipe reaches 45m, and the weight of the steel
pipe reaches 90 tonnes. The product will be used in the
construction of a 19.64 kilometer passageway (being the Third East
Passageway Project), which crosses the eastern sea area in the
east of Guanyinshan, Xiamen and terminates at the Xiamen
Xiang’an International Airport.

B =EEERE

NeEFENERIEFZZFRas Laffan Petrochemicals{t
MIEE RN ERZINRE - LBEEREEBELL
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-:El(t):HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ETEHRES

In December 2023,
programme centre of China Media Group to launch a large-scale

the Group was invited by the financial
convergence media campaign entitled “Specialized and New —
Manufacturing Power (Z5455 « #3558 )", in which the Group was
Specialized and New “Little Giant”
highlights and
achievements of the development of specialized and new

reported as a provincial
enterprise, showcasing the characteristics,
enterprises in China. As an outstanding representative of the
provincial Specialized and New “Little Giant” enterprises, the Group
explained how we utilise deep sea steel pipe to support the new
limit of marine energy transportation for 3,500-meter ultra-deep
submarine pipelines. The impact-resistant experiment conducted by
using a huge drop hammer perfectly demonstrated the Group’s
superior technology in strength and toughness, chemical
composition design, metallurgy technology, rolling technology and
heat treatment technologies of deep sea steel pipe. We have also
employed these technologies to produce samples of welded steel
pipes for 3,500-meter ultra-deep submarine pipelines which meet
the technical requirements of resistance to compression and
collapse, fatigue, and large deformation, which is currently the

leading level in the world.

PROSPECT

The global economy will continue to recover in 2024. In the face of
worrying geopolitical tension and climate change, the volatility of
bulk commodity prices is likely to rise, posing a significant risk to
the strategy of reducing inflation, and the world’s economic
development is fraught with uncertainties, which will continue to
inhibit the growth of demand and thus limit the pace of global
recovery. However, China’s efforts to promote the development of
the natural gas industry remain unchanged. The “14th Five-Year
Plan Modern Energy System Plan” published by the National
Development and Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration of the People’s Republic of China proposes that the
total length of national oil and gas pipeline network should reach
the target of 210,000 kilometers by 2025, which will accelerate the
construction of oil and gas pipeline network facilities. In addition, for
the implementation of the “dual-carbon” policy and the reduction of
carbon emission, natural gas is an important clean energy source.
However, the current length of natural gas pipelines still falls short
of the target set out in the Medium and Long-Term Oil and Gas
Pipeline Network Plan ({FR REDHAEAEE])), and there will still
be a demand for pipeline construction in the future. Therefore, the
Group will continue to benefit from the demand for pipelines.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all the staff for their
consistent professional ethics in such a challenging year. | am also
grateful to the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Group to build strength for a bright future.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong, China
27 March 2024
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1996

RREBEHER
(RRERBZRER)
Guangdong Province
Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)

GPEC

o
FrUSNERGER

1997

REERBYEBRS R
(PEAES T )

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*)

R
HEERER

ARawE LRSS
EREREEREND, AAESEY
LI T T
Fasme hed
e e

2001

m AR R E R E
(RNTHBRHEAR)

Certificate for the Recognition
of High and New Technology

Enterprises*
cit

( y Sci and T
Committee*)

2002 (Renewed in
2010/20144)
EREEEAHE
(ERIBTHREER)
Guangdong Province
Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province

Bureau for Administration of
industry and Commerce*)

2004

TEARERAENREE

2004 T8 %
(FEIFAAARCIREBEIEGS)

China Reserved Petroleum
Pipeline Manufacturing Industry —
Top Ten Enterprises in 2004*

(China Petroleum and Petro-chemical
Equipment Industry Association*)

iE $

e e A
AR B
b e

2005 (Renewed in
2011/2012/20154)
REEREYEER

SR (EREINEE)
(FEEBTXGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — LSAW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2005 Semem

AREERBYERSFE (BREE)

(PERMETXIHE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — ERW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2006

005FEREAEBEBAELHK
(RREEBRMEER)

Leader in Quality Management
in Guangdong Province in 2005*
(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of

Quality and Technical Supervision*)

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

2007

KA BIERE

(R ERHE R MTER)

China Torch Item*
(Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)

Annual Report 2023



AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

FEESR™&
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2007 (Renewed in
2010/20134)
EREEEER
(EREEBRWEER)
Guangdong Province Top

Brand Product®
(Guangdong Province Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2007

2007 FEREEAFCERESAER
(RRECXBOERMROKANCEEERES)

Best Original Product of Innovative
Record for Guangdong Enterprise in 2007*
(Association of Enterprise in Guangdong

Province & The Innovative Record

of Guangdong Enterprise Approval

Commission*)

2007

BEMTRRES - S %

(M ARBUT)

First Prize for Sci-Tech
Achievement in Guangzhou
City*

(The People’s Government of
Guangzhou City*)

2008

International Exhibition of Inventions
Golden Awards* (Three-roller forming

technology and equipment*)
(China Inventions Association*)

| FEYAE 1% |
Ex |
| & |

2008 (Renewed in

2011/20144%)

18 T B Al 1 3

(EREANBEME - EREHBE -
BERREARRREDBR RREMTHER)
Guangdong High and New Technology
Enterprise*

2009 g;:g:lw)ed in 2013

EREABHBMER
(ERE P BRATHE)

High-tech Product of Guangdong
Province*

(Department of Science and Technology of

(Department of Sci and T y of

Province*, Guangdong Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State Administration of
Taxation*, and Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation
Bureau*)

Province*)

2009

EREFEFE

—ZEREIEREHE
(EREANEBERERLABERER)

Guangdong Province Patent Excellence

Award*
(Three-roller forming technology and equipment)
(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of P &

20 1 (Renewed in
20134%)
B R K 4B T &
ERSH DR
(BERBRBAER LB AEB R AMERMAR L)
Key High and New Technology Enterprise of

China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development Centre of

Property Office of Guangdong Province*)

—PoSEEEHE

and T y Department of the PRC*)

2010

Bl R R E R EH i

(ARBRUEE  DEH - B SHAE -
ERBBLAR)

National-recognised Enterprise Technology

Centre*

(National Development and Reform Commission*,
Science and Technology Department*, Finance
Department*, General Administration of Customs*,
State Administration of Taxation*)

oI RmARAREEZERERAE
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RIFHEAE

“AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

. SO
. 8 ok &

RRaRE Basamn Binann RxsmmnsEERR
RESER — SHEHEBAEY REA B - B e
iﬁ@é;g First Prize for Sci-tech of ;;ggggg;{\tiiggigggg;
(hERAHE) Guangdong Province* A A
1st Runner-up of The 19th (The People’s Government of Indigenous Innov_atlo:n Product of
National Invention Exhibition* Guangdong Province’) g::;:t?ni:tn‘?f Pl_'ovm::d Technology of dong Province*,

Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*
(Invention Association of China*)

A rxs
IBHEAERFEDD

AR LR ]
PABEEE LR
FAASBTEAL S

it ¥ -
[ E YR

LR E ¥

O
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Development and Reform Commission of Guangdong Province*,
Economic and Information Commission of Guangdong Province*,

Finance Department of

Department of

Province*, | | Property

d Province*, Admini ion of Quality and

Technology Supervision of Guangdong Province*)

e

wmanans
SR AL 4
N

A e

e L

2010

EREIBRMARBE L
(EREAPBRNGE EREABENREZESS
ERAKBEEZEES)

Technology Research and Development

Centre of Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of
Guangdong Province*, Development and Reform

[of issi of Province*, ic and
Trade Commission of Guangdong Province*)

2010

BN T AT B 3
(BNTRRETAEEAE)
Innovative Enterprise of
Guangzhou*

(Technology and City Enhancement
Steering Committee of Guangzhou*)

2011
- tE2ERPERSRR — AHLIREE

(hERAHE)

1st Runner-up of The 20th National
Invention Exhibition*
Five-electrode submerged arc

welding equipment
(Invention Association of China*)

et

2011

EREAMERRHOHE
(RREARERR)

Intellectual Property
Demonstration Enterprise of

Guangdong Province*
(Intellectual Property Department
of Guangdong Province*)

2011

ERE+EBEEMRE
(EREACEBEE BEREDLE
RiBE)

Top 10 Original Brands of
Guangdong Province*
(Association of Enterprises of
Guangdong Province*, Association
of Entrepreneurs of Guangdong
Province*)

14 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

2011

B+ THEMA

(RREARBA)
Academician Workstation
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)
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RIFERH
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2011

B M T B A B R
(RREARE)

Governmental Quality Award of

The Guangzhou Government*
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province*)

2012

EREABNEER
(RREARBA)

Government Quality Award of
Guangdong Province*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2012

AERBRME—FR
(FERETXNRE THELE2Y)
First Prize of Metallurgical
Sci-Tech Award*

(China Iron & Steel Association,
The Chinese Society for Metals)

L saaamawana

2013

ERENBE MR
[CESPN-3:7)

Science Technological Award

of Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2013-2016

FERERINE AR
(RREAPBHEME MREBREA
REZEY  EREALENELSER

g EREARBNBEEEEEEE
BEEE ERELOMEER  EX
HATE)

Innovative Enterprise of
Guangdong Province*

(The Guangdong Provincial Department of
Sci and Technology, the g g
Development and Reform Commission,
the Economic & Information Commission
of Guangdong Province, the State —
owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the
Guangdong Province, the Guangdong
Intellectual Property Office and the
Guangdong Provincial Federation of
Trade Unions*)

=EEERES

2014

TEACERENEEREEER
(PERETRER)

Superior Quality Award
for Actual Quality of

Metallurgical Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2014

EREFAEETHAREEEX
(RREEABE)

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of

Guangdong Provmce
( Credit A i

2015

75 T Bl b 3¢

(BEREM BB  FRE M
ERBEAREREBER  RRELTHER)
High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology

of Guangdong Province*, Guangdong
Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation*, Guangdong
Provincial Local Taxation Bureau*)

2016

REEREYRESFE —
BERE (RE)

(hERATXGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

2016

REERBYRESKE — B
BIEE

(7 B4 8 T 3t &)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — spiral submerged

arc-welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

2016

ERENBE SR
(RARARGRE)

(EREARBUY)

First Prize of Sci-Tech
Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)

(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

oI RmARAREEZERERAE
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
RERDE
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STETTETIERE T EPEn PE Pre

2016

EREBLAAIMBRE N
(EREANEFRMEERERE)
Guangdong Postdoctoral
Innovation Practice Base*
(Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Guangdong
Province*)

= W - ¥

2016

DEEFPEEA R
(FESEPBANATIEAEE  DEAAA
PR HEHE)

Saudi Arabia Excellent

Chinese Project Award*
(Chinese Embassy in Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia*, Saudi Arabia Chinese
Enterprises Association*)

2017

BEBTRBERMES R —FR
(EEHTARBAN)

First Prize of Lianyungang
Science and Technology

Progress Award*
(The People’s Government of
Lianyungang)

2017

HREEF MO
(BRECBNER(LEES  BREAYK
B RRABFBRER  BHEBRRRST)
Provincial Enterprise

Technology Centre*
Provinci ic and

(¢
Information Commission*, Guangdong
Provincial Department of Finance, Local
Taxation Bureau of Guangdong Province*,
Guangdong Branch of the General
Administration of Customs*)

2018

25 R 97 £ 5
(ERERBEE - ERE HBE  BRB
BRRERABRHER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and

Technology of Guangdong Province*,
Guangdong Province Department of
Finance*, Guangdong Provincial Taxation
Bureau of the State Administration of
Taxation)

2019

RARVERES X
(BRABRERB

National Intellectual Property

Advantage Enterprise*
(National Intellectual Property
Bureau*)

2019

EREAMERTHOE
(HRAREMREHE)

Guangdong Province Intellectual
Property Demonstration

Enterprise*
(Guangdong Intellectual Property
Protection Association*)

2020

EEBMARANESEN
(PHEEBTE  BRATARKA

Lianyungang Science and
Technology Innovation
Outstanding Unit*

Ui e

yungang
of the Communist Party of China*, The
People’s Government of Lianyungang*)

2021

BABET X
(KBTREAIHR)

Unicorn Seed Enterprise*
(Zhuhai Science and Technology
Innovation Bureau*)

For identification only

2021

ERFEREFALE
20192020 F
CIHELCREAEEHE)

Provincial Contract-Abiding and
Credit-Worthy Enterprise
2019-2020*

(Jiangsu Enterprise Credit Management
Association*)

16 Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

2022

EEBFESHLRE
(BETLHERERET AT MMBAE
(RERBEHNHARERERBETFASE
WAE)Y)

Outstanding Enterprise of the
Year in Jinwan District*

(Office of the Leading Group for the Work
of Jinwan District, Zhuhai City (Zhuhai
Economic and Technological
Development Zone Strong Quality District
Work Leading Group Office)*)

2023

ER/HIDMEAIRE
(T3S BALE)

High-quality Development of
Technology Advanced “Little

Giant” Enterprise*
(The Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology)

Annual Report 2023



QUALITY CERTIFICATIONS

HERE

FEENEERFRAES

UTEREERF

{3 Year & Certifications
1996 1SO9001

1996 API

1999 CE

2002 BV

2004 1SO9001 1SO14001
2004 OHSAS18001
2006 DNV

2009 Shell

2011 CNAS

2011 ASME

2012 CMS

2014 TUV

2019 TOTAL

2022 Saudi Aramco
2022 1SO45001

TEFFERE

The Group has been awarded the following
international quality certifications:

3% 4 88 Authority

HEMERFER Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

EB AMIHE American Petroleum Institute

HEE A A AL Lloyd’s Register of Shipping

A BN 4 4L Bureau Veritas

R EE 2R F .0 China Quality Certification Centre

f Bl & = & H L China Quality Certification Centre

FE M A4 Det Norske Veritas

=7 5% }% Shell Global Solutions

FEAKTEHRRAZES China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment

FE % Ti2EM & American Society of Mechanical Engineers

FR kAT 2188 ZRFE L China CMS (Issuing Authority)

MEELEEE TUV SUD China

EB A A FIEER TOTAL

B35 M A 5] Saudi Aramco

L 2R EH L China Quality Certification Centre

WIRBRRRMEZRERAT 17
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
pipes,
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in

steel as well as provides manufacturing service for

property development and investment.

Steel pipe business

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We are
the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the PRC,
and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet the
X100 standard. We are also accredited with 14 international quality
certifications such as Det Norske Veritas and American Petroleum
Institute. In addition, we are the first and the only PRC
manufacturer that has successfully produced and developed deep
sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under water. Our products are
widely used in major oil and gas pipeline projects (both onshore
and offshore) and infrastructure projects domestically and

internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms structure pipes for offshore projects and is being
classified as a member of the Offshore Engineering Equipment

Industry* (% TiRE HEELE %),

Order Status

In 2023, the Group received new orders of approximately 601,000
tonnes of welded steel pipes. The Group has received some
sizeable overseas orders, such as orders from steel pipes for the
East African Crude Oil Pipeline project, Nigeria Ajakuta-Kaduna-
Kano (AKK) natural gas pipeline project and Shell offshore platform
project. The Group delivered approximately 553,000 tonnes of
welded steel pipes during 2023.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

-:Ell\gliANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

E e
AEBEEN)RERHERRIFRNE - ARERHKR
MEINT AMEENBRGER » R()EEMERAEERE

WMEXRH
AEBEBRNEEMABA D REEEIEE - B
BIRERERRE - HPIRTESAE#ENRER
EEHREARE - TEEFNASX100FEHNFH#PINRE
i AP 2 BRAS I8 Bl s AR A % 5 B0 0 Jfh 16 & 55+ P TR R R
HERE - I BMIRTEERME—ERNEER
8 3,500 K R BIRENBIER - HFNEREER
SMREC AR AT R RAREBIER (FEMELE)
REZER -

HAAEERRES FTRERNESKEE Mg L#EFF
BREBE  BUARERIAGFTRRAERERLE
v

T EAR R

REZTZ=F  AEEEENHN EHE4/5601,000
WEIREEE - AEECEER T RAUGINTE - IRk
FmEEEA - & &FlEAjakuta-Kaduna-Kano (AKK)
AAREBEEBERZEELFAREESMETE - £ %
B R =T = =FR(]49553,0000F 12 5 & -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is one of the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturers
and exporters in the PRC. Sales and manufacturing of LSAW steel
pipe was the major source of revenue of the Group and accounted
for approximately 69.2% of our total steel pipe revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2023. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of LSAW steel
pipes amounted to approximately RMB1,496 million and RMB158
million, respectively, where sales of LSAW steel pipes were higher
than that for the year ended 31 December 2022 was due to
increase in delivery of LSAW steel pipes to overseas customers.

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes are produced in our plant in Lianyungang
using the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique,
which is the most advanced technique among all SSAW
technologies. Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of
SSAW steel pipes amounted to approximately RMB612 million and
RMB25 million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel
pipes accounted for approximately 26.6% of the total steel pipe
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 which were
significantly higher than that for the year ended 31 December
2022. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in sales
of SSAW steel pipes to one major customer in Middle East.

T SEEEHE

HH#ENEE
AEERPESANEHBENEEREIRLOA®BZ
—  BERIBIREHERRERB AREEETZERAR
B EBES-_—F+ A=+ HLFEEAEERR
MEUWALB9.2% - HE-_T-_=F+_-_A=+—HIt
FE - BREIEENHEREEREBADNORA
X #1,496,000,0007T & A R % 158,000,000t * &+ &E
BB EMNERBE S F+-_A=+—8H1t
FEEM  BRAEINEPRNOERBIIEERSE
e

BheEIEE
BRAREZERE & E R ITEIE E R A ERE R
IR ERIMEE  ZERMEMEREINEE TR
PREENTE - BHeR IR TR HE REERED 5
815 A 49 A R #612,000,0007T 2 A K 25,000,000
Tt B EIEENBBAGRE_T_=F+-A=
TBILFEAMERAL26.6% BHE-T -
TZA=+T—HAIFEREEM - ZIEREIEHNRA—
IR R RE P R SRS B IR & S S P ER

BIAMAAREEZRER DA
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Property development

Apart from the steel pipe manufacturing business, the Group also
engaged in property development and investment. Following the
conversion of a land in Panyu, PRC in 2013, the Group grasped
the opportunity of asset appreciation to convert the land use right of
the Panyu production plant from industrial use to commercial use.
The property project in relation to Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (£ WP EE®) (“GDC”), is a large scale integrated
commercial complex of offices, shops, apartments and villas. The
land area of the converted land accounted for approximately 25%
of the total land area of our factory in Panyu. The total permitted
construction area of the land (including underground construction
area) is approximately 550,000 m?.

Below are the details of GDC:

Address:  Golden Dragon City, Yayun Avenue,
Panyu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong, PRC

Usage: Large scale integrated commercial

complex of offices, shops,
apartments and villas

The total permitted construction area Phase |: 135,000 m?
Phase II: 191,000 m?
Phase IlI: 224,000 m?

(including underground
construction area)

The Group recorded most of the sales of the first phase of GDC in
2018 and recognised the sale of the second phase of GDC in
2022. The third phase of GDC was sold to Guangzhou City Panyu
District Land Development Centre* (BN & & A H L) in
2019.

The steel pipe business will remain as the Group’s core business.

20 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

-:Ell\gliANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L ek

BRIERERBEIN  ARETEEMERFAEFERE -1
—T-FHERELHNBRRER  AREERNA
BEREKRS  BERLERMENTMAEHTEER
BERZ - BRESEIMERS (SR WYEEE
RERTE B QE&EU%@%—%E’\JK@%Aﬁﬁ
o Bl hEERE L HABEBANS 2 — - &
:tﬂtﬂ’%@%’?ﬂﬁ?é@%(’@ﬁ%?@%@@%)%@%
550,000F 75 K ©

AT RERMZFHE:
Mok TEEREEMNTERRTDENBEREM
R - £ERTF % Fﬁﬁ NG DSGIE 7 Rk T:0PAN

BT R IEEAMEIE % —H7 : 135,000F 75 3K
(BRE TEERE) % " H3 : 191,000°F 5 K
= Hf : 224,000 7K

AEBR-Z—\FARLERUE BN OHER
YR-F__FHERSEUE _HOHE - SRUE=
HR-ZE-NEFETEMNTEBRIMAHEHL -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW B % B B
Revenue and gross profit KARER
Revenue of the Group mainly comprises (i) sales of steel pipe, and AEBRAFERFEOMEHE » R(I)VWEHE -

(ii) sales of property.

Our revenue increased from RMB2,362 million for the year ended EHABAREBEE T -_—_F+_A=1+—HIFEHA
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB2,651 million in 2023. R #2,362,000,000 L ME—_T_=FHARKE
Such increase was mainly due to increase in overseas sales of 2,651,000,0007C " ZEMEZRHER S _=FME
steel pipes in 2023. The Group has received a sizable order from INEERM AREBRAFERERIERBEEIEE
the East African Crude Oil Pipeline project during the year. Steel RIRAVETS c M T - —FfAL - T =FHEHE
pipes sales in 2023 increased as compared to that of 2022. BRI o

The following table sets forth the revenue and gross profit by TEREINRATEHARZRES S HBE D HBAREF -

business segments for each of the periods indicated:

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E-—
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
HAKA B A
AR®T T B ARBTT ERaNd
Revenue N
Steel pipes i & 2,390,855 90.2 1,810,097 76.6
Property development and MEFREEEE
investment 259,997 9.8 551,918 23.4
2,650,852 100.0 2,362,015 100.0

SECEFERRS WIRRRARMERRERAT 21
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::Ell\gliANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Steel pipes =
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
Revenue Revenue
WA I A
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
S ON 1B A
AR® TR Bk ARBFT Aot
Sales of steel pipes HEHTE
LSAW steel pipes BHEEEE 1,495,494 62.6 1,171,679 64.7
SSAW steel pipes 12 e 3R IR E 612,023 25.6 287,111 15.9
ERW steel pipes BEEE 24,630 1.0 4,983 0.3
Subtotal NEF 2,132,147 89.2 1,463,773 80.9
Manufacturing services BUE R

LSAW steel pipes HEEEE 158,451 6.6 231,123 12.8
SSAW steel pipes B R T 25,050 1.0 34,088 1.9
Subtotal NEE 183,501 7.6 265,211 14.7
Others Hith 75,207 3.2 81,113 4.4
Grand total FE 2,390,855 100.0 1,810,097 100.0

Steel pipes i F
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR AREEF T
Sales HE 2,390,855 1,810,097
Cost of sales & AR (1,877,430) (1,396,157)
Gross profit EX 513,425 413,940

22 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted for
approximately 89.2% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2023 as
compared with approximately 80.9% in 2022. Steel pipe
manufacturing services accounted for approximately 7.6% of our
total steel pipe revenue in 2023 as compared with approximately
14.7% in 2022. The revenue classified as “Others” mainly
represented the trading of steel plates, sales of steel fittings and
sales of scrap materials which accounted for approximately 3.2% of
our total steel pipe revenue in 2023 as compared with
approximately 4.4% in 2022.

Gross profit of steel pipe sales for 2023 was approximately
RMB513.4 million as compared with approximately RMB413.9
million in 2022, representing an increase of approximately 24.0% or
RMB99.5 million. Gross profit margin for 2023 was approximately
21.5% which was similar to that of 22.9% in 2022.

Overseas Sales for 2023 was approximately RMB1,370.5 million as
compared with approximately RMB660.7 million in 2022,
representing an increase of approximately 107.4%. Our overseas
sales accounted for approximately 57.3% of our total steel pipe
revenue in 2023, as compared with approximately 36.5% in 2022.

Sales by Geographical Areas — Steel Pipes

RITZ=F » REHEHENRALERER R E
K A89.2% * MR =T = —FAI411580.9% - R=T =
=F - HERERG AN EE AL ERAT.6% + TR
CECFAE14T7% c DEATEM] ZRAE B
BEMR - HERMRE M REEERMBA - GEEAE
BT - —FHMEWA32% MR- - —F8|8
154.4% o

ZEZ=_FHHEHE ENN A ARK513,400,000
L BT ZHFH ARA413,900,000 7T 114724.0%
3 A R %99,500,000c °c — T _=FWMEFNELDR
215% BT~ —FH22 9% AHMHE

T =FWEINEELN R ARM,370,500,0007T
BT _F#H AR660,700,0007T & N4
107.4% - R_ZT =% AEEDGIMNIER AN
BEUWALKIS7.3% F MAZZEZZFAI41536.5% °

RHBEEINEE — HE

2023 2022
—EZ= —=E-
Revenue Revenue
['ON A
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
R A (EFEE PN
ARBTT BO ARBTT Bkt
Overseas sales BINEE 1,370,493 57.3 660,683 36.5
Domestic sales A HE 1,020,362 42.7 1,149,414 63.5
Total steel pipes and i 5 N B35 AR S 4R 5T
manufacturing services 2,390,855 100.0 1,810,097 100.0

TEFFERE

WIAMAARMEERERAT 23



EEEFNWEIMN

-:EI'\;/iANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property development and investment MEBRERE

2023 2022

—EB-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T
Revenue A 259,997 551,918
Cost of sales SHEE P AR (219,212) (495,235)
Gross profit EF 40,785 56,683

Revenue generated from the property development and investment
segment mainly comprises sales of property of GDC-Phase Il and
rental income from shops in Phase | of GDC. Revenue under
property development and investment was approximately RMB260.0
million in 2023 as compared with approximately RMB551.9 million
in 2022, representing a decrease of approximately 52.9% or
RMB291.9 million. Decrease in revenue was due to recognition of
sales of Phase Il in 2023 decreased. Most of the units under
Phase | of GDC had been sold in 2018 and 2019.

Cost of sales primarily represents the costs we incurred directly for
the Group’s property development activities. The principal
component of cost of sales is cost of properties sold, which
includes the direct costs of construction and the costs of obtaining
land use rights. Cost of sales was approximately RMB219.2 million
in 2023 as compared with approximately RMB495.2 million in
2022, representing a decrease of 55.7% or RMB276.0 million.
Decrease in cost of sales was due to less properties sold out so as
the allocation of cost of Phase Il of GDC.

Gross profit of property sales was approximately RMB40.8 million in
2023 as compared with approximately RMB56.7 million in 2022,
representing a decrease of 28.0% or RMB15.9 million. Decrease in
gross profit was due to decrease in sales of Phase Il of GDC.

All revenue under property development and investment was
domestic in nature.

24 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment properties by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
properties are reflected as profit or loss for 2023. The investment
properties as at 31 December 2023 were the shops of Phase | of
GDC. The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent valuer, to value the investment properties as at 31
December 2023. According to the valuation report as at 31
December 2023 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited, the market value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2023 was
RMB360.0 million. Loss in fair values of the investment properties
in 2023 was approximately RMB2 million (2022: loss of RMB8
million).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2023 mainly represented bank interest
income and subsidy income from government. Other income and
gains decreased by approximately 93.3% or RMB222.8 million from
approximately RMB238.7 million in 2022 to approximately RMB16.0
million in 2023. Decrease in other income and gains was mainly
due to the decrease in subsidy income from government.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately 19.0%
or RMB10.4 million from approximately RMB55.1 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB65.5 million in 2023. Increase in selling and
distribution expenses was mainly due to increase in overseas sales
that led to the increase in sales commission.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 9.9% or
RMB24.2 million from approximately RMB245.8 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB270.0 million in 2023. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to increase in research
and development expenses.

T =FFERE

REMEQNTEED

$%Eaﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%vu“¥@%§&§%¥°l
bt BEMERATEEHELEZRE ERZTZ=F
&%EEAO\_:::E+:H:+fEm&§%%

AEEAE—HNEH c AEEEREE Y HEMKF
TRHMEEMBRAT ARZE_=F+=-A=+—H
WICE Y EREITHE - RIBEKMITHEBRBERA AR
—E-=F+ A+ HEANGHERS  REDE
RZEBE_=F+_A=+—HHHTEABARKE
360,000,0007C - R —FE - =4F - REWEH D FEE
B R/ ARE2000000T(ZE-_—F: BEARYE
8,000,0007T) °

Hit A K Wz

R CCFNEMRARKEE BZRRITHSBAREK
FEHBE A - R ARBER T _FHARK
238,700,000 - J& 2 #793.3% 2k A R # 222,800,000 7T
E-T-=FHARK16,000,0007T © E A R U
B 3 B i R BUR R B AR AR D

HERDHBEX

HE MDA T _F 4 AR¥55,100,0007T
#HN14919.0% 3% A £#10,400,0007 ' E-E - ZF 4
AR #65,500,0007T © $HE &5 SR IEINE EHNE
SMEEIZINE S E MG M -

THEHA
TREAH T - —F4 ARH245,800,0007T 1 HN4)
9.9%3k A R#24,200,000T E - - =ZFHARKE

270,000,0007T ° 7B E FSEINE 2 A AHTE & AIE I -
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FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2023 was approximately RMB94.5 million as
compared with that of 2022 of approximately RMB44.6 million,
representing an increase of RMB49.9 million or 111.8%. The
effective interest rate in 2023 was approximately 5.2% (2022:
2.5%). Increase in finance costs was due to the fact that interest in
relation to property sector can no longer be capitalized and has to
be charged to finance costs during the year.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by approximately 10.4% or RMB21.9
in 2022 to
approximately RMB187.9 million in 2023. The decrease was mainly

million from approximately RMB209.8 million

due to the combined effect of (i) land resumption cost in 2022 but
nil in 2023; and (ii) increase in impairment of trade and other
receivables in 2023 as compared to 2022.

EXCHANGE GAIN, NET

The Group recorded exchange gain of approximately RMB15.1
million in 2023 as compared with exchange gain of approximately
RMB16.4 million in 2022. The exchange gain was mainly due to
appreciation of USD against RMB in collection of USD trade
receivables.

INCOME TAX CREDIT
The Group recorded income tax credit of RMB144.7 million in 2023
as compared with income tax credit of RMB0.6 million in 2022.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded a
profit of approximately RMB183.8 million in 2023 (2022: profit of
RMB163.0 million).

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The following table sets out certain information regarding the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023:

RBESRMEER
TRV EBAIEEHE - FR T =F+=
A=+—HULEFENGEBRESRERNETER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLHFE

2023 2022

—E-= —E_
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Net cash flows from operating activities KEFHMERSREFTE 431,067 154,068

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing BEEE (A FBReREFE

activities (8,682) 38,169
Net cash flows used in financing activites BB EHMAR S REFEE (366,033) (149,102)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR& NMIR& S EWIL I FEE 56,352 43,135

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The Group’s net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB154.1 million in 2022 increased to approximately
RMB431.1 million in 2023. The increase in net cash inflows from
operating activities were primarily due to the combined effect of (i)
decrease in profit before tax; (ii) increase in inventories, trade and
bills payables and contract liabilities; and (iii) decrease in
completed properties held for sale, trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, pledged and
restricted bank balances, and other payables and accruals.

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows from investing activities changed from
inflow of approximately RMB38.2 million in 2022 to outflow of
approximately RMB8.7 million in 2023. The decrease in net cash
flows were mainly due to the combined effects of (i) purchase of
items of property, plant and equipment in 2023; (ii) proceeds from
disposal of investment in a joint venture; and (iii) receipt of
government grants.
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NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in financing activities increased
from approximately RMB149.1 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB366.0 million in 2023. The increase was mainly resulted from
the combined effect of (i) the increase in borrowing of new interest-
bearing loans and other borrowings of approximately RMB658.3
million; and (ii) decrease in an amount due to a director, the
repayment of bank loans, other borrowings, bonds and principal
portion of payment of lease and payment of interest of
approximately RMB1,024.3 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi. Although the Group may be exposed to
foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect that
future currency fluctuations would materially impact the Group’s
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies nor
instruments of foreign currency for managing the exchange risk
exposure during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group invested
approximately RMB96.3 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets. These capital expenditures
were fully financed by internal resources.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group guaranteed RMB27.4 million
(2021: RMB36.9 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.

28 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged the following assets with an aggregate net book
value to secure bank loans granted to the Group as at 31
December 2023:

(i) certain property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB696.4 million (2022: RMB598.1 million);

(i)  certain leasehold land of approximately RMB481.6 million
(2022: RMB489.4 million); and

(iii) completed properties held for sale of approximately
RMB1,003.0 million (2022: RMB913.7 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes divided by
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 were approximately 28.5% and 27.1%, respectively.
There was no major change in gearing ratio in 2023 as compared
with that of 2022.

On 27 April 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with an investment fund, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue, and the investment fund agreed to
subscribe for HK$140,000,000 12% bonds due in April 2022 (the
“‘Bonds”). The Company and the noteholder mutually agreed to
extend the maturity date to 22 December 2023. Mr Chen Chang, an
executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company,
undertakes and covenants that for so long as any of the Bonds
remain outstanding, he shall remain as (i) the single largest direct
or indirect shareholder of the Company; and (ii) the chairman of the
Board and executive Director (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). Any breach of the Specific Performance Obligations
may constitute an event of default under the Bonds and the
bondholder is entitled to redeem the Bonds immediately upon the
occurrence of the breach in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Bonds. Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report, the Company will continue to actively
negotiate with the investor for the extension of the Bonds.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB1,832.4 million, of which approximately 8%
(2022: 46%) were long term borrowings and approximately 92%
(2022: 54%) were short term borrowings. The total borrowings
included, (i) a loan of RMB791.6 million in relation to the Group’s
property development business; and (ii) net borrowings under steel
pipe business of around RMB1,040.8 million. The Group had to
finance its working capital of steel pipe business by short term
borrowings as around 90% of the cost of sales was incurred on the
procurement of steel plates and steel coils. Once the Group
received sales proceeds from its customers, it would then repay the
short term borrowings. Taking into account the Group’s cash in
hand, the Group has sufficient liquidity and is in a strong financial
position to repay its short term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, (i) approximately 80% (2022: 80%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by the
People’s Bank of China; (ii) approximately 16% (2022: 15%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried fixed
interest rate; and (iii) approximately 4% (2022: 5%) of the total
borrowings were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar which
carried fixed interest rate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

As at the date of this report, the Group had no significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

LITIGATION

The Group is involved certain lawsuits brought by third parties
alleging that the Group breached and repudiated certain purchase
and construction contracts. The claims are subject to the legal
arbitration and are expected to be finalized in 2024. As at 31
December 2023, a provision of approximately RMB50.0 million has
been provided.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, there is no significant event
subsequent to 31 December 2023 which would materially affect the
Group’s operating and financing performance.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2023, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries) were approximately
RMB151.4 million (2022: RMB123.7 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the
PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme, options to
subscribe for shares in the Company may be granted to eligible
employees. No share option was granted under the share option
scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 875 full time
employees (2022: 824 employees). The following sets forth the total
number of our staff by functions:

-:Ell\gliANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MRZZEZ=F+A=+—H AEEHEBEI5ETR
BE(ZZT-_F :824%EE) - TXHIIRBALE S
&

2023 2022
—E-= —=E_

Management (=L 52 55
Production and logistics EE R 347 327
Sales and marketing HE R miskE 58 61
Finance B 15 44 45
Quality control E 2l 113 79
R&D fff 2% 106 101
Procurement RS 20 17
General administration and others —ARATIER S EAth 135 139
Total A&t 875 824

PROSPECT

In the face of geopolitical tensions and climate change, the volatility
of global oil and gas trade prices poses significant risks to the
strategy of reducing inflation. As a result, global economic
development is full of uncertainty, which will continue to restrain
demand growth and thus limit the pace of global recovery in 2024.
The Group expects that the year 2024 will remain a challenging
year for the oil and natural gas industry. In the medium and long
term, it is expected that the oil and natural gas industry will
continue to develop due to the combined effects of the insufficient
oil and natural gas pipeline facilities, and China’s emphasis on

energy security and the promotion of clean energy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

For a long time, oil and natural gas have always been the
overriding primary energy in the global energy consumption
structure, and China is no exception. In recent years, the output of
crude oil and natural gas has continued to increase, especially for
clean energy such as natural gas, which has experienced long-term
rapid growth in output. Oil and gas pipeline construction industry is
an important part of the development of China’s energy industry, as
well as an important support for national energy security and
economic development. With the rapid development of China’s
economy, the oil and gas pipeline industry has developed rapidly,
and the market size has been expanding. The National Energy
Administration held the 2023 National Oil and Gas Pipeline
Planning, Construction and Protection Work Conference in April
2023 to implement the new deployment and requirements of energy
work, continue to promote the construction of oil and gas
production, supply, storage and sales system, accelerate the
improvement of the “national network”, and coordinate the pipeline
protection work and major oil and gas pipeline network projects.
Meanwhile, it is necessary to take the mid-term evaluation and
optimization of the “14th Five-Year Plan” as an opportunity to
further strengthen the connection between provincial and enterprise
planning and national planning, and effectively ensure the
implementation of national strategies and plans.
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At the beginning of 2022, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration issued the
“14th Five-Year Plan Modern Energy System Plan”, which put
forward the goal that by 2025, the scale of domestic oil and gas
pipeline network would reach approximately 210,000 kilometers. As
of the end of 2022, the total mileage of long-distance oil and gas
pipelines in China reached approximately 180,000 kilometers, which
was twice the length recorded a decade ago, including 28,000
kilometers of crude oil pipelines, 32,000 kilometers of refined oil
pipelines and 120,000 kilometers of natural gas pipelines. According
to the demand forecast under the “dual carbon” goal, it is expected
that China will add a total of approximately 65,000 kilometers of
including 29,500
kilometers of new trunk pipelines and 35,300 kilometers of

natural gas pipeline construction by 2035,
provincial pipelines, approximately 2,000 kilometers of new crude oil
pipelines and 4,000 kilometers of refined oil product pipelines. The
“14th Five-Year Plan” will see China’s oil and gas pipeline network
enter into a new development stage of “national network” with
physical interconnection and fair and open services, and it is
expected that China will enjoy a stable growth in pipeline
transportation in the next 10 to 20 years, of which the construction
of pipeline transportation for natural gas pipelines and other
ancillary facilities will be the focus of development. Emphasis will
also be put on the construction of the Southern Section of China-
Russia East Line, the middle section of West-to-East line 3, West-
to-East line 4, Sichuan-to-East line 2, Hulin-Changchun natural gas
pipeline and other major projects. The Group will be benefit from

the construction of oil and natural gas pipelines.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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At the end of 2019, China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation
(“Pipe China”) was formally established, which is principally
engaged in the investment, construction and operation of
infrastructure such as oil and gas trunk pipeline networks and gas
storage and peak shaving, the interconnection of the trunk pipeline
network and the connection of social pipelines, as well as the
operation and scheduling of the national oil and gas pipeline
network, and the construction of an oil and gas pipeline network
covering the west-east gas transmission, north-south gas
transmission, coastal delivery to inland, east-west synergy, north-
south interoperability in accordance with the national plan, so as to
enhance oil and gas transportation capacity and ensure a safe and
stable supply of oil and gas energy. Pipe China plans to build a
natural gas pipeline network of “5 verticals, 5 horizontals” in the
next five years. By 2025, the natural gas pipeline network of Pipe
China will form a trunk pipe network pattern of “four major (inlet)
channels” and “5 verticals, 5 horizontals”. Since its establishment,
Pipe China has been constantly strengthening the overall co-
ordination of China’s oil and gas pipeline network layout, which has
a positive impact on the development of the industry and the
Group.

According to the China Natural Gas Development Report (2023),
China’s oil and gas enterprises increased their investment in
exploration and development by approximately RMB370 billion in
2022, representing a year-on-year increase of 19%. Major
breakthroughs have been made in natural gas exploration and
development in onshore ultra-deep, deepwater, shale gas and
coalbed methane. Among them, offshore oil and gas exploration
and development has been moving towards deep water, and
China’s offshore oil and gas resources are relatively abundant. The
remaining technically recoverable reserves of offshore oil and
natural gas account for approximately 34% and 52% of China’s
remaining technically recoverable reserves of oil and natural gas,
respectively. The ocean will be an important substitute area for the
development of oil and gas exploration and production in China. In
the future, China’s offshore oil and gas exploration and
development will expand to deepwater and ultra-deep water areas,
and the Group, as a deep sea welded steel pipe manufacturer, will
firmly seize the opportunities.
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In order to achieve the “dual carbon” strategic goal of “achieving
peak carbon dioxide emission before 2030 and carbon neutrality
before 2060”, China indicates that ecology-focused green and low-
carbon development will become the leading strategy in the future.
In the medium to long term, natural gas will become the focus of
fossil energy development, while oil and gas companies will also
actively develop and explore clean energy, such as hydrogen, wind
power and hydro-power. The construction of a series of natural gas
pipeline, wind power and offshore platforms will be accelerated, and
the Group will be able to meet the demand for green and low-
carbon products with its technical strength and track record.

In the international market, the original global industrial and supply
chains have been disrupted and are facing readjustment due to
geopolitical conflicts, rising international commodity prices, high
inflation and other factors. As such, importers of steel pipes are
more inclined to seek for stable suppliers in the PRC. Besides,
since the economies of certain developing countries around the
world are gradually recovering from the pandemic, the demand for
oil and natural gas continues to increase, which enables the Group
to further expand its market share of the welded pipe overseas.

The Group believes that it is also our mission to achieve national
energy safety and dual carbon goal, which will create business
opportunities for the steel pipe manufacturing industry at the same
time. Therefore, the Group will firmly seize the opportunities to
boost its sales. As our long-term strategic goal is to become a
leading global steel pipe manufacturer, the Group will expand our
customer bases and market share by participating in more global oil
and gas and engineering projects, diversify the use of steel pipes
by supplying steel pipes for projects in infrastructure and high-end
construction fields, such as bridges, wind power generation,
offshore platforms, insulation pipe and water pipes. The Group will
also continue to leverage its strengths in the steel pipe industry to

secure project orders.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (FR &)

Mr CHEN Chang (/% &), aged 78, is the chief executive officer and
the chairman of the Board and also a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian (being executive Directors).
Being the founder of the Group, Mr Chen is primarily responsible
for the overall management, strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr Chen has over 54 years of
experience in areas related to woodwork, machine tool equipment
and lift/escalator equipment and has accumulated abundant
experience and knowledge in the mechanical and electrical industry.
Mr Chen graduated from the graduate school of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (F 1L X2) in Guangdong Province in October 1995
majoring in decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* (P& B2 285D @ E M0 E /IR
EMERMEEE®E) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(FEIE L X & EI S &) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (BB HeMEH S E M
EREekFAEEEFZRIEER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council of
the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (FEi&EHELERMO > SFEN -
o ANEEEEEIEEER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of

the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (4 # % E
ITEEEEtEgAEEER2RK) (2006)

*

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Y EENRSREEERBRE

Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications, fRICEEEZ ARIBREEER  BIF

including:

. Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy . AAESIREAHELBEERMEER - #HUEX
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean BRETHERERIERZ (ZETNEF)

economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

. Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology . PELIRTIHEBREcSTATEESRER DS
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry & ER(ZZETWF)

Commerce* (FEZHEIHEBGSTR/ATRESRERFA
% %K) (2004)

. Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards . BINTTARBRNIRBERME-—F8EE (=
by the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (&} TT+F)
ARBITF ARS8 —F 245 %) (2007)

. Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the . FREERERERBETREETEERER (=
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* (9 B El TR F)
BRREERHETFTREETEERER) (2007)

. The invention of “three-roller forming technology and . TFHZERATELRELEE NEBERERARE
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session Ee ¥R RREERAEATERERE AH
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding award EERTAEFE(ZTZENSF)
by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and the
Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department* (Z%#3
CHERBETERSEITEFE NERRERREG LRESRR
EEREAFTERERENBEERT RES ) (2008)

. Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou* (/& . BMmmER S EEEA(ZTETNEF)

M ERCEKE S EA) (2008)

. The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China . PRSI ENEEREEE](ZETNF)
Steel Association* (7 B ff ] 17 & 25 70 =i [ # B8R AI 22 5 |) (2009)

. Guangzhou Model Labour* (E M4 Eh1E4) (2009) . BMMEEES (ZETNEF)

. First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong . BHIBURE TERM R RV ERHRREES
Province (EBRE R ZRMi4€—548) for the research and ERERERME-—FH(ZT—FTF)
development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products (2010)

. Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur* (EMTEF D ER) . BMNMEBEFEER(ZT——F)

(2011)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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EEREREEEBERE

*

-z

Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (2B EF P ER)
(2012)

Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and
Technology* (/M MBI #1728 1 5 Bl 42) (2012)

Outstanding Industrial Province of Science and Technology in
the PRC’s iron and steel industry* (FFEIE T2 EHFRIET
¥#) (2012)

Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (£ YL A %) (2012)

The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top
10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (2012 EE &R
ETHRIRSPHBERBEERK) (2013)

Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou*

(MRt B2 Bl Bss B2 28 tH B BAHE) (2013)

Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013*

(2013 F ER + K& EREZAY) (2013)

Nationwide “May 1st’ Labour Award* (2B R —4EH#EE)
(2014)

s

Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* (5/\
fE B R 2 Bl g & 52) (2014)

5th China Overseas Chinese Community (Innovative
Achievement) Contribution Award* (55 F g # BIf5 5 (BIFTAK

R)EREE) (2014)

14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* (5 -+ /UfE t 74 H
A #) (2015)

National Model Worker* (% B4 &)15 &) (2015)

Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* (/& /!
BIZEI0F B EKR) (2016)

Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* (58

TNEBER R & %) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* ({5 Ll & & it %)
(2016)

. 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (2016 EEMTEXEE
AZ) (2017)

. The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou*
(ENMERAEMGEEREER) (2017)

. Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* (/&M 1 X4 R
= A¥)) (2018)

. The Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, the
State Council and the Central Military Commission jointly
issued a commemorative medal to celebrate the 70th
anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of
China* (h PR - Bk PAFEZHEREERHEARHK
MEIRKSZ 70 F 422 E) (2019)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with Mr
Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company, Mr
Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the Company.

*

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Ms Chen Zhao Nian (B Jk )

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian (R JK4), aged 47, is an executive Director.
She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman of the
Board and an executive Director). Ms Chen is primarily responsible
for the daily management and operations of the Group. Ms Chen
joined the Group in October 2002 as vice general manager. She
received a PhD’s degree in economics from the Jinan University in
2021. She also obtained a bachelor's degree in arts from the
University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom in June
2000 and a master’'s degree in accounting from Leeds Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom in October 2002. Ms Chen has
taken up the following public duties and has received the following
awards:

Public duties:

. Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC
in Panyu, Guangzhou* (B/MNM#HFBEE T EBAKXEE)
(2011)

. Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* (& /N
FEERESTIESE) (2012)

. Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (EMM&E SR T HEHE S
BIEE) (2012)

. President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (ER2 @B HAlX5FHeg
&) (2012)

. Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou

Women* (EMTiRZE+ —EHITEEEZE) (2012)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (EM M ZEERIBEEK) (2013)

Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women
Federation Conference* (P2 Bz X e 2F T —EE#E

MLER) (2013)

Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B AR
PoaEgRE T _EENTEZERZE) (2014)

Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young
Entrepreneurs Committee* (BEMM LEBSFLEREZEFH
gl E ) (2014)

Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (/&5 & i 5
ET_EREEEBZELE) (2014)

Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises
Investment Development Association* (ER A K& R E
EEEZEEK) (2015)

Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (ERE X b ERIHEEIE &) (2015)

Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association
of Public Affairs* (EREHEA@RETEBIER) (2015)

Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* (E/M T
MBEABEEIEK) (2015)

Representative of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou

City* (EMMETAEARRRKERE) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (&%
ERAREEASGEER) (2017)

Member of the 12th Executive Committee for National
Women's Federation* (2 EREE T _—ERNTEEFELE)
(2018)

Member of the 13th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women’s Federation* (EMMEHE T =—EHITEZEELEE)
(2019)

Honorary President of the Youth Association of Panyu
Merchants and Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (/& 7 % &
REFAXSFHeLEEFR) (2019)

Committee member of the 13th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (& 5 & i i
FET=ZENEEEHBEE) (2019)

Vice President and member of the 14th Executive Committee
for Guangzhou Women’s Federation* (& /N % & & iR B 5 +
MEBITEEGREERF) (2020)

Instructor of Women'’s Innovation and Entrepreneurship Mentor
Group in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
(BBRAE R 285 8] 5 6 E EHM) (2020)

Member of the Standing Committee of the 14th Guangzhou
Municipal Committee of Zhi Gong Party* (Bt/AE B M+ 1Y
EZEEEHBKEESZLE) (2021)

Entrepreneurial mentor of the Yunfan Project of the Guangzhou
European and American Alumni Association* (&M EER £

EWNFTE BIZEERD) (2021)

Executive Vice President of the 7th Council of Guangdong
Women Entrepreneurs Association* (ERE X CERHEE+
EREeTBEgR) (2022)

Representative of the 13th National Congress of Chinese

Women* (FRFELZE+ = A2BEREXARERE) (2023)

Member of the 14th Guangzhou Municipal Committee of the
CPPCC* (M T HMEBMTEZEGZE) (2024)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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i EEREHREEREERRE
Awards: #FIF -
. The 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the . FELPEFIBHAEE \ERATXARE(ZS
All-China Women’s Federation* (Y% 2B LB Ac2EN\ER —— %)

X EREE) (2012)

. Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)* . 2EMERZNEE(ZT—=4)
(2EIMERENZE LX) (2013)

. Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving . RE)EMEOFHAB NI LM (ZT—=F)
Hearts* (2% &) E M 604 & A ik 1 1) (2013)

. Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* (EMTEFH 1 . BMNTESEER(ZE—=F)
%#7%R) (2013)

. Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* (&5 . BREEBFLLERI(ZZE—Z=F)
EEFLLEK]) (2013)

. “March 8th Flag Bearer” of Guangzhou* (M [ = \4THEF]) . BMTI=NAEFI(ZE—ZFE_T—=4)
(2010-2013)

. Outstanding Women Entrepreneur* (£t Al Z 0 1£) (2014) . BEHAIZEL W (ZZE— )
. Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home* . BRETAREFEEZRI(ZT—WF)

(BERETTREFEBRZXK]) (2014)

. Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (+EEF S EMLER) . TEEESFLER(ZT—RF)
(2015)
. Guangdong Top Ten “Charity Contribution Award™ (&% 11 . BRTEIZEF=/ME(ZZ—1F)

[EZ=REE]) (2015)

. Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015 . 2015 BREA T RIFEAD (ZF—RF)
BRE R+ KA ) (2016)

. Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (20164FE % & AR . 2016 FEEEANBALOR(ZZ—REF)
%) (2016)
. Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* (/&M . BEMFERESFEER(ZE—KRF)

TEREBHEER) (2016)

. Outstanding CEO (20164F [E £ HiCEO) (2016) . 2016 F EHHCEO (ZF — R F)

*

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

The 1st National Civilized Family* (£ — /@2 XPARE)
(2016)

Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur* (5 — f& £ &
P ERF ) (2017)

2017 District “Industry Talent Urgently Needed Shortage”™
(UI7TFERIEXSTERAL ITHIR) (2017)

Panyu District Integrity Family Award* (& 8 & 5825 i #%)
(2018)

Top 10 Guangzhou Most Beautiful Philanthropist Families*
(2018FEREIMN ™ T REEEEKEE) (2018)

Charity Love Award by Guangdong Province Association of
Women Entrepreneurs* (EREZPERIHE — HREE 0L H)
(2019)

Charity Award by Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs, Guangdong Province Women and Children’s
Fund* (BEREALBERNE  EBEREFRLREESE — BE
AT) (2019)

Advanced Individuals in Social Service Work by Zhi Gong Party
Guangdong Provincial Committee (X AEERELZES —
NEME R TIELERA) (2020)

The 8th Guangzhou Moral Model* (55 /\f& /M & EE &)
(2021)

“Guangdong Good People” in the first quarter of 2021* (2021
FE-FEIERIFAL) (2021)

Guangdong Province Typical Cases of Integrity Business* (/&

RAEHEHEHMIZEG]) (2022)

China Women Entrepreneurs Association — Outstanding
female entrepreneurial model* (FRZMCEXR e — GHHAIZE
IR ) (2022)

Guangdong Provincial Women Entrepreneurs Association,
Guangdong Provincial Women and Children’s
Foundation — Great Love Charity Fund Charity Individual
Bronze Award* (EREXZTEZRNE  ERERLAEES
2 — AEBRTEASESEASEANE) (2023)

Guangzhou Women Entrepreneurs Association — The 10th
Philanthropist* (BM M Z XX HE — £ TEEERK) (2023)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (B F)

Mr CHEN Ping (Ff), aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984 majoring in
finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance in Nankai
University, the PRC in December 1990.

Mr Chen is currently a professor at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen
University in Guangdong Province, China, a doctoral supervisor in
finance and world economy, a director of the Marine Economic
Research Center of Sun Yat-sen University, the chief scientist of
the Marine Economic Innovation Team of the Southern Marine
Science and Engineering Guangdong Laboratory (Zhuhai), a
researcher at the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Development
Research Institute of Sun Yat-sen University, a national high-end
think tank, a candidate for the “New Century Excellent Talent
Support Program”, a major research project on philosophy and
social sciences of the Ministry of Education, and a chief expert on
major research projects of the National Social Science Fund.
Mr Chen has also served as the dean of the Department of
International Trade and Finance at Sun Yat-sen University in China,
the director of the Institute of Economic Research, the deputy dean
of Lingnan College, and a senior visiting scholar at the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Mr Chen’s academic
research is devoted to financial theory and policy, global economy,
etc. Since 2000, he has presided over 11 national-level projects
and more than 40 provincial-level and above-level projects, and
published more than 70 academic papers in core domestic journals
and 6 monographs.

Mr Chen was an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang
Brewery Group Co., Ltd.* (BN BRI E)E X5 AR A A]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002461 SZ),
from 10 October 2016 to 5 January 2023. Mr Chen was also an
independent director of Shenzhen Universe (Group) Co. Ltd ((ZYIITH
Kt (&) 5 BR2AR]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000023 SZ), since 15 July 2019.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (&[5 & )

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (i[5 ZZE), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 October 2019. Mr Au
Yeung is also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr Au Yeung obtained a bachelor’'s degree in commerce
from the Bond University in Australia in September 1996, a
master’'s degree in accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2000, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2005 and an EMBA degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2008. Mr Au Yeung is a member of
CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 27 years of experience in auditing and
financial control through his prior employments with accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (BZH)

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (E#®), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2023. Mr Zhan
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr Zhan, was awarded the Certificate in Foreign Trade by
Shenzhen University and completed the postgraduate course of
professional studies in business administration at Sichuan
University. He holds a Master of Business Administration from Sun
Yat-sen University. He is currently the president of the China
International Ocean Forum Belt and Road Investment Fund and the
fund manager of Imagi Brokerage Limited. He is a representative of
a company which is authorized to carry out Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activity in Hong Kong. He held senior
positions with major international banks and financial investment
groups for years. Mr Zhan was nominated as the outstanding
private entrepreneur in Laibin City, Guangxi in 2006. Mr Zhan has
extensive knowledge in corporate finance and banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Liu Yonghe (2I3k i)

Ms LIU Yonghe (2I3kf), aged 55, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms Liu
has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with the Group for
over 28 years. Ms Liu is now responsible for cash flow and
working capital control of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting education at Lanzhou University of Finance
and Economics, the PRC in 1990 with a bachelor's degree in
economics and obtained professional qualification as assistant
accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 31 years of experience in the
accounting and finance industry. She was awarded the “March 8th
Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and the post she held was
awarded as the Women’'s Exemplary Post by the Guangzhou
Women’s Union in March 2005. In October 2009, Ms Liu obtained
a master’'s degree in the Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) programme at the Asia International Open

University (Macau).

Ms Wong Pui Shan (E %)

Ms WONG Pui Shan (E¥Hft), aged 47, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance
Institute. Prior to joining the Company, she had served international
audit firms for four years and listed companies as financial

controller and company secretary for more than 21 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Pui Shan (X %)

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong is
working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her
biography are set out above in this section.

Ms Wong has complied with the relevant professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHEE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 117 to 258.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’ s performance during the year under
review can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to 11
and pages 18 to 36 respectively.

The Group will continue to focus on its steel pipe business by
diversifying its product usage and market segment. For property
development, the Group will continue to sell units of Phase Il GDC
and receive rental income from shops of Phase | GDC.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, treat sewage before
recycling and discharge, and sell wasted steel products to recycling
companies. Further details of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance can be found in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 87 to 105.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that might have a significant impact on the businesses
of the Group.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. Our
package includes salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as mandatory
provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.
Our current relationship with our employees and the labour unions

are good and are based on mutual support and respect.

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships with
our major customers, and established a strong customer base. We
awards and

have obtained numerous patents, recognitions,

international certificates and long standing international and
nationwide track record to establish our stable customer base. We
are an industry pioneer and are the first and only steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC to manufacture and successfully develop
deep sea welded steel pipes for the use at a water depth of
3,500m and a qualified supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. We
believe that this can enable us to establish and maintain market

leadership in the steel pipe industry.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered. We issue
purchase orders to our suppliers that set out the quantities, prices
and specifications of the products to be purchased, delivery
arrangement and credit terms which were determined at arms’
length negotiations between the parties based on normal
commercial terms. We believe the relationship between us and our
major suppliers is good and stable. Most of our procurements were
paid in RMB.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on pages 259 to 260. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’s financial condition and results of operations would be
affected by a number of factors. The principal risks and
uncertainties relating to the Group are set out below:

. The Group’s revenue of steel pipe business is dependent on
securing sales orders for new projects through biddings from
customers. Most of our revenue is generated from pipeline or
other infrastructure projects that are mainly project-originated
and non-recurring in nature. Our revenue will be affected if
we cannot successfully obtain biddings from customers.

. The Group does not have any long term contracts with its
customers of steel pipe business. If the Group’s customers
choose not to engage the Group in the future, the Group’s
steel pipe business operations, financial results and
profitability will be affected.

. The Group’s revenue of property business is dependent on the
policy of PRC government. Any change of PRC policy will
affect the property business operations, financial results and
profitability.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves, including the
share premium account and contributed surplus and accumulated
losses, available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted

as consolidated and

to approximately RMB58.5 million. The Board does not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023. Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For dividend
purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined by reference
to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC statutory
in accordance with
in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the

financial statements which are prepared

accounting principles generally accepted

Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of
their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 40% of the total revenue of the
Group, and sales to the largest customer amounted to 16%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
74% of the total cost of sales of the Group, and purchases from
the largest supplier amounted to 20%. None of the Directors or any
to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the

of their associates or any Shareholders (which,

Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the

Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr Chen Chang (Chairman)

Mr Chen Guo Xiong (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 5 December 2023)

Ms Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Chen Ping

Mr Tian Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023)
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023)

Mr Chen Guo Xiong resigned as executive Director and Vice
Chairman with effect from 5 December 2023 due to pursue of his
other business commitments. Mr Tian Xiao Ren resigned as
independent Non-executive Director with effect from 1 September
2023 as he reached 70 years old and he wants to focus on his
family life. Mr Zhan Jian Zhou was appointed as independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 September 2023. The
Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr Chen Ping,
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou as at the date of
this report, the Company considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 37 to 48 of this annual report.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association,
Ms Chen Zhao Nian will retire and, being eligible, will offer herself
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Pursuant to article 109 of the Articles of Association, Mr Zhan Jian
Zhou, being appointed by the Board as independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 September 2023, shall hold office only
until the forthcoming AGM and is eligible to offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

A separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of each of
Ms Chen Zhao Nian and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice. Each of our independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of two years and is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice. The Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the

terms of service agreement of all Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFO”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
(the “Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEgR 51
Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
BRE —ERES AT 2w (1)
Personal interest
[EPN
Note:
1. These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued

share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits
Limited.
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Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of
Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.42% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BREE

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or the AABRERZZEZEFANA+NBETHBRERF KR
“Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders of the Company in 2 FHERIRERE ([HARERT 8 S [5T81)) - BEET
the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2020. The details of EMFBERBEEMRABI7TENREHEBOT

the Scheme are disclosed below pursuant to the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the 1. BREAEIER  sTE S ERASE ] RS kE
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected 2 EE R ERE - ARES B mE SRS
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to ERROER WAREBRE-—EEABMN
the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a FRAUMAERSEER TRE) - W wHE
more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/ 5/ SR EEAEF)

or provide benefits to eligible participants.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme include: 2. EBREISEE B
(a) directors and employees of the Company or any of its (@) ARRKEEAMEBEARNESRES (B
subsidiaries (including persons who are granted options FERBZT EEREREN SRR EZ
or awards under the scheme as an inducement to enter ZERAEIMVERBEHRER) 2 AT)

into employment contracts with these companies);

(b) directors and employees of the holding companies, fellow (o) ARFHERLT  RRMEBAGREEA
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company; AMEENEES &
and

(c) persons who provide services to the issuer group on a (c) MRETASEMNHEER —REKBREHRM
continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual HEHBEILFTERGEREAEER
course of business which are in the interests of the RN EE AL o

long term growth of the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. not exceeding
101,114,200 shares). Up to the date of this annual report, no
options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

At the beginning and the end of the year ended
31 December 2023, the total number of share options that
can be granted under the Share Option Scheme was
101,114,200 and 101,114,200 respectively, which represented
approximately 10% and 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at such dates respectively.

Grant of options to connected persons: grant of options to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option).

Grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being.
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10.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under an
option: an option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of an option.

Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme
has a life of 10 years commencing on 18 June 2020, being
the date on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted.
The scheme will expire on 18 June 2030.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to

31 December 2023, no share option has been granted or agreed to

be granted to any person under the Share Option Scheme.

TEFFERE

10.

R AR B B AT B S

RIEERERBEESORE  2EEATREZD
BEEREZBRS -t —AREZHERE - B
MRERRIBEERETENGEREEETRELAT
EAEANEBBEABERITE - LM EZHK
HEREZ BB RRG  BRMERERT T
EREHERES AR TFER - EAETIR
AT Z S BARER T -

ETEAMABHEERENREHR  RIFEF
FITREREMAARARZR BBEREELRFT
BRFH8I BIREREHR -

X5 AR PR R N TRIR : RO AR H B AR

F i
RA 1B TTHREBARE -

EATHREONELE: ZERFHEEET  BF
SOROBHRIESZENEREZNE AEB R
Fﬁlﬂ#ﬁfﬁi’%iﬁﬁﬁlbﬁﬁwﬁlm% (iR R B
RERLBREZL B AR D[S 2% BB
BRIMEXRMIIFIEFHYTE - (i) iz 5
E

BREAENBTFH 8B T _FFX
H+N\R (BEkE SR RA 2 B) B +FR
BR-FEBR-_ZB=2F XA+ N\HERW -

HEEE-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—

B AR EREELESEREAALRERFAR

B ] B B o

WIFAXRARMEERERAT 59



‘REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EERRER

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

Shares of the Company

Name Capacity

wE /B8 4%

Bournam Profits Limited Beneficial owner (note)

(“Bournam”)

Bournam Profits Limited Ham e A ()
(“Bournam”)

Note:

The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned by
Mr Chen Chang. Mr Chen is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 63 to 86.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding the dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and employees during the year ended 31 December
2023. Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had no significant event after the reporting period
required to be disclosed.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) when the Report of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. CCTH CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution will be
proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to
re-appoint CCTH CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Chang
Chairman
Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the
opinion of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and
Chief Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG
Code. The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.
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The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability ARAERHEZERAABERHEST RS R

Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company. BEERR -
Board Composition EEEHAA
The Board members during the year ended 31 December HE T =F+-_F=1t—HIFEREERN

HmERMLIEETEXEHIIMT

2023 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief FRE %&HE EEGXFERITHRAE
Executive Officer, Member of the YHMEEeRIREREER
Remuneration Committee and =i

Nomination Committee

Mr Chen Guo Xiong (resigned on 5 December 2023) BREE A E (RZE_=F+ A A BET)
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BRIKEF L+
Independent Non-executive Directors: HUHPTESE -
Mr Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination BR S SE A REBEEZESXFE  BFRZE
Committee and Member of the BgkFMEEEKE
Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee
Mr Au Yeung Chairman of the Audit Committee BRSEEL A EREEEER
Kwong Wah
Mr Tian Xiao Ren Chairman of the Remuneration HEZLE(RZ FHEEEEXR  BFEERZE
(resigned on Committee, Member of the Audit T_=FNA—- EBgkiEEZTEEKE
1 September Committee and Nomination HE )
2023) Committee
Mr Zhan Jian Zhou Chairman of the Remuneration EREEE (R %ﬁ@ﬂii,\ 2XF - BRE
(appointed on Committee, Member of the Audit TZ=FNA— BEekiRREEENKE
1 September Committee and Nomination AEZT)
2023) Committee
The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and EESRAEMERITEER=RBIIIIENTE

EAR BEXRETRANEBREEESE KRS

three independent non-executive Directors from different

business and professional fields. Mr Chen Chang and Ms
Chen Zhao Nian are members of the same family. Mr Chen
Chang is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors (including Mr Chen
Ping who has served the Company for more than nine years)
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments of
each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board is
satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2023.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of

communication.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023, four Board
meetings were held.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board

meeting.

The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms
adopted by the Company are effective in ensuring that
independent views and inputs are available to the Board:

. The Board is represented by sufficient number of non-
executive Directors which meets the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

. In assessing suitability of the Director candidates, the
Board will consider their profiles, including their
character, experience, qualifications and time
commitment; the Board will also consider to the Board’s
overall composition and skill matrix as well as the
Company’s diversity policy.

. The Board will review each Director's time commitment
to the Company’s business annually.

66 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

ERESHNGIZL _REZEFSITHAE
REBXHEARMBEE  <EHEEAEEM - M
FEEOHERHARERUNBERITRSEZR
B BEREEXE EFFEUEEERATE
RBUEXER BRBARAAE -IEES
BEREEEEEERARTINESR - ARF
MARNERERFEFEEANEFRESS
ALtk TAESRCHI A HEMNESENA IR
ML AR B AFRERH -

ARAMBERMARSAIGR - BRUEEFN
HEMBMBATREARGS IR ZEFA
BMERERTFHARGEZEAR - REEFSH
BED  EFTERRAEEZNRERZEM
ERXRG BREABHZEFESILERR
BB o

E=ERR  NRARA AT H S 7] B MR
EEQREBYNBERER

. EXeHREAABNIERTESKRER N
B EWRAMRE -

. RIABEEEREANGELR EFEH
EZERENBEAER - BREAMEEE -
K BERFANHNER EFETE
TEEFEENEBERBARLIE  UEAR
BN Z ALK

. EFeMEFEASEFHARAERBEY
FITASY H RO B ] o

Annual Report 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ M S 3
TEERRE
. The Board will assess non-executive Directors’

independence upon appointment and annually.

. Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters
in which he has material interest.

. The Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are authorised by the
Board to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice as necessary to assist the

respective committee.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are
reviewed during the annual evaluation of the Board’s
performance.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
C.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time to ensure appropriate measures are being taken
should suitable circumstance arise.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors
The Board
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has

is responsible for selection and approval of

established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board
and making recommendations on the appointment of

Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has signed or renewed his/
her service contract with the Company for a period of three
years. All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed or re-appointed for a term of two years, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-
appointments/appointment of both executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board of Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Ms Chen Zhao Nian will retire and, being eligible, will offer
herself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the

Company.

In accordance to the Company’s Articles of Association, a
separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of
each of Ms Chen Zhao Nian and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou and at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors
(being Mr Chen Chang, Ms Chen Zhao Nian, Mr Chen Ping,
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou) attended
seminars and training courses in relation to corporate
governance, Listing Rules update or financial markets update
arranged by professional firms/institutions. Records of
continuing professional development have been maintained by
the company secretary. Besides, the company secretary also
conducted briefings on corporate governance, directors’ duties
and responsibilities and provided materials for Listing Rules
amendments to all Directors for their reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors has confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.
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Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect of
each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010. The

Directors are satisfied that the controlling shareholders have

independent non-executive

fully complied with the terms of the non-competition
undertakings and no new competing business was reported
by the controlling shareholders throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are

independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek advice

independent professional in appropriate

circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Au Yeung
Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou. Mr Au Yeung Kwong
Wah is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and the internal control and
risk management procedures and systems of our Group. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the condensed unaudited consolidated
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2023,
adopted by the Company and the Group.

including the accounting principles and practices
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following: ERLZEGrFEREREUATEIE

. To review the financial statements and reports and . MESSRIMBEHRELBENEHEH
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the BRI E B A% BAD Sk NI A% BAD AR
internal auditor or external auditors before submission R ZERIERSFFRIER
to the Board;

. To review the relationship with the external auditors by . SRBINEZHER 2 TE - BARTEER
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their AR st ENE R BRI R - WREF
fees and terms of engagement, and make BERFRIMNEZBMMESSREESR
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re- P54
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the . BEARRGBRESNE RBREERA
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management HEERGARBRAETEE CHRBX
and internal control systems and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year EZZEeREBE_E-_=F+-A=+—HL

ended 31 December 2023, of which two meetings with FEBITNREE  HPMAEHEINEZEED

external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit g BREEGMAEKEHBLERZMEE

Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed ReZEL ZEEKR Hﬁﬁkf#&i&fﬁiLT%i

the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report Fr - BEARQRIAPEE KRR E IR R4

of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control and 2 N BR Az BRAD R 25 DA &9\\%%@%2%% ° IEE

risk management systems and processes, and the re- BHAEERNNEERRE M EREE -

appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the

internal control system of the Group has been identified.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee BEREZEGR#E - BT BB R IMNIEAZER

and the Directors in respect of matters about selection, MMERL - HE %Iﬂﬁﬁ o e

appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy and RARIEBRZBERBELGE  REEBRL T

system for employees to raise concerns of possible FEREBANEE MAAEEYHEREZE

improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit SRE -

Committee.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 ARREEZT_=F+-_A=+—RHLFEZ

December 2023 and interim results for the six months ended FEXEREE-_S_=FA=THILAHEA

30 June 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. ZHHEBEERBEREZEGERH -
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Nomination Committee
The Company recognises the benefits of a board that is
composed of a balance of skills, experience, expertise and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed its
composition and considered a number of aspects, including
gender, age, educational

background, professional

experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in

accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board
considers that the existing board composition is well
diversified and appropriate to the business development of the

Company.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22
March 2012 in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Zhan Jian Zhou and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The majority of them are independent non-

executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to
review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and

the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the
Board and made recommendations to the Board for the re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the
chairman, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity policy
determined the policy for nomination of directors, nomination
procedure process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates.
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The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2023 and all members of the
Nomination Committee attended the meetings.

According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability
of a candidate include:

. the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy);

. the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
. the candidate’s character and integrity;
. the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote

adequate time in discharge of a director’s duties;

. whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a
diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service;

. (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the
candidate is in compliance with the criteria of
independence under the Listing Rules; and

. any other factors as may be determined by the Board

from time to time.
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In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may HEEZEFME - Tﬂﬂ%%ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%% A
nominate or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director 1IJ BARAES  UHREZES o IREBE
to be considered by the Nomination Committee. The BgiRE L% “@EWET‘%LAE’MIJ\%{
Nomination Committee will then evaluate the personal profile B EHZEREANETERAS  UREESSE
of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out HAAERNEE  c RRBBIINTESEME -
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate REZEENERECEET AT R LR
and make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and HIREANE T REFLEEREESME -
approval. For nomination of independent non-executive REZESRBIGREANEBEMEERR (B
Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess the RREALEEZEZZESSE EFHER
candidate’s independence in accordance with the CG Code BRGNS EEERESERE) UK
and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring Directors, EREToRREARRERS LEREF -

the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s
attendance at Board committee meetings, Board meetings
and general meetings, his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board), and make recommendations to
the Board and shareholders for re-election at general

meetings.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the RAR NS KIBAZESE 2R RKE
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a high standard of HEEL BRARBEEEFZERZ T
corporate governance and recognises and embraces the REHE R o

benefits of diversity in the composition of the Board.

In 2013, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy RZE—=ZF ARABETLEMRAUEAESS
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) for compliance with the Code KREZ Tt FAEX  ERAEFEE LR
Provision of the Listing Rules concerning the diversity of RTEFEZTBRK] - ARFARRAREEE

Board members. The Company recognises and embraces the FEXEZ T RN B - —HEEZ TE
benefits of diversity in Board members. A truly diverse Board EXFeRaRUEAEEAEE R RITEL
will include and make good use of differences in the skills, BoEE BR MAKAMEZEESSIEZS
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender e AEIEHEESGXNENZEAER  B=E
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be BLEEnR - MBEEEKNE 2 Fm - A
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of AEABRA - WERZ T (BIEFEERIZ L)

the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit

while taking into account diversity, including gender diversity.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five HEAREHH SEZ2hhEESHEK - A
Directors, one of them is female. Three of them are —BARTE HA=FZRBIINTES G5
independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting BB REREERRET -

critical review and control of the management process.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board REZECREBETHRITESSL TIEEE
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued EHREFEA -

effectiveness.
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Workforce diversity

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of
875 employees, of which 77% (675 employees) are males,
and 23% (200 employees) are females.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be merit-based and do not consider it
appropriate to set any target gender ratio for our workforce,
we recognize and embrace the benefits of having a diverse
workforce, and will continue to enhance the diversity of our
workforce, subject to availability of suitable candidates.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Zhan Jian Zhou and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Zhan Jian Zhou is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The majority of them are

independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
our Directors and senior management, determine on behalf of
the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for our Directors and senior management and to
review and/or approve the matters relating to share schemes
under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Remuneration will be
determined by reference to the duties and level of
responsibilities as well as market practice and conditions.
None of the Directors themselves approve their own

remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management. No share
option has been granted during the year ended 31 December
2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held and all members
attended the meetings.
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Corporate Governance Function
The Board is
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference

responsible for performing the corporate

adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other

Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended 31

December 2023 is set out in the table below:

AGM
BRRAFAE
Executive Directors HITEZ
Mr Chen Chang GREXE(EERLE) 11
(Chairman of the Board)
Mr Chen Guo Xiong (Vice BREELE (EFLFLE) 11
Chairman of the Board) (R=—Z-=F+-A%R
(resigned on 5 December HEHE)
2023)
Ms Chen Zhao Nian RkFLL 111
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors
Mr Chen Ping BYEE 11
Mr Tian Xiao Ren HESEE(RZZZ=F 11
(resigned on 1 September NA—BEHE)
2023)
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah B EELE 1n
Mr Zhan Jian Zhou EREEE(M-E==F N/A iR

(appointed on 1 September
2023)

NA—BEZA)

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent

non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

ERELEBEE
EEERBENTARRIZERERBE -EFT
R BREECRESSUORERRBEZE
T BRFAEERRIARERNERE R 2R
REHR BEEREEESFRAMEERBZ2EIIR
FESEER URBEGAEEETEEERT
AW IE R RN A DB AR E (FH A BEE -

o

BT -_=%+_A=t+—BItUHBEE =
EekHMEEZEgXNEHE R B RH N
B

Meeting attended/held

HE/BTER

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
=g EREEE REZEE FMzEEE
4/4 N/A NEHR 3/3 2/2
3/4 N/A NEHR N/A TiEH N/A NEH
4/4 N/A NEHR N/A i A N/A TEH
4/4 4/4 3/3 212
3/4 3/4 2/3 2/2
4/4 4/4 N/A TiEH N/A NEH
1/4 1/4 1/3 N/A TEH

EEEFEREE-_S_=F+t=-A=+—81t
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EEES (BREIFAFIIONEE -
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(C) Accountability and Audit

—ZE=

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRS
Accounting Standards have been adopted and the appropriate
accounting policies and statutory requirements have been
consistently complied with. The Board aims to present a clear
and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely

manner.

Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
relevant

accounts are prepared in accordance with all

statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 106 to
116 of this annual report.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.
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Independent Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, CCTH CPA
Limited, for services rendered is broken down below:

ZHURTS
Hit

Audit services
Other

::CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BB
REBE-_T-_=F+-_R=+—HILFE 5M
PR AR TS B 5 S FE 15 98 S A BRAD 7 IE KB & 51 EM
BRDBHMEHANT -

2023
—B-=F
HKD’000
FET

1,480
200

Total &t

1,680

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Company has an internal audit department to ensure effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s

business objectives.

The
throughout the year. The internal audit process includes

internal audit department conducts internal audit
conducting supervision and examination on financial
management and contract management, identifying problems
and overseeing the rectification and correction of these
problems, and reporting to the Audit Committee and the
Board any material issues identified in the internal audit and

the rectification and correction thereof for their review.
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(E)

(F)

The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on quarterly
basis and assessed the effectiveness (according to its
magnitude and significance) of the Group’s internal control
system which covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions during the year ended 31 December
2023. The Board is of the view that risk management and
internal control systems are adequate. No major risk was

identified which affect operation of the Group.

The Company is in strict compliance with the related
the SFO and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the

requirements of the Listing Rules,

Securities and Futures Commission. The Company discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Company ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential.

Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of the current Company Secretary is set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors and senior management”
on page 37 to 48 of this annual report. The Company
Secretary has complied with the professional training
requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules

during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views and
shareholders may at any time submit their questions and
concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@pck.com.cn. Shareholder(s) holding
not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.
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Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the applicable laws and the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director. A shareholder may propose a
person for election as a Director by lodging the following
documents to the Board or Company Secretary at our Hong
Kong office at Unit 605-606, 6/F., Tower |Ill,
Square, No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,

Enterprise

Hong Kong: 1) a notice in writing of the intention to propose
(with  full
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) for election as

that person name and biographical details as
a Director; and 2) a notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected as a Director. Such notices shall be
lodged at least 7 clear days before the date of the general
meeting and the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
shall be at least 7 clear days in length.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual

Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Investor Relations and Communication With
Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to

make the best investment decisions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted. A
shareholder communication policy is in place to ensure that
shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to information of the Company. The policy is available
on the Company’s website.

The Shareholders may at any time send enquiries and
requests for publicly available information and provide
comments and suggestions to the Company. Such enquiries,
requests, comments and suggestions can be sent by email to
ir@pck.com.cn or to the Company Secretary by mail to the
Company’s address as shown in the “Contact Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

For enquiries about their shareholdings in the Company, the
Shareholders can direct the same to the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email to info@hk.
tricorglobal.com, who has been appointed by the Company to
handle the Shareholders’ share registration and related

matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an annual general
meeting of the Company was held on 16 June 2023.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.
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The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on Friday,
21 June 2024. The notice of AGM will
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

be sent to

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head of
investor relation will be the primary contact point for

communications with investors and analysts.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders communication policy. Having considered
the multiple channels of communication and engagement in
place, it is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy was effective during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year. The latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is

posted on the Company’s website.

2023 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, members of the Remuneration Committee and the
external auditors attended the 2023 AGM.
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At the 2023 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed at
the 2023 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 together with the reports of the Directors and
auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Mr Chen Guo Xiong
as executive Director, Mr Chen Ping and Mr Au Yeung
Kwong Wah as independent non-executive Directors and
authorised the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration; (iii)
reappointed CCTH CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
and authorised the Directors to fix its remuneration; (iv)
approved a general mandate for the Directors to allot and
issue of new shares of an amount not exceeding 20 per cent
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the 2023 AGM; (v) approved a general mandate for the
Directors to repurchase shares of an amount not exceeding
10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the
Company’s issued share capital as at the date of the 2023
AGM; (vi) extended the general mandate granted to the
Directors of the Company to allot, issue, and deal with
additional shares in the share capital of the Company by an
amount not exceeding the amount of the shares repurchased
by the Company; and (vii) approved and adopt the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing articles of
association of the Company and to authorise the Directors to
do all things necessary to implement the adoption of the new
amended and restated articles of association of the Company.
All resolutions were passed by way of a poll conducted by
the Company’s registrar. The poll results of the 2023 AGM
were available on the Company’s website.

The 2024 annual general meeting (“2024 AGM”) of the
Company will be held at 1/F., China Building, 29 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 21 June 2024 at 10:30

a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2024 AGM
and exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to
ask questions relating to the business of the meeting. Details
of the resolutions to be considered in the 2024 AGM will be
set out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders
together with the 2023 annual report.

B =FFERE

RZBZ=FRFAEFAG L AAAREES
HREEBEUAER N _—ERFAFAE
BBZRBERNT  ()VREARAHE-_T==
FHZA-+ - BUEEEZREREAMERE
LREZSREESHZBMBE  (BRMAEE S
ERVNTES BYPLERBGEZELERB L
FRTESLEREZSETESIE ; (i)EE
FEXEEHENER AR ANDFZEA - WF
BEFETHEHS  (VILERTEE —REE
DR RBETTNEBBAARR S =ZFRER
FREGHHDBITRAR20%ME LD ¢ (v)HER
FEFEREE UBEETBBARFIR-Z=
TERRAFAGEHEBITRATELEI0%
RS - (VIYBABE T ARG E BN —REE L
flgs BT REEARBRANPREEINEG - 1
HENSHBARATFMERARMER © K(vi)
BfE RN A RIS ST R BV B ERMA -
WAL ERARRRGHEBMSIZME - WIREE
EEHABBERRMNA R B H LIS ] R B85
ERERNFAEVESEE - EARFROHBEE
REERT FAERERHUBRERAFTAB
B T =FRBAFAGZRERRERA
A N/NEIH R

RARBR_ZE-_WNEA=-+—H(EHA) t
THR=T2BERBEE2E REF295E AT
BRI Z_NEFRRBFAG (T _NFRK
RBEFKE]) -

SBRELERBEE - - NERRBEAS
RAERER  hBOREEAS FIRHBIRN %
BoME RSB mMEREEE AR R
SERHBEERARL  ARBEA-_T-=F4F
BEXTRE -

WIABAARMESZERERAT 83



TEERRE
(H) Others

U

Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2023.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2023.

Dividend Policy
In order to enhance transparency of the Company and
facilitate the shareholders of the Company and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company,
the Board adopted a dividend policy on 28 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether
to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a

number of factors, including but not limited to:

. the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company;

. the Company’s business operation strategy, including

expected working capital requirements, capital

expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

. the Company’s liquidity position;

. retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends
imposed by the Company’s lenders and other

institutions; and

. any other factors that the Board considers to be
applicable from time to time.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Board’s discretion. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
on a regular basis.

Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing Procedures

The Group maintains and effectively implements a
comprehensive system of internal control and stringent
policies for anti-corruption, and is committed to preventing

and monitoring any malpractices or unethical practice.

The Group is in compliance with all applicable anti-bribery
and corruption laws including the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong
Kong. The Group has also applied the Corporate Governance
Code as the basis in formulating the internal rules and
regulations for integrity discipline and clean administration.
The Group will adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its
reputation to prevent corruption.

To prevent corruptive practices and raise employees’
awareness regarding such matter, the expectations and
appropriate procedures of engaging third parties, and
standards relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption are set
out in the anti-corruption and bribery policy of the Group.

Employees, who are found breaching the Group’s code and
policies will be investigated and may be subject to warning,
suspension, termination of contract, dismissal and disciplinary
discharge.

In addition, a whistleblowing policy has been established to
provide employees with guidance and channels for the
reporting of fraud, corruption, bribery, criminal offences,
conflict of interest, harassment, workplace bullying and other
non-compliances with the laws, regulations and internal
controls or other forms of misconducts without fear of
adverse consequences.
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The policy provides a set of transparent and confidential
procedures for dealing with the concerns raised by each
employee and is fully supported by management and

approved by the Board.

Suspected non-compliance issues may be reported to the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the assistant to chairman of
the Company, immediate supervisor or the head of
department who is also required to notify any concerns to the
Audit Committee on a timely basis. According to this policy,
the identities of employees who reported in good faith will be
kept confidentially and protected by the Group without any

form of retaliation, harassment or victimization.

Anti-corruption training material had been circulated among all
Directors and employees of the Group during the Year in
accordance with the applicable laws of the relevant
jurisdictions to enhance their knowledge and awareness on

such issue.
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The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
maintains oversight of and approves the identification and
assessment of ESG issues and confirms that to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses the material topics related to the
operations of the Group and fairly presents its ESG performance
and impacts.

The Group’s management is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the compliance with local laws and regulations with
regards to ESG-related issues. The management is also
responsible for establishment of sustainability strategies, policies
and measures to implement sustainability initiatives, provide
sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG report.

This section is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

This ESG section would separate into two subject areas — (A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to energy saving and environmental
protection. The Group is trying to keep the damage to the
environmental at a minimal level by reducing pollutants and
hazardous wastes during the manufacturing process and
ensuring our activities and operations are to be energy, water
and resources saving, and to prevent pollution, reduce wastes
and minimize the negative impacts on and harmonize with the
environment. The Group has set up procedures and systems
to comply with the rules and impose control on emissions.
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The Group is complying with the following laws and
regulations that are most relevant to the Group:

i

. Law of the PRC on the Environmental Protection* (2

AR HAMBIRFEREER),;

. Law of the PRC on the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control* (% A R HEFBIK )5 207 1E%);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste* (7 A R 3£ 41
Bl & 58 BE W05 A IR E R 1B R);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air
Pollution* (/2 A R MBI KR )5 RE87%);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution* (FFZE A R B IR 5 5%
S HRBRE);

. Law of the PRC on the Energy Conservation* (4 Z& A
RAMEIE X BEIRE);

. Law of the PRC on the Cleaner Production Promotion*

(FEARKMBEBZEERER),

. Regulations on Environmental Protection Management
of Construction Projects* (%18 B IRERE T R IKH);

. Measures for the Administration of Hazardous Waste
Transfer Forms* (/&% B% ¥ 421 Bt B8 B 12 it %);

. Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous
Chemicals* (Bt 2mi 2 B EH)

A.1 Emissions
Types of emissions from the Group were mainly carbon
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide etc. emitted during operation
of production lines.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions in 2023 were primarily
generated from natural gas, diesel oil and gasoline.
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Scope 2 greenhouse gases emissions were associated with
the electricity purchase in PRC are provided by the relevant
provider of electricity.

Greenhouse gas emissions

ERBEHR

it

Scope 1

& [E1

The greenhouse gases emissions are calculated with
reference to the “Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting
Method and Reporting Guidelines for Enterprises Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition)” {{}% 8 =& 8
P E T AR RS IR E Rk (2022F 27T k) ) issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China (4 # A R £ F1E 4 B3R IF Z0FT).

Hazardous waste

Hazardous wastes were produced during production, including
waste oil, waste sludge, waste mineral oil, paint, paint
residue, waste grease, waste grease drum, waste paint drum,
waste emulsion drum, waste activated carbon, waste organic
solvent, waste developer, and fixer. Total hazardous waste
produced in 2023 was approximately 261 tonnes and 0.0005
tonnes of hazardous waste was produced for each tonne of

product.
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Non-hazardous waste

Non-hazardous wastes were produced during production
including welding slag, iron filings, scrap steel. Total
non- hazardous waste produced in 2023 was approximately
2,490 tonnes and 0.005 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was
produced for each tonne of product.

Emissions are proportional to the production level. Therefore,
total emissions in 2023 increased as compared to 2022.
Intensity amount per each tonne of product in 2023
decreased as compared to 2022. Nevertheless, in an aim to
reduce emission of greenhouse gas, the Group has
implemented the policies as follow:

1) The factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is designed to
let in more natural light and allow for natural ventilation
in order to reduce use of electricity;

2) Solar photovoltaic power generation equipment are
installed on the roof of the factories of Lianyungang
and Zhuhai factories in order to facilitate the use of
clean energy;

3) The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time.

Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

1. The Group has set up procedures in the collection,
storage, transportation and disposal of polluting wastes
to prevent scattering, draining, leakage. Authorization is
need for dumping, stacking, discarding or scattering the
wastes;

2. The Group has identified specific rubbish bins for
different types of wastes like scrap steel, industrial
wastes, domestic wastes, oil-bearing wastes, and
delivered the wastes to units with waste treatment
qualification for waste disposal or recycling;

3. The Group has strengthened training for employees to
enhance their skills and knowledge of handling waste;

4. Hazardous wastes are disposed to qualified and
designated institutions with special care.

The Group has received no cases of environmental pollution
or complaints in 2023.
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A.2 Use of Resources A2 EBERFER
The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity, AEEBFEANEREZERE N K- ABHERA
water, petrol and natural gas. The Group aims at and has ReAEEBNNT—EFBERLSBERERE -
been reducing consumption of various resources. Resources TREINFAREERNERBFE
consumption by the Group during the year is listed in the
table below:
Intensity
Amount per
Total amount each tonne of
Resources Consumption Unit in 2023 product in 2023
BE
N-=Z=-= R-—g==
BEIRHFE By BEYE BHEMHBE
Electricity consumption kWh 47,500,000 86
BE FRE
Water consumption Tons 437,000 0.8
FEK s
Petrol Litre 98,000 0.2
R van
Natural gas M3 171,000 0.3
Packaging material Tons 182 0.0003
BEME g
Measures on efficient use of resources: B AEROBE
1. The Company will assess the performance of its staff 1. ARABREISPFINERREFZEET
based on the resource efficiency of the department; HIRE
2. The factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is designed let 2. EFEEBRKEIMRAEMEARKERE
in more natural light and allow for natural ventilation in REROFE NEINHEEHINEL
order to reduce use of electricity;
3. The light and equipment would be turned off during 3. RFERERHEREEARAREAERSZE

luncheon rest time;

4.  Use of energy efficient lighting products; 4. [FHREABRERRENBBER
5.  Increase the awareness of employees on energy saving 5. SR EEETREER
by training.
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to the
in 2023
increased as compared to that of 2022. Intensity amount per

Use of resources like electricity is proportional

production level. Therefore, electricity usage
each tonne of product in 2023 decreased as compared to that

of 2022.

Water source

The water source that is fit for purpose of the Company and
is the running water supplied by the government which
guarantees reliable quality and supply. There has been no
suspension of water supply.

Water was consumed mainly for office general use,
hydrostatic pressure test and ultrasonic tests.

Measures to enhance water efficiency:

1. Reuse water for production;

2. Use of water-saving taps and sanitary wares with
sensor;

3. Increase awareness of employees on water saving by
training.

Water consumption efficiency was improved. Total water
consumption in 2023 was similar to that of 2022.

Package material
The Group uses packing rope, packing tape and dunnage for
packaging final products.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

In an aim to minimize surplus materials, the Group would
estimate the materials needed for production prior to
procurement. In addition, the Group puts in place a scrap
metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted steel produced

in our production process to recycling companies.
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A.4 Climate Change

Extreme weather events are becoming more frequent and
severe and tackling climate change has become a global
consensus. The Group has realized that climate change will
affect its business operations. The Group regularly reviews
global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which
may have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are
two major categories of climate-related risks, physical and
transition risks. Climate change can pose threats to the
Group, such as business disruption, physical damage and rise
in operational costs due to severe and extreme weather
events. The Group has insurance policies in place to mitigate
such risks.

SOCIAL
Employment
The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace
practice free from discrimination and providing equal
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour,
sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality,
race for selection, hiring,

training, compensation and

promotion.
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The Group has complied with the all the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including but not
limited to:

. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (/& A
RHEFIB & EE);

. Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of China (&
EARKMBILE S RE);

. Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEMEREZE);

. Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap.485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our employment contract specified the terms, including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information
of policies on compensation and dismissal, employment
benefits, rights on termination, business conduct and leave
benefits.

In relation to 2023, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
in to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
that have a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 875 (2022: 824) RZEBZ=F+-_A=+—H AKEEH#FET
employees. The demographics of the Group’s workforce was 8758 (ZE 4 : 824%) - AEEHME LD
as follows: BRI

By gender
* male
» female

By age group
+ 20-30
+ 31-40
* 41-50
+ 51-60
* 61 or above

By category

« office management members

» production operation

By geographical location
+ PRC
* Hong Kong

The following table shows the employee turnover rate by

gender and age group:

By gender
* male
» female

By age group
+ 20-30
+ 31-40
* 41-50
+ 51-60
* 61 or above

By geographical location

+ PRC
* Hong Kong

T SEEEHE

BRI
. Hi

- X

REEAER
+ 20%305%
© 31Z2405%
© 41Z2505%
+ 51%2605%
« Bk L

28 Wl
< WA

it &
. PERL
- BB

RIER|
. FHi

- T

BRFHR AR
« 20E305%
« 31E405%
o 41E505%
+ 51ZE605%
o B1BRIA L

R @
« PERL
- BB

Percentage of
each group

to total
employment
BHEBMGEANEH
Aot

77%
23%

13%
36%
32%
17%

2%

35%
65%

RIS R FiRAR B D88 TiRAX

Turnover rate

il 3

77%
23%

36%
30%
26%
8%
0%

100%
0%
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B.2 Health and Safety B2 #EHEZZE

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations and
adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, ensure
health and safety of our employees, and promote sustainable
development. Our target is to achieve zero accidents, zero
injuries and zero losses in order to meet the international
HSE management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.

Occupational Safety

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and is
responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on
operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk
management, including the “Control procedures of the new,
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification
and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff
reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational
safety and regularly provides training for staff. In 2023, the
Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions bases
for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness and
emergency response, and held hazards identification
programs and assemblies of risk management activities.
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B.3

—ZE=

Work-related injuries and fatalities of the Group for last three

years:

Work-related

injuries

(individual)

ITHEAY

Year E4 (A)
2021 TE -

2022 —F-—
2023 —E=F 6

Development and Training

Staff Development and Training

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice board,
the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable
working environment among various departments and teams.
We offer our employees access to learning and
understanding about the Group, so that each employee and
contractors of the Group or visitors can recognize their
responsibilities and obligations in the aspect of improving the
environment and enhancing occupational health and safety
performance. We make great efforts on improving the
environment and occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards
environment and occupational health and safety. This policy is
available for review by employees at any time. In the year,
the Group further improved site management standards,
achieved the goal of dedicated management, and further
promoted the 6S management model in the Company. Project
meetings were kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai
and Lianyungang.

SEFEERE

E=FAEEATHECTIER:

Work-related Working
fatalities Proportion days lost
(individual) (%) (day)
EIRTAH ke BAIEAH
(N) (%) (XR)
0.01 85
0 0.01 292
0 0.01 551
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The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses are provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.

The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.

To reinforce the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for
its employees every year, including basketball and table
tennis contests and a game of tug-of-war, etc. In addition, we
have provided activities that are of educational significance
and served to enhance the work performance of our
employees, including the “Business Oral English”, “Training
and Assembly for Fire”, “Sales Training”, “Joint Training and
Team Building Program for Financial Department”, and
“Annual Sales Meeting”, etc. The Zhuhai Company of the
Group also held the third quarter award ceremony of “Set an
example around you and consolidate the strength of the
Company”. The Company honored the advanced teams and
individuals emerging from various functions with great
ceremony, and called on all employees to learn from such
advanced teams and individuals. The Zhuhai Company also
organized a warm spring trip for the 8th March Women’s
Day.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities. Various events were held,
including the second “We Are Family « PCK” friendly wall
donation, the hike of female employees for the 8th March
International Women’s Day, the Lantern Festival Fair jointly
held by the Lianyungang base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe and
the Community Workstation of the Neighborhood Center of
Xuwei New Area, and the employee-oriented “1st May Caring
Show” organized by the Artistic Association of Zhuhai Trade
Union.
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B.4

B.5

—ZE=

Performance of professional trainings

By gender

t: g zF-ba)
Male
Item B=hl 51
Percentage ANk 97%
Average training hours 395531/ B 9

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FZEARHKFEILE))%)), Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China ((fF#E A RLMELFHE
[@)%)), the Law of the PRC on Prohibition of Using Child
Labour* ((ZI-#FAEZE T E)) and other relevant laws. The
Group has specified staff recruitment procedures which avoid
the recruitment of child labour and ensure the fulfiiment of
entry requirements by recruited staff through examining their
identification card and certificate. The Company is required to
enter into written labour contracts with employees upon their
entry. There is no forced labour within the Group. The Group
has not employed any staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of the
PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The Group
keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is based
on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship with
them. The Group also consider factors such as compliance
with environmental

requirements in our supplier vendor

assessment, selection and evaluation process.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has 1,673
suppliers which are located in the PRC.

SEFEERE

Female

g3

3%

31

B.4

B.5

XL *EH

By employment type
RERERES
Middle-level
management
PREERE

Senior
management
EREEE

Employee
&E8
3%

9% 88%
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The Group has adopt the following procedures to select and
evaluates suppliers:

their
including but not

1. Evaluating product quality and company
limited to the

environment, health and safety awareness;

background

2. Comparing historical level and test results of products;
3. Evaluating the standards of their products;
4. Evaluating their production capacity, delivery time and

stability, reputation, cost and services;

5. Inspecting the sample of purchased products fulfilling the
requirements;

6. Checking the products fulfilling the specific requirements
under the laws and regulations or supply contracts.

Product Responsibility

Product quality

With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number of
international standards. We are also the only domestic
welded steel pipe manufacturer being granted five honors,
namely the “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical

Products”, “High and New Technology

Enterprise”, “Province-recognised Enterprise Technology

Center’, and “National Key New Products” and hosts a

“Academician Workstation”. We are the main drafter of the
national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in China.
Meanwhile, with the setting up of the “Post-doctoral Research
Station” and “Academician Workstation”, the Company strives
to further enhance its product quality and extend the

application of its products.
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Quality assurance process

The Group strictly upholds the 1SO9001 quality management
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at
each production process stage in accordance with the highest
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening test.
Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each
product meets customer requirements. We have built a
testing center in compliance with the national standards and
the center has been recognised by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The
Group’s testing center is equipped with a wide variety of
laboratory equipment, including universal materials testing
machine, low temperature impact material testing machine,
drop weight tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced
cracking (HIC) testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking
(SSC), crack tip opening displacement (CTOD) test,
computer-controlled chemical composition vacuum direct
reading spectrometer and microscope. Achieving six
standards, our measuring chamber has passed through the
1ISO10012: 2003 AAA measurement management system
certification. This proves that our measuring instruments are
of high qualification and effectiveness. The Group’s testing
centre has passed the “National safety quality
standardisation” and obtained the “TUV SUD Metal Materials
Laboratory Accreditation Certificate”. Our products, an
unfailing symbol of quality, are blessed with unparalleled
reputation in the international market under the “PCK” brand.

In 2023, return of products sold or delivered due to safety
and health reasons was zero. The Group would repair the
products to customers if there are problems.
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The Group put emphasis on product quality and customer
satisfaction. The Group will handle any product complaints
immediately. Our staff will identify, evaluate and record every
product complaint and reply and address the issues as soon
as possible. In 2023, the Group did not receive any product
complaints.

Intellectual property rights

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in
research and development, holding 120 patents (including 41
invention patents). The Group treasures its intellectual
property rights. To protect our proprietary rights, the Group
rely on the applicable patent and trademark laws, laws
relating to protection of other intellectual property rights, and
impose confidentiality obligations on our employees. The
Group also protects our know-how by requiring our
employees, in particular, the technical and mechanical
personnel, to enter into confidentiality and non-competition
undertakings with the Group. In addition, in order to improve
the Company’s intellectual property protection system,
strengthen the company’s core competitiveness, promote
technological innovation, promote technological progress,
encourage employees to invent and create, and increase
employees’ enthusiasm for applying for independent
intellectual property rights, the Group rewards employees for
independent research and development on intellectual
property rights.

Consumer data protection

The Group respects the values and rights of the customers’
information assets, and in the process of providing our
customers with products, we strictly comply with the
customers’ information security management systems and
standards. The Group has classified the business-related
information as highly confidential and requires employees not
to disclose confidential information to third parties to ensure
that the data will not be leaked. The Group has also
formulated the rules and regulations in relation to data
protection in the employee handbook for employees to
perform their duties.
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B.7

B.8

—ZE=

Anti-corruption

The operation of various departments of the Group is in
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We have
established a whistle blowing policy, which enables our
employees to express their views to the management
anonymously. The Group conducts stringent management on
procurement and tender process. Various approval on
contract review and tender process is adopted, reviewed and
monitored. In addition, the Group has formulated the “Good
Professional Conduct” policy on conflict of interests, which are
included in the employee handbook for employees to perform
their duties with the highest level of integrity and professional
attitude. All employees are not allowed to engage in any
activities that conflict with the interests of the Group.
Employees must report any activities and situations that may
lead to conflict of interest to the Group. Relevant activities
can only be carried out with the consent of the Group.
Employees failing to report potential conflicts of interests may
be subject to disciplinary actions. In 2023, the Group did not
encounter any corruption procedures or cases.

Community Investment

Contribution to the Community

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. With the organisation of a
couple of educational, sports, cultural and charitable activities,
thus
enhancing foreign interest in Guangzhou and fostering urban

we promoted the exuberance of Guangzhou City,

development. These activities included:

. Sponsoring Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Table Tennis Contest

. Sponsoring Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go
Team Championships

. Sponsoring “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd
Dragon Boats Championships

. Sponsoring the 9th Table Tennis Competition of
“Mayor’s Cup” of Guangzhou
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. Exclusively supporting the 2nd National Calligraphy
Poster Exhibition and Invited Exhibition, to promote the
art of calligraphy and inherit national cultures.

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. We participated in:

. Supporting the events related to Chinese Bonsai Art
organized by the Flower Bonsai Society of China

. Supporting the events organized by Baiyue Art
Association of Panyu District

. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award
by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”

The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively

participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,

including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs

104 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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. Participating in the poverty alleviation activities organized . S2NEMT Tl - M mad - &L
by Guangzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce, P S EAMNEEEY

Guangzhou Women’s Federation, Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs and District
Federation of Industry and Commerce

. Participating in the poverty alleviation projects organized . 2NMEREFELZEESE MEBEK
by Guangdong Women And Children’s Foundation, rHEeEEHEAKFARNKEIER

Guangzhou Women’s Federation and Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund EFEES

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named RZE—=FNA AEERIEBRIHKIMES
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing BAERAR — FTRESINEEES  BEHD
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of BHEBB RN ZREETFRE  URBEERS
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for 95K B o

seeking job.
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'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M B S

CCTH CPA LIMITED
FIERE & EERAF

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas

Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu Kong
Gas Steel
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the

Petroleum and Natural Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Group”) set out on pages 117 to 258, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements,

including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
the disclosure

been properly prepared in compliance with

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under
the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

those standards are further described in
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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B M B S

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB845,744,000 as at 31 December 2023. The
above events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists which may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. As set out in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have implemented a number of plans and measures to improve the
Group’s liquidity and consider that the Group will have sufficient
funds to meet its financial obligations for at least the next twelve
months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

T =FFERE

FRGRACEZEXRTRERE

HARBIEFAVMBRRMIE21 - EPBET X
ER_E_=F+-_A=+—"HORPEEFEHRA
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B M B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

ERIFEYFEZ MO

Refer to note 17 and the material accounting policies in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

FLHGEAMBERRI AT MM E24FH 2 ERGRTHUR

The carrying amount of completed properties held for sale
was approximately RMB2,022,678,000 as at 31 December
2023, represented 31.5% of total assets.
RZBZZF+_RA=+—H BRGEVENROBENS
AR #2,022,678,0007T - HHE NEEER3I1.5% °

These completed properties held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Determination of net
realisable value involved key judgements and estimates
made by management by reference to the estimated
selling prices provided by an independent professional
valuer.

ZEER TS M EIR AR E AR R FERE P HRIEE IR
EEAUZRFEIRERESEB LR EMEMBHRNME
85 B A8 T VE B 3 2 2B R (45T -

We have identified the write-down of the completed
properties held for sale as a key audit matter due to the
magnitude of the properties and the management
judgments involved in the estimation of the net realisable
value.

SRR EWEMBBN AHEREZEE  RAAYE
YEE N LA PSR FEY R EIEE HIE -

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FAREZEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEERARERSEE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
EEHEDWATA TR 7 LARRR I 78

Obtained an understanding of the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls around
the property development cycle with particular focus on
controls over cost budgeting and periodic review, sources
of data and calculation of cost and net realisable value;

THRYEERBATENDEE 2R RITEREER
)d( %%JE%TW WN‘E%&E,HM?EH‘ » BUE R A R KA

""""" SMFEZE

Evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the management for the
estimation of selling prices of the properties;
ERMEEBAFAEERBRZENB L (EMNERE
BN REEM

Assessed the methodologies used by the management and
external valuer for the estimation of the net realisable value
of the properties;

AHEEEE RMNEMERM AT MENERFEMAZTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEZEHR

Write-down of completed properties held for sale (Continued)

ERIFEYFEZ M (E)

Impairment non-financial assets

T HEEZHE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the net
assets of the Group was more than its market
capitalisation, that was an indication that an asset may be
impaired. The impairment assessment was performed to
ensure that the Group’s assets are not carried at more
than their recoverable amount.
RZB_=F+-A=+—H" EKEQF@@Z$EEH
RETE BABEARSHRBAETR  #ITREN G
RMER Exl§3$@utﬂHT@W$$ZF@W$

TEFFERE

FAREZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNTEEBRELEE

. Compared the carrying values of properties for the forecast
of future sales, on a sample basis, to the market prices of
the properties with comparable locations and conditions,
where applicable; and

. FHEERLLR BB ERREETERN T S 2 REE R E &K
AAALR s WEsTEGER) &

. Checked the reasonableness and calculation of the net
realisable value of the properties prepared by the
management.

. BEEEBMRENEANERFELAEENGE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:

FECWITATIZ 7 AR L R

. Reviewed the management’'s assessment on the
recoverability of the assets and the reasonableness of the
judgements and estimates used by the management in the
value in use calculations made by the independent valuer;

. FEHEEBHZSEENARLOMEMNTE  ANEERELES
MEEMETOEREEAEPRERANHE RATHEIE
/|$ :

. Discussed the indication of possible impairment with the
management and, where such indication were identified by
the management, assessed the impairment testing
performed by the management;

. HEREMNmAEERNAETR  NEEBEREHIR
AHEEREETARENH

. Tested the cash flows projections on whether they were
agreed to the budgets approved by the directors of the
Company and compared with actual results available up to
the report date;

¢ :EUﬁiﬁi\//|L§$E EU 73—5;53 ﬁ@?ﬁ%ﬁt}ﬁg\]%ﬁ%_ﬁ 2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

HeHEEZRE (F)

Management estimated the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating unit of steel pipes using the value in use
model. The estimated value in use was dependent on
management’s determination on the Group’s future events
and its measures to improve its efficiency of cash flow
management, macroeconomic assumptions about future
demands of steel pipe products, the discount rate and
exchange rates as well as the production levels and
operating costs. These estimates were particularly
significant due to the uncertain economic outlook, product
price volatility, forecasted future production and market
demand. The outcome of impairment assessment can vary
significantly when different assumptions are applied.
ERERACAEERE MG HENIRSESBEMAF LK

SR MFFRAEEIAREEEY ESERKREHRK
= /\EE%//ILEVEQ}%/\KTZ? M BRAMEERRRERZE
BB RR - MR RERARAEEKT EERRZRE -
HREER R  EmBHRKS  HMARKREEETSERD
WE ZERFLRERZ - BEMGZERTESEERAT
R MEREEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Material
accounting policies” and note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” to the consolidated financial
statements.

ERBRRIANGAMB|MEAMT242 [E RS BUR | RH
afszrigauﬁur‘@ﬁ&mﬂ

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FAREZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEERARERSEE

. Challenged the appropriateness of the management
judgements and estimates used in the cash flows
projections, including the sales growth rates and gross
profit margins;

. HReREFAPCEANEEEHE RMEHESEREE
5 BREFEEERILENE

. Challenged the discount rates adopted in the value in use
calculations by reviewing its basis of calculations and
comparing the input data to market sources;

. WIBE AT EEE R B A SRR T IS AR R E 5E A
BEERHRD E@Tﬁﬁ% ;

. Assessed the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and checked on
sample basis, the accuracy and the relevance of the input
data adopted in management’s value in use calculations;
and

. FHEATERMETERERERROBEE N XA iR
BEREECABERRAE A BR LRI R AAENT
K

. Assessed the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
Group’s financial statements.

. At ERBEBMEHREREBRESSRD
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade
receivables of gross carrying amount of approximately
RMB371,628,000, of which impairment allowance of
approximately RMB83,159,000 was provided.
RZZ_=F+-A=+—H  BE5EEEZEIEUEHE
H#AELHARE371,628,0007T - HAF 4 A K#83,159,0007T
EFHRERE -

The calculation of the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for
trade receivables, including the assessment of the
historical observed default rates and forecast economic
conditions involves significant management judgements
and estimates.

SHESRUERCEREEEE ((EREEEERD (82
HBEHERINNENERIBARLEIRR) B RERNER
[ ) 8 R A5t -

Specific factors which management would consider include
the ageing of the balances, past collection history and
other available information related to the forecast economic
conditions. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
EREEENERBARBEARKRR  BEEKGCHEURE
SHHEMEBRAILEGRENESN -EREERE 2HY
RIE BRI B IR BB EU -

—Bo=EEERE

HEREBEXEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEERARERSEE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
ZEBITA TR T AR IR -

Reviewed and assessed the application of the Group’s policy
for calculating the ECL;
FHH RN BEEEEEREESBERNER

Evaluated techniques and methodology adopted by the
management in the ECL model against the requirements of
IFRS 9;

RIEER I B RELRFIRNMATE  FAEEEREREE
B R AE B AR R A B BT R 0%

Assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating whether
the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;

FHEEEBHERERBAEGNEGEL HEEREEEER
RIZEE @A H E R B3R HUE 28 QO BUR M ER T -
B BEERRRRERE B GRE RATEIEERETHE
ENHEE UTREXAMBFELENERER  HHEER
FREESESEEEEBROOTR
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'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BERFELEE @
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRELEE EENERNMMEERREERSE

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

E SN RN Z B E (&)

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Material .
accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” and note 19 “Trade and bills
receivables” to the consolidated financial statements.
BARBENGEMBRERMT242 TERGFECR] - Wi
3B HE KGRI TE192 [E 5 YRR K ek
E3E A

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

112 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

Inquired management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborated explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding ongoing
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

MEEESHANFEEEERHINERNE HRBRRNBER -
WA HEREEECRENME  JINREE S8 T RE
EPHBEXBRER BREEPNELREELELHEAR
HEFHEAMEA &

Checked, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlement to bank
receipts.
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B M B S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

T SEEEHE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

RN ERGEMBERRARENER

BEEFNER  SHEAMBRRBEBRES T FERRK
FFEREERME R EM EAERPOLRGEERE - X
HABEESERZBGRRAMELER 2RBMHRE - &
HER BT (EREBE) WME  BRULZIAREREE
EH - BEETERARENATAEMEMALE £
FAREEMEE - SRRBESKFORE - BTEER
EREBBMERETOEZBEERFENERER
PR - $ARRFRAM T A B RFF SR EE AR 512 - IR A IETAH
SRR E R K EAERAEEERAMBREERE
FYEH BV R TE - RIB BRR S R BUR AT AR (FE K o

ERBERBBRERETEZNBESD
A RETHEEEREE - HEN:

. BB AT R R SR AR T B BUAR A M S R
FRERERRAHERE - R RRTEZERF
NEHZERE  UEBGREMEENERER
HOERESERMER - ARMFFA S NS
RoE - ERER ERRL EERAE
22 b HIREEE IR R MEFM G R B AR
PR S #) L o B R 8 AR 1T 28 B BB K AR R A L

2o e —

BF - EENLEY SREAMEGNERME

. THRRERZABOABES - AREFTEENEZ
BRER -

. FEEEMRAEHBRENEE N ML EFHE
SRR EEREENN AR -

Annual Report 2023



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3 B BLAT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF BB EBEZGSUBBRRARENSE @)
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the . %’T%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ & @‘M@?Jrﬁﬁ%g\]”‘\%’l‘if’ﬁﬁjﬁi
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit CWARBFIEHNEZER  RERESHRERS
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 1¢EX’\ NBEBNERTEEE Mgy &%
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt ERELENEIRKEARE NWREFREA
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we GHEEBRTHEEMN - BB N ELIZEAIRE PR
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to EEREEIGEVBRERPHOMEERELER
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related TE’“E@EZE%%HTE AlEZALAFERE
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such EROZEMME EENERSEREEZH
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our B =R 5 Eiﬁﬁﬁﬂf&ﬂ@%@%ﬁ i RIREMH
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to HERFEEES BEXETRESRELE -

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the . HEGEVBREOBEEINRAIN  SERA
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, BREREER  UREBEMBHRERES AN
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent RERAEREZ 5 M EIE o

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the . B OEEHEERBAEBTHNTHBERERR
financial information of the entities or business activities o EENEZRE Mﬁ,m/\ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ’%?‘%ﬁ
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated HR-BEAEKEE EBERATEEEZ -
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, HEZERAERIEE -

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, EEHER %L;ﬁrﬂ%*ﬁ%ﬁl REZHE  EX
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit %*Z?"ﬁ—r%lﬁ BiEE A% AR B B L A B A
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in H) 1] & KERPG o

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement EENNEREERERIER HHREFEFEEEE
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding VIERARBEENR  WERESEBRAESIEMERA
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and SRETEBIUENBEARNLEMER - R (HEHR) EH
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our BUBREEWTTEN S FTER M #iEE o

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M B S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
in our

not be communicated report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

Ng Kam Fai
Practising Certificate Number: P06573

Unit 1510-1517,15/F., Tower 2

Kowloon Commerce Centre

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

REMRER G MBRRAZENET @
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
REVENUE A 5 2,650,852 2,362,015
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARTE AR AN (2,096,642) (1,891,392)
Gross profit EF 554,210 470,623
Other income and gains E A A K Uz 5 15,979 238,743
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERAXT (65,500) (55,062)
Administrative expenses THEHR (270,059) (245,826)
Exchange gain, net EH Wz - FRE 15,106 16,416
Other expenses EEMR 6 (187,899) (209,786)
Fair value loss on investment properties REWMEZ XN HEER 7 (2,000) (8,000)
Finance costs BB A A 8 (94,548) (44,643)
Gain on disposal of investment in a joint HER—MBEERRZEEZ e
venture 32 73,790 —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B Al 0% R 7 39,079 162,465
Income tax credit TS fiiK & 11 144,699 569
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, KRR EEAEBLEEAFE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF i Fl
THE COMPANY 183,778 163,034
EARNINGS PER SHARE KA EEAELEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 27
THE COMPANY
RMB RMB
AR®TT AREETT
— Basic and diluted — BERREE 12 0.18 0.16
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-:Eé:ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Y e ERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, AAREEAELTFEERF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 183,778 163,034
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2EER
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified X742 HjfE] ] £ & #7748 = 18 25 4
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEmEEEE -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEIINEEBEANER Z8
operations (40,345) (68,152)
Net other comprehensive loss that REEDETREFSBEEZEEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hitt2HEBFERE
in subsequent periods (40,345) (68,152)
Other comprehensive income that will not RGBT NG T EH 74 E 1825
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EmeE Kz -
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of the BRERRAWBREZIEEEED
Company'’s financial statements into the MEHEHE
presentation currency 1,703 10,541
Net other comprehensive income that REBEHBABTENR2EZREN
will not be reclassified to profit or loss Htt2EKEFEHE
in subsequent periods 1,703 10,541
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR REENBRHBAREMCEZEER
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (38,642) (57,611)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR RABREEABEEAFEEZERSE
THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF s
THE COMPANY 145,136 105,423
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE PR R &R

As at 31 December 2023 K- -=F+-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E== T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ET ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KB 13 1,839,427 1,769,994
Investment properties wEYE 14 360,000 362,000
Right-of-use assets FRHEEE 15 631,830 646,013
Long term prepayments and deposits RHENRIERES 16 61,550 72,406
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 2,892,807 2,850,413
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Completed properties held for sale ERFEYE 17 2,022,678 2,212,824
Inventories T 18 583,474 402,694
Trade and bills receivables H 5 REWER R E R EE 19 311,953 378,856
Prepayments, other receivables and other TEfRTFRIE - B FE M FRIE &
assets HM&EE 20 572,588 679,102
Pledged and restricted bank balances B N2 R EIR1T 8 21 5,730 14,920
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkBEEEY 21 32,191 16,128
3,528,614 3,704,524
Non-current asset classified as held for sale HDEAFELEZIERSEE 32 — —
Total current assets mEEEBE 3,528,614 3,704,524
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and bills payables B RENERRENZER 22 942,593 636,069
Other payables and accruals HEibENRIERETER 23 601,614 838,326
Contract liabilities AEHaE 24 742,784 704,255
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREHFLRE 25 61,678 85,330
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings EBRTREMEER 26 1,616,860 880,409
Due to a director BN EERIE 36 64,353 390,195
Tax payable FET IR 294,512 43,823
Provision B 27 49,964 49,283
Total current liabilities BB ERRE 4,374,358 3,627,690
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS RE(BE) EEFHE (845,744) 76,834
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABER
LIABILITIES 2,047,063 2,927,247

T SEEEHE
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::CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NI AU %

As at 31 December 2023 K- -=F+-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —_E-
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hr=g AR® TR ARBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREMEE 26 153,816 810,239
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAA G 28 183,770 294,289
Long-term tax payable RAEAFENBIIR 11 486,614 789,187
Government grants I8 478 B 29 146,788 102,593
Total non-current liabilities FMBE BB 970,988 1,996,308
Net assets BEFE 1,076,075 930,939
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of RATEBEAEGEER
the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 88,856 88,856
Reserves (ke 31 987,219 842,083
Total equity B R 1,076,075 930,939

CHEN CHANG CHEN ZHAO NIAN
C¥=] BRJK F
Director Director
BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AR AR NESE
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share revaluation surplus* reserve* fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 30)  premium* reserve®  (note (a)  (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve* Total
BRIRA EE RAER ArRf EELARE Ex
(W30  RGEE*  EfEEE*  (WE@)  (K=Ee)  (HEc) B2HER  RBRE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR%Tn ARMTR ARBTRZ AR%Tr ARMTR ARETRT AR%T:n
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=5-f-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185 (1,077,741) (12,642) 930,939
Profit for the year KEERH = = = - - - 183,778 - 183,778
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEH{2ENE
Exchange differences on translation of RENESBELNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (40,345) (40,345)
Exchange differences on translation RERRTFHRBRZINEH
of the Company’s financial statements EEMEREE
into the presentation currency = = = = = = = 1,703 1,703
Total comprehensive income/(losses) rEEZENE/(BR) 28
for the year = = = = = = 183,778 (38,642) 145,136
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve upon ~ HIEBVENER  BRAEE
the sales of relevant properties EhfE = = = = = = = = =
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=1-A 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274,185 (893,963) (51,284) 1,076,075
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREENES
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share  revaluation surplus* reserve’ fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 30) premium* reserve™ (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve” Total
BEARE EE  EREH® EXRE EELRES Ex
(Wixs0)  RipgEr  BREEE* (@)  (BEe) (e 2HEE RBEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETL ARETT AR%TR
At 1 January 2022 RZEZ-§-f-A 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274,185 (1,240,775) 44,969 825,516
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - 163,034 - 163,034
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEHE2 AN
Exchange differences on translation of RENEEBELNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - = - (68,152) (68,152)
Exchange differences on translation RERRRGBRRRZINEY
of the Company’s financial statements EENEREE
into the presentation currency - - - - - - - 10,541 10,541
Total comprehensive income/(losses) REERERS/(BR) 88
for the year - - - - - - 163,034 (57,611) 105,423
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZF+ZA=1-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185 (1,077,741) (12,642) 930,939

T SEEEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

Notes:

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair
value.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
approximately RMB987,219,000 (2022: RMB842,083,000)
consolidated statement of financial position.

in the

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation before the Company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2010, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Capital reserve represents the excess capital paid over the registered
capital of Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. by Lessonstart
Enterprises Limited.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax
(after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund.
When the balance of an entity’'s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital. However, such balance of the
statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of

the registered capital after such usage.

122 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

B GE -

(c)

E?(:):ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ERYMEARGEEERRAFEINRNIREDENE
SEREEMGES -

ZERERARESEAVBANRPEAREBOARYE
987,219,000 (ZZE = — 4 : AR¥842,083,0007T) °

AEENEHRRERARANR_ZE—SFEFBBAR
ZMERRAE ([BRAM]) LAl RIFEESHEMKE
M8 A RO R EEEAR B ETIMEAIRR M E
ERER -

ERRHEREANZESBEERARAXNNERABEER
WITHMEBRARAEMERN SR -

REBEHEARKMBE ([HE]) RADE - ARBE R B
MM BEAR  ARRREFEEEF M RHEBE
FENIMEERR M10%BNEERAES - E—EE
BOATEDEREDEZMERNS0%E  AIEEESR
BERIOEELNES  EZERARSTANKHBESFE
IR RIBMEMER - AW - FEERATES AR Lt
RERARNGE  KREREARFEMELRN25% -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-= T F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHMERESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R %5 B v A 39,079 162,465
Adjustments for: BTN FIBFE
Bank interest income |ITHR B HA 5 (180) (3,741)
Subsidy income from the PRC P B BT B0 8 BE U A
government 5 (6,663) (231,636)
Finance costs & B AR 8 94,548 44,643
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREETE
equipment 13 25,881 61,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHESENE 15 15,656 14,431
Gain on disposal of investment in a joint HER—HEERRZEREZ
venture Iz (73,790) —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERREZ
equipment, net e - FEE (1,101) (1,752)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries EEr L= I/ ol oy (17) —
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - WE R B 2 225
Write-down of inventories to net realisable WO 7 & = A 30 )58
value 6 3,812 —
Fair value loss on investment properties BEWE s AT ERE 14 2,000 8,000
Impairment of trade receivables, net B S5 RWEFRE 58 19 66,715 24,225
Impairment of other receivables H b JE WG IERUE 20 11,814 2,184
177,756 80,476
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & OgEm, wWd (184,593) 14,191
Decrease in properties under development ERBPYERD — 2,255,293
Decrease/(increase) in completed properties &S ER D (€ N)
held for sale 190,146 (1,827,621)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 MR R e R R 188 100,025
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables  JB{JZRIE + i i U 3078 & E A
and other assets BERD 105,556 284,904
Decrease in pledged and restricted bank BRI R PR B SR 1T 45 8RR
balances 9,190 234,799
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills EIORNERMENZE
payables & CRd) 306,524 (653,566)
Decrease in contract liabilities, other payables & #) & {& + H & {28 & =t
and accruals BRR D (169,921) (353,052)
Increase in provision B AE S N 681 18,795
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::CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

GERERER

FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E2-= T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 435,527 154,244
Interest received 2 U FE 180 3,741
Interest paid BEARFILE (52) (57)
Corporate income tax paid B ERER (146) (335)
Land appreciation tax paid BT LA (4,442) (3,525)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMBHRESRE
=2} 431,067 154,068
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMBHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE WELKZHEEER
equipment (96,260) (13,312)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  WMEMEZEEEB TS
plant and equipment FRIAE 2,045 57,722
Proceeds from disposal of items of right-of- H&EFHEEEHER EHAE
use assets — 150,312
Proceeds from disposal of investment in a HE—EEERARIRERMBNIE
joint venture 32 34,675 —
Receipt in advance from disposal of non- HESEARBEHE ZIERDEE
current asset classified as held for sale B R IE — 41,378
Refund of capital injection from a potential BEREENTERK
investor = (50,967)
Receipt of government grants WS B AT 6 B 29 50,858 4,022
Land resumption costs paid LA o b U R A AR — (150,986)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing RETE (FiA) FBRELRE
activities FEE (8,682) 38,169
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHRERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings HIERITEREEMER 658,250 523,585
Repayment of bank loans and other EERITERREMER
borrowings (578,561) (554,814)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITESMERIA = 6,013
Repayment of bonds and notes BEEHFLER (24,723) (19,450)
Interest paid BEARFILE (94,496) (44,586)
Decrease in an amount due to a director JERTE FFIAR D (325,842) (58,916)
Principal portion of lease payments MENKzZEKEES (661) (934)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEZEFFAREHRETHE (366,033) (149,102)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GMEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET AREET T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBSEEYEMERE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 56,352 43,135
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net #SMER R H) v 22 %E (40,289) (47,595)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  F#H & NESEEY
year 16,128 20,588
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAGLEEEED 32,191 16,128

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HRERBEESZEBYEHIMN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHER 21 32,191 16,128
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-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services; and

. property development and investment.
In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the

ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits
Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

ARER

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited
(“Lessonstart”)

MEEEEARAR(HEE])

Lucknow Consultants Limited
(“Lucknow”)

Lucknow Consultants Limited
(lLucknow )

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
ML
U EE 30k

British Virgin Islands

RBRELES

British Virgin Islands

REBRIES

126 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

Particulars of issued

and paid-up capital
ERITR
BERENFE

300 shares of
US$1 each

300%
BREE1ETRG

10 shares of

US$1 each

10A%
SREE1ETRO

RAIREBER
WIABRARAREEZRER AR (ARE]) R
“EEN\F-ANBRERSHSENE2ER
ADE (—NR—FFEIFED - Kire RIEFT) H
FeHedMXIREREHNERIF - AQF
ST 34 == B2 B9 b 3k A Cricket  Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARmREKBAR (SR AEE])
TEBEE

TEREMN

. SUERHEIRZINE RIEHARRRIERT ;
K

. MEBERIIRE -

EERE ARAIMERATRERIERAFA
Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam])

RE R X B BT -

ARNBLARZER
ARBEEMBRB ZFEBENAT :

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company  Principal activities
ERF
FEERERS L
Direct Indirect
B %
% %

EX-3 34

100 — Investment holding

100 — REER

— 100 Investment holding

— 100 HEZEK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFIAREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

BRI E 2B 2 EF (@)
ARBEEMBRBAZFBENAT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of

registration Particulars of issued equity attributable

Company name and business and paid-up capital to the Company  Principal activities

ML BRTR N
DAL AR R i B BRRANFEE BEREESL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Crown Central Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares — 100 Trading of steel pipes
(“Crown Central”) of HK$1 each
KPEERRAR (K] N 1,000A% — 100 HMEES
BREEVETEER
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary — 100 Investment holding and
Ltd. (“CKSPG") shares of HK$1 each trading of steel pipes
KIMESERRAA Bk 100,000 - 100 REZREEEES
(IHIMEER] BREEVETEBRR
Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., The PRC/ HK$1,957,070,700 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Ltd. (“PCKSP”) Mainland China welded steel pipes
EBWIMERRAR HEL R E R, 1,957,070,7007% 7t — 100 BERHERENE
([HEBWIRE])
Guangzhou Pearl River Petrol- The PRC/ RMB104,870,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Fittings Co., Ltd. Mainland China petrol fittings
BINZHKARLENBRAF FEL R E A, AR #104,870,0007T — 100 HERHEQLEN
Guangzhou Pearl River OCTG The PRC/ RMB18,860,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. Mainland China oil country tubular
goods
BNEHARHEEERAF HEL T E A AR #18,860,0007T — 100 BERHERMEN
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ RMB8,980,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Petroleum Steel Pipe Coating Mainland China lining services
Co., Ltd.
BHNEHRARARENRERART FE/ HEAN AR #8,980,0007T — 100 H0E B R NE 2 B IR TS
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B R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFIAREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) AR B QT Z2E R (8)
ARREEWBATZFBET « (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of

Company name

incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML BRTR NN
NGRS EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %

Guangzhou Zhenzhuhe The PRC/ HK$50,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Petroleum Steel Tubes Mainland China welded steel pipes
Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Guangzhou Pearl River
Petroleum Steel Pipe Co.,

Ltd.) ("GZPST")

BMAREXEBEERAR B +E PEAL 50,000,0005% 7T — 100 ZERHERENE
BMZ A REE AR AR
(TEMERME ]

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB1,110,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. Mainland China welded steel pipes
(“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”)

BERWIHNE EEB)AR EL B R AR #1,110,000,0007T — 100 HERHEREHNE
A ([EBHIME
(#EEHE)D

Guangzhou Panyu Chu Kong The PRC/ RMB20,600,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Hualong Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China lining services
Anti-Corrosion Co., Ltd.

BINTEBRIERA MM HEL R E A, AR #20,600,0007T — 100 SHEDERARZERS
EVBER AT

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$1,088,402,072 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP Mainland China welded steel pipes
(Zhuhai)”)

BEBWINE K8 ERAT HEL R E A, 1,088,402,072/5 7T — 100 BERHERENE

([HRHIME KE)])
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B R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFIAREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

BRI E 2B 2 EF (@)
ARBEEMBRBAZFBENAT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued

and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML ERITR PN
DREH AR E R BRERAHFE BiERERSLE FEXH
Direct Indirect
HE Gik:3
% %

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy The PRC/ RMB470,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Equipment Technology Co., Mainland China steel pipe equipment
Ltd. (“Kaidi”) and metallurgy

equipment

BEBYFEINBEARAA RE R E A AR #470,000,0007C — 100 ZERHEMERELA
(T8l7%5 1) ERE

Lianyungang Pearl River Petrol- The PRC/ HK$303,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Fittings Co., Ltd. (“LYG Petrol- Mainland China tubular piles
Fittings”)

EERDRAOLEHARAR  HE/PEAG 303,000,000/% 7 — 100 RERHEEN
(MEEEALER]D

Lianyungang Zhugang Coating The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China lining service
(“LYG Zhugang Coating”)

EEERAMBRETRAERAR HE/ PEA AR #10,000,0007T — 100 MEDERAERERE
(TEEHHRMHE)

Guangdong Pearl Steel The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100 Property development
Investment Management Co., Mainland China and investment
Ltd. (“Pearl Steel Investment”)

BRUAMIREERBRAR ([ZM HE/ HEAM AR #50,000,0007T — 100 MERERRE
KE])

Nanjing Rongyu Group Co., Ltd. The PRC/ RMB75,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(“Nanjing Rongyu Group”) Mainland China welded steel products

HRANEEARAR ((HREW T8/ HEAM AR #75,000,0007C — 100 RERBERZRANER
£8])

Nanjing City Qixia Hill Roll The PRC/ RMB20,316,500 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Steeling Co., Ltd. Mainland China screw-thread steels

ERmEE L MERAR RE R E A AR #20,316,5007T — 100 BUERHE RN

T SEEEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFIAREEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

BRI E 2B 2 EF (@)
ARBEEMBRBAZFBENAT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML BRTR NN
NCECE EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf Co., Ltd. The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Port services
Mainland China
WEKRMEEMRER QA HEL R E A, AR #10,000,0007T — 100 BOMRH
Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Yunfu) The PRC/ RMB36,010,360 — 100 Sale of welded steel
Co., Ltd. Mainland China pipes
WIME (BF)ERQA FE R E A, AR #36,010,3607T — 100 HEREZHE
View Sharp International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares — 100 Investment holding
of HK$1 each
SEREARQA BB 10,0004% & A2 I & — 100 HEEK
BT EBR
PT Chu Kong Steel Indonesia Indonesia 10,000,000 shares of — 100 Property holding
IDR11,532 each
KIS RARAR MERAR 10,000,000 & B E A — 100 WERHE

11,5320 /E & f 15

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

130 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

LREIEERR/ETE

TEFTARBEIBRAE

BEEFENIZHDZARBAMBRARRE -
E=RR JIHEMHMBRRFBEHEHIIKE

MItE -

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BiEXE
2.1 Basis of preparation 21 wEBEEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
IFRS
Accounting Standards (which include all International

have been prepared in accordance with

Accounting Standards (“IASs”), International Financial
(“IFRSs”) and
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

Reporting Standards interpretations)
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

T SEEEHE

AEBEGEEMBRERTIRIEER S ER
BREe (ARG LNBEE ) MBEMY
BERyGREEASTER (BEHEEmE
Rt A ((BRgER ) - BRY
BamE R ([RRPBRELED]) k)
REB ARG 2 TR ERKEE - 5
FELRAEGRE - HEREMERATFE
FHERI  ZEMBHRERAARBE (AR
BHEY BREIHEN  FEBED
BEEREATT -

HERE
FAEVBRREEARERE_T_=F
TZA=Z+T-HALEFEZHBEREK B
NEEARR B ERREZREZERE (8%
RRUEER) EAKEEEBE2EAE
XFAREHURANEO R AR KER -
VEEHAREHRERERNTEL RS
B (AR ARN A EAREEENERHIEER
BUHRZEREY) IRXAEEHEEFR
BER IR -

EARFEERAMEABINEREHRK
ZHERERIECENE  RFEHAKE
HRREHRELRBRNE  AEEE
BFIEHRBESEERERL B

(a)

B
X 55

(b) EHEMANLHELZERN: K

(c) AEBZERBIEGERZE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intragroup assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and

loses control over a subsidiary, it
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
recorded

translation differences in equity; and

recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB32,191,000
(2022: RMB16,128,000) and recorded net current
liabilities of approximately RMB845,744,000 (2022: net
current assets of approximately RMB76,834,000). In
view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have considered the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern.

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group
implemented or is in the process of implementing the
following measures:

(1) Active negotiation with banks to obtain
adequate bank borrowings fto finance the
Group’s operations
As at 31 December 2023, the Group have
obtained sufficient unutilised general facility
granted by financial institutions, and the Group
are expected to have sufficient financial support
to pay off debts in the next 12 months, so the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on
the basis of going concern.

Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report, the renewal of the loan
to RMB790,000,000
negotiation and the Group expects that the
renewal of the loan could be renewed with
related bank for five years. The Group continues
to actively negotiate with the banks for the
renewal of the Group’s borrowings when they fall
due or obtain additional sources of finance to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the near future. The directors of
the Company have evaluated all the relevant
facts available to them and are of the opinion
that they have a good track
relationship with the banks and considered that
the Group would be able to renew the Group’s

amounted is under

record and

loans upon expiry.

T SEEEHE

2,

EEEBCR (@)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

2)

Improvement of the Group’s operating cash
flows

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
control over various production costs and
expenses with an aim to attain profitable and
positive cash flow operations. The eventual
outcome of the above measures is inherently
uncertain and cannot be estimated with

reasonable certainty.

The directors of the Company have prepared a
cash flow forecast for the Group which covers a
period of eighteen months from the end of the
reporting period. Taking into account the positive
cash flows from the Group’s steel pipes business
and the continued sale of the Group’s existing
real estate projects, the directors considered that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its financial

obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made
to reflect the situation that assets may need to be
realised at amounts other than those which are
currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In addition, the Group may
have to provide for any further liabilities that
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BIBER®
2.2(i) Changes in accounting policies and 22() B BHEREBRIFEE
disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised RNEEDRARF IR RE G RERM LA
IFRS Accounting Standards for the first time for the TETE] RS T B PR B A i R Rl g 5t 2
current year’s financial statements. Ay e
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and Bl B mERR Riga 4 RIG/FETA
related Amendments F1T5
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BIRR & &t A A BESTHE
and IFRS Practice Policies 157 R ER
Statement 2 B A %R
EBBAE2R
EREEN
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Re TR BATIEE 8T E
Estimates ELLACEIR
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Bl g =t A Al HE—XGEFHAER
Assets and Liabilities 125 BT AR B EHER 8 EE R
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform il Pl BBl E — 1=
— Pillar Two Model F12REATAR UERIR
Rules
The nature and the impact of the new and revised el G BER B s s 2 Rl g 5T 2 Al
IFRS Accounting Standards are described below: ZMERPEHMMT
(a) Insurance contracts — IFRS 17 (a) REBEH — EIBEEHREER
E17%
IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the (30 B B 7S S 2E B 25 1 7 S B B R B
recognition, measurement, presentation and W EERFEAS - FHYEARNRE
disclosure requirements applicable to issuers of EBHETANER 52 27 R
insurance contracts. The standard does not have FEAVARTE o FRPAAN 52 [ O M B R B 7S
a material impact on these financial statements WEERFE1T7THREBEANE L - Eitt
as the Group does not have contracts within the ZERTEHZEVBRRELEEKN
scope of IFRS 17. TE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BIBER®
2.2(i) Changes in accounting policies and 22() B HEE B RIFE (&)
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Presentation of financial statements and (b) BB EHZ 5 R EBER %L
IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making EREBEHFE2 — EHEE
materiality judgements: Disclosure of E;? Mz H B EET
accounting policies — Amendments to R i BRI FE 1 HE15ET K
IAS 1
The amendments require entities to disclose ZEBH A TERBANBREE S
material accounting policy information and provide BEERTABEENHHRSEARS
guidance on applying the concept of materiality to TECR I BRIR RS - REEBDEH
accounting policy disclosure. The Group has ER—EURBENGTHREER
revisited the accounting policy information it has W iR ZEE R SR ANRFF— B o
been disclosing and considered it is consistent
with the amendments.

(c) Accounting policies, changes in (c) EBiBE- Eif1tilEERE
accounting estimates and errors: R BB ZESRE — BEFE
Definition of accounting estimates — ML ELEATES
Amendments to IAS 8
The amendments provide further guidance on the ZEEBIAREDGHBREIRE
distinction between changes in accounting policies EHAETEEREE IS c ARAR
and changes in accounting estimates. The EEEDSEHPCREE R EFHhFTE
amendments do not have a material impact on BRAEEE] AR AR B
these financial statements as the Group’s EZFET AT S HZEMHIRE
approach in distinguishing changes in accounting EEXERTE-

policies and changes in accounting estimates is
consistent with the amendments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BIBER®
2.2(i) Changes in accounting policies and 22() B HEE B RIFE (&)
disclosures (Continued)
(d) Income taxes: Deferred tax related to (d) FrE# HE-XZELHEE
assets and liabilities arising from a single REEHBHELZH A — B/
transaction — Amendments to IAS 12 EiERIFE128 55T K
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial ZEEIT AP ENRERR AN
recognition exemption such that it does not apply FE EANE B R TE VIR FERR E AR 4
to transactions that give rise to equal and SHAEHEERTEEENRS - 0l
offsetting temporary differences on initial EREFAE RHEENRERAEM
recognition such as leases and decommissioning T HEBERCHEBEAELRAERED
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning 2N EFLEBRMAREER - I
liabilities, the associated deferred tax assets and RZABERZAZERERRRER
liabilities are required to be recognised from the Flok B 4B A D D M EE - BhAT
beginning of the earliest comparative period BHMZSHME  ZFEITREAR
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised B2 FEHERREBETHR
as an adjustment to retained earnings or other Z e

components of equity at that date. For all other
transactions, the amendments are applied to
those transactions that occur after the beginning
of the earliest period presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply BRI 2 ] - AE BRI FER
the initial recognition exemption to lease HEEAREERS  WEBRTHE
transactions and had recognised the related FAREERIE - MEAREEERERIE
deferred tax, except that the Group previously BE-RHEANFEEEEEEAE
determined the temporary difference arising from BEREBEHEAREENERIEE
a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability B o NMBETIR - AEBSRIEE T H
on a net basis on the basis they arise from a FRAEEERHEESEHREBENE R
single transaction. Following the amendments, the EH o REF A EBEEMBMRREK
Group has determined the temporary differences 2N ESRELERIEES - BAE
in relation to right-of-use assets and lease FIRIE T IBARTT S BIR G5t ERIE
liabilities separately. The change does not impact 125R I8 T BU B R 1 -

the overall deferred tax balances presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the
related deferred tax balances qualify for offsetting
under IAS 12.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2(i) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(e)

Income taxes: International tax reform

— Pillar Two model rules — Amendments
to IAS 12

The amendments introduce a temporary
mandatory exception from deferred tax
accounting for the income tax arising from tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (“OECD”) (income tax arising
from such tax laws is hereafter referred to as
“Pillar Two income taxes”), including tax laws that
implement qualified domestic minimum top-up
taxes described in those rules. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements about such
tax including the estimated tax exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes. The amendments are
immediately effective upon issuance and require
retrospective application. After assessment, the
amendments does not have a material impact on

these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EFBE@

2.2(ii) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting 2.2(i) ERSTMASHREERES — RHY

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazette the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the
Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no
longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from its
mandatory contributions to mandatory provident fund
(“MPF”) scheme to reduce the long service payment
(“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s service from the
Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the accrued
benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to
an employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the LSP.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B8 3R % B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EFBE@

2.2(ii) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting 2.2(i) ERSTMASHREERES — RHY

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism (Continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of
the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in
paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed
such deemed contributions to be recognised as
reduction of service cost (negative service cost) in the
period the contributions were made; instead these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of
service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed its
accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability and
has applied the above HKICPA guidance
retrospectively. The cessation of applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction
with the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance
resulted in a catch-up profit or loss adjustment in June
2022 for the service cost up to that date and
consequential impacts on current service cost, interest
expense and remeasurement effects from changes in
actuarial assumptions for the rest of 2022 with the
corresponding adjustment to the comparative carrying
amount of the LSP liability. This change in accounting
policy did not have any impact on the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2022, and the cash flows and
earnings per share amounts for the year ended
31 December 2022. It also did not have a material
impact on the company-level statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BIBER®
2.3 Issued but not yet effective international 23 CHEMENMKRERZERTBEHREE
financial reporting standards Al
The Group has not applied the following revised IFRS RIEETBHREY  ANEBLEERANUT
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are B R R R ST B R B 5 s
not yet effective, in these financial statements. ARG AR -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of BRI S mERR RREZHEARE A5
IAS 28 (2011) Assets between an 105 R EIER BERRZ B ER
Investor and its =l FAEE?
Associate or Joint 285BI AN
Venture? (Z%2——%)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale BB S mEER EAHOMHEESE
and Leaseback’ 165 1B A
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities Re TR REZFEE B 7K
as Current or ERLACEIP ([ZFE=FFKET
Non-current (the “2020 )1
Amendment’)" 4
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BIRR & &t 4 A WEREIFE BB B
Covenants (the 2022 F1RIEFT A ([ZF - F i
Amendment’)" * )14
Amendments to IAS 7 and Supplier Finance BIRR & &t 4 A HEBRBAZH
IFRS 7 Arrangement’ ET7% R B
B s E A R
BIRIET R
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability? B et £ HhZ X2
ENRBIT A
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ! BH-FT_MF—A ARG FE
1 January 2024 IS
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 z BH-FT_AF ARG FE
January 2025 IS
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available ¢ 184 AR T 5 SR ) A 0 BB - HE T R
for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the ¢ ERR-F_—FEFIANER =T
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to TEEFIANERAPHEZE S _MF
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 —H—BRZERIENFE S
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MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective international
financial reporting standards (Continued)
Further IFRS Accounting
Standards that are expected to be applicable to the

information about those

Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in 1AS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
(2011) was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
the
amendments are available for adoption now. The

associates and joint ventures. However,
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=-Z=-=F+=A

2,

23

=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective international
financial reporting standards (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The 2020
Amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The 2020 Amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The 2020 Amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
However, an entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is also required to apply the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The 2020 Amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants clarify how to treat liabilities that are subject
to covenants to be complied with, at a date subsequent
to the reporting period. The 2022 Amendments improve
the information an entity provides when its right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
is subject to compliance with covenants. The 2022
Amendments clarify that only covenants with which an
entity must comply on or before the reporting date will
affect a liability’s classification as current or non-
current. The 2022 Amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application of the
2022 Amendments is permitted. The 2022 Amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective international
financial reporting standards (Continued)
IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and

Amendments to

require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The

disclosure requirements in the amendments are
intended to assist users of financial statements in
understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
reliefs

certain transition regarding comparative

information and quantitative information as at the
beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into
another currency and how it shall estimate a spot
exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not
being exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted.
When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate the comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of
translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BRBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies 24 BERETEE
Investment in a joint venture REERAGZRE

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B8 3R % B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)
If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint

venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

2,

F—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties, goodwill, non-current
asset classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BRBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Related parties (Continued) BES (&)
(b)  (Continued) (o) (&)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) ZEREB(a)BATIMA TSI
by a person identified in (a); HEES
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viiy R@)()BFFMATHZERSE
influence over the entity or is a member of BEAFENIBZES (%
the key management personnel of the entity BEEMNEQA) %@Eﬂ%@ﬁf@
(or of a parent of the entity); and 8 Kk

(viii) ZEREXEFEMERKE QA

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key REFEEEABRBTAE
management personnel services to the Sl v So/NC]
Group or to the parent of the Group.
Property, plant and equipment and W¥ BERZERITE
depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction M BB REE(EREIRRIN RAKR
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated BEITEREMBEBEAR - M-
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an HEREEEENKABRELEBEEEBRE
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its A {50 & 7 3% BB E BB AR AR S i B
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of HEERTRIBA o
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and M- BEMEEBEERABEREED
equipment have been put into operation, such as FY - Pl RERST  —RRELH
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the MEBEmEPNR - WEDERIZLE - A

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings

B

Plant and machinery

T 5 Kot 23

Office and other equipment
MAEREMRE

Motor vehicles

e

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

2,

24

F—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
for owned property and/or accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer
from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised

statement of profit or loss.

in the

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. B BEG@m
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets

as follows:
Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2,

F—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities
the
commencement date of the lease at the present

Lease liabilities are recognised at
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease

payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease
After the

the amount of lease

is not readily determinable.
commencement date,
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

liabilities are included in

The Group’s lease

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BRBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Leases (Continued) HE (&)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all
development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total
costs of land and buildings attributable to unsold
properties. Net realisable value is determined by the
directors based on the prevailing market prices on an
individual property basis less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

If an item of completed property held for sale becomes
owner-managed, it is transferred to property, plant and
equipment at the carrying amount.

For a transfer from an item of completed property held
for sale to investment property that will be carried at
fair value as its use has changed as evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
fair value

and measured at through other

comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BRBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER (@)
Investments and other financial assets REREMZHEE (&)
(Continued)
Subsequent measurement Higqi =
The subsequent measurement of financial assets CREECHEBHERBESANT

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt BHEKN AT ENEREE (BHT
instruments) A)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

RBHAAHENEREEERERAER
MEEFE WARRETE BEER
LIEHER - BATSRER - RaEREERE
A PR

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other BRATEFAEMEZENRNS/RE
comprehensive income (debt instruments) E(EBIR)

For debt investments at fair value through other HIEAFEFAHLMZEREMNEREE
s FAEWA - HNEEH RBEBEL
BRI B R PR - I3 BR8N
ENEREEMARMNTRGTE - HHBAQ
FEEEHNEMEEIR TR - 2L
REME2EKEFBERNE R F
BEEHERDREERRK -

comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair RS
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is

recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

BAFEAABRZNEREE
BAFEFABRENEREERZQITFER
MBARRERINE - MAFEZEFENE
AR PR

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2,

24

F—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
When

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

of the asset. it has neither transferred nor
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the

asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that

are integral to the contractual terms.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are
exposures for which there has not been a significant

recognised in two stages. For credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

losses expected over the remaining

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.

For debt
comprehensive income,

investments at fair value through other
the Group applies the low
the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are

credit risk simplification. At each reporting date,

considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt

undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described
above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, a derivative financial instrument, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BRBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Financial liabilities (Continued) TEEE (&)
Subsequent measurement Higzr 2

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the
higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EFBE@

24 EBEREFEEE)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued) TEEE (&)
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIFERETFE E

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEEE@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Inventories 7

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for as follows:
Raw materials Purchase cost on the
weighted average
basis
Work in progress and Cost of direct materials,
finished goods direct labour and an
appropriate
proportion of
overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
is remote.

economic benefits Possible obligations,

whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(@) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

(c) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and

(d) those related to the income taxes arising from tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development.

The group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

(@) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred
income account and deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants (Continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or
at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans
and the proceeds received, is treated as a government
grant and released to the statement of profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be

at the present value of the amount

reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective

under the contract includes the
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when the purchasers obtained the
physical possession of the completed property and the
Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Manufacturing services

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing services is
recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the manufacturing services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC
government undertakes to assume the benefit
obligations of all existing and retired employees under
these plans. Contributions to these plans by the Group
are expensed as incurred. The Group has no further
obligations for benefits for their qualified employees
under these plans.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the

settlement or translation of monetary

reporting period. Differences arising on
items are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. B BEG@m
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBER ()
Foreign currencies (Continued) I ()

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some
portions or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be
realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of
the deferred tax assets and related financial models and
budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the utilisation
periods to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax
losses, and that the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

A write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down involves management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying amount
of inventories and the write-down/write-back of inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. Further
details are given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group applies the provision matrix method in the
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables.

The provision matrix method is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction costs of
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development during the construction stage and will be
transferred to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other costs relating
to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as the
cost of such phase. Costs that are common to different
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase
or decrease in the development costs and other costs would
affect the profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

3.

F—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing
services

Revenue in respect of manufacturing services is recognised
over time using input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service. In addition, revenue and
profit recognition is dependent on estimating the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
for satisfaction of the manufacturing services. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. Based on the latest information available in
respect of the market environment, the Group prepares
budgets for contracts individually and the budget, which is
used in the Group’s financial reporting, is reviewed regularly.
Onerous contracts are provided for when identified. Material
adjustments to the budgeted costs may occur in future if
there is a significant change in the market environment.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in Mainland
China. The provision for land appreciation tax is based on
management’s best estimates according to its understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual land appreciation tax liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and any differences will impact the
land appreciation tax expenses and the related provision in
the period in which the differences are realised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

4,

F—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has

two reportable and operating segments, as follows:

(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related
manufacturing services; and

(b) the property development and investment segment
engages in development of properties for sale and
property investment for its rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

There were no intersegment sales during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 765 3 7% B =
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEITER @

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

Segment revenue (note 5)
Sales to external customers
Segment results

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated income
Corporate and other unallocated expenses
Unallocated finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment receivables
Corporate and other unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment payables
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment

results or segment assets:
Subsidiary income from PRC government
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of other receivables

Compensation

(Provision)/reversal of claim arising from
litigation

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure*

—Bo=EEERE

DEBA (M EES5)
m4N R P iR &

DEEE

#hk
AEREMRDBERA
REREMARDEMX
ADEBEKK

BR B AT R

PHEE

Bl
855 BP U B
ARREMARDEEE

BEE

PHEE

#E
445 R B
AR REMKS B E &

Hitr B &R

FADBERE LD HEE
FEHNTH

F B B B A

ﬁi@%\@%&%ﬁz

MR FEEA#RFE

25 RARSURE

Hi AR R TORE

B (B

FAEEC RE (BE)/
B

BERA

E R

NG

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
ES
HE FEERE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARETFR INL S
2,390,855 259,997 2,650,852
109,883 (51,924) 57,959
97
(6,571)
(12,406)
39,079
3,333,750 3,312,366 6,646,116
(523,405)
298,710
6,421,421
3,659,616 2,069,013 5,728,629
(523,405)
140,122
5,345,346
6,647 16 6,663
1,085 16 1,101
(3,812) = (3,812)
(66,706) 9) (66,715)
(11,814) — (11,814)
(8,192) (23,803) (31,995)
(5,201) 665 (4,536)
(100,066) 17,924 (82,142)
(41,524) (13) (41,537)
96,260 = 96,260
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4,

-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=E+TZA=Z+t—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022

Segment revenue (note 5)
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated income
Corporate and other unallocated expenses
Unallocated finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment receivables
Corporate and other unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment payables
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

2 EUA (K 5ES5)
SN P iH &
DEEE

AEREMRDERA
REREMARDEMX
ROEBEKAR

BR B AT A1

THEE

#ik

%ﬁ%”*ﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁl
AEREMRD EE%F

BEE

PHEE

B
?ﬁﬁ"*ﬁfﬁfﬁﬂ
REREMANEEE

BafE

Other segment information Eﬂtﬁ“‘ﬂﬁﬂ

Amounts included in the measure of segment T A7 B4 8 757
results or segment assets: BEENLHE -

Subsidy income from the PRC government HR B A Y 45 B A

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMHE  BELREL
equipment Wz

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWRTORE

(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of other H A 8BRS CRL{E),
receivables T E R

Compensation B {E

Reversal of/(provision of) claim arising from FAREENRERR
litigation (B8)

Land resumption costs TR AR

Finance costs BE KA

Depreciation and amortisation TE R

Capital expenditure* BARRZ*

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets.
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EEDIMER (@)

BE-ZE-—H+-A=Z+-HLHFE
Property
development and

Steel pipes investment Total
g R E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFT AREFT
1,810,097 551,918 2,362,015
206,311 (46,982) 159,329
14,758
(8,252)
(3,370)

162,465

3,166,119 3,927,937 7,094,056
(874,825)

335,706

6,554,937

3,786,909 2,551,962 6,338,871
(874,825)

159,952

5,623,998

231,517 119 231,636
1,752 — 1,752
(24,225) — (24,225)
(2,412) 228 (2,184)
(63) (22,995) (23,058)
19,920 (38,715) (18,795)
(108,450) — (108,450)
(41,273) — (41,273)
(75,841) (22) (75,863)
14,598 — 14,598

* EARXBEREYE BERRBLERESR

=D
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE=-Z=-=F+=A=

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

F—HIEFE

Information about steel pipe products and services

The revenue from the major products and services is

analysed as follows:

EEDIMER (@)

HEEmRBEESY
x

BEEMIBRBOBASTOT -

2023 2022
—EC=E —_=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: SLEREEHE -
LSAW steel pipes HEEEE 1,495,494 1,171,679
SSAW steel pipes ZHER R E 612,023 287,111
ERW steel pipes BHEEE 24,630 4,983
Steel pipe manufacturing services: ) B BE AR S
LSAW steel pipes BHHEBIRE 158,451 231,123
SSAW steel pipes BRI R T 25,050 34,088
Others* HAth> 75,207 81,113
2,390,855 1,810,097
Sale of properties HEME 259,997 551,918
2,650,852 2,362,015

*

steel fittings and sales of scrap materials.

T SEEEHE

Others mainly represented the trading of steel plates, sales of
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e B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

(Continued)

Geographical information

(@) The revenue information based on the locations of the
customers is as follows:

EEDHER @)

& & ¥
(a) WAERZREFHEMRESIOT

2023 2022

—EC=E —_=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T

Sales to external customers: MANBEPHE -

Mainland China R A 3D 1,280,359 1,701,332
Africa FEM 411,220 157,774
Europe BUOM 1,269 8,007
Middle East R 534,549 263,318
Asia and other Asian countries am M R E b gm N B R 319,666 226,601
South America B EM 103,789 4,983
2,650,852 2,362,015

(b)  Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets and capital (b)

AEBRFERBEERE AR B0

expenditure are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB420,456,000 (2022:
RMB168,023,000) was derived from sales by the steel pipe
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of

entities which are known to be under common control with

that customer.

192 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

PR B A3, o

FEEFEH

HED LM —BE-—FPHHEEFRANAR
# 420,456,000t (T - —F : AR¥
168,023,000 T) * BiEM —HABERXZEF LM
ZHIFE RS HEITHIHE o

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =4+ _ A=+

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other

sales taxes, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

is as follows:

—BIEFE

5. WA~ Htt AR s

WA EFRAEEERMARERBNEZRE
1B MERIBER (EER]) REMBHER -

AEBOBA - HRARKmDHFMT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T R ARBTT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes £Li& & 846 A #5125
and the provision of related manufacturing ERBHARRE
services AR 7% 2,390,855 1,810,097
Sale of properties LE Y 259,511 551,518
2,650,366 2,361,615
Revenue from lease contracts REHEEEHZWA
Rental income AEWKA 486 400
2,650,852 2,362,015
Other income and gains Hib A & Wz
Bank interest income SRITF B U A 180 3,741
Subsidy income from the PRC government R B R Y 4 B A (a) 6,663 231,636
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&¥E « BiE L& E
Wz 1,101 1,752
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries FEEH PN B A B 2 e 17 —
Others EHith 8,018 1,614
15,979 238,743
Note: MIEE -
(@)  The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the local (a) AN ATHM T HEBEE TESIHLME - IR

RE HF BRENMER ZZERBDE -
BEMHEME SR FEBRCEGRERKIHE
(BB B FREERERRERERINT
HE (BEEB) WIRE RE) - ZEMHARBREK
BRI ST B RENRAFIR -

finance bureaus to PCKSP, Pearl Steel Investment, Kaidi,
Nanjing Rongyu Group, LYG Zhugang Coating, GZPST, LYG
Petrol-Fitting and PCKSP (Zhuhai) as awards for their products
and PCKSP (Lianyungang) as awards for investment. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to such
subsidies.
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-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ A= +—ALFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended 31 December 2023

WA~ HARA R IR (@)

REEFEHNZBA
(i) DBEUAEH

BE-F-_=F+-A=1+-HLEHFE

Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
/S
wmE BB ERIRE @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R AR®T T
Sale of goods/properties HERM,/ ME 2,207,354 259,511 2,466,865
Rendering of services RHRE 183,501 — 183,501
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366
Geographical markets it & 45
Mainland China A 1,020,362 259,511 1,279,873
Africa FEM 411,220 — 411,220
Europe &M 1,269 — 1,269
Middle East PR 534,549 = 534,549
Asia and Other Asian countries N D =R D =T 319,666 — 319,666
South America EEF) 103,789 = 103,789
Total revenue from contracts with REBP &R ZBWA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366
Timing of revenue recognition WA TERRRE
Goods/properties transferred at a R R B
point in time ZheEis 2,207,354 259,511 2,466,865
Services transferred over time & B R 8 75 AR 7 183,501 — 183,501
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPALHZBIA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366
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MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hitlr A R WK ()
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHNZWA (H)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DEBRAZH (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-RA=+—HLEE
Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
/e
EiTR=y FEEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Sale of goods/properties HER M/ 1,544,886 551,518 2,096,404
Rendering of services RHRE 265,211 — 265,211
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
Geographical markets it & 45
Mainland China A B A b 1,149,414 551,518 1,700,932
Africa FEM 157,774 — 157,774
Europe &M 8,007 — 8,007
Middle East FR 263,318 — 263,318
Asia and Other Asian countries oM B Ho At T8 MBI 226,601 — 226,601
South America EEF 4,983 — 4,983
Total revenue from contracts with REBP &R ZBWA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
Timing of revenue recognition WA TERRRE
Goods/properties transferred at a R R B
point in time hER 1,544,886 551,518 2,096,404
Services transferred over time W& s 8 5 AR 75 265,211 — 265,211
Total revenue from contracts with RKEEFEAHZBWA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
SEC=EEERE WIRBAARMEERERAT 195
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

()

(i)

'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F—HIEFE

5. WA~

H it A R 1 28

,»E

RKEEFEHZWA (&)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DEUAEHR (&)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRITRAREHE ERBARETAR
recognised in the current reporting period that were WEMYVEANBERMNE ATAREE EK
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the BHEARR R
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in the current periods:
2023 2022
—s-= —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was included in contract F ARBEHAEH
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting EEZERIALA
period:
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes B RIHE B LR E N
and the provision of related manufacturing ERREHARRE
services AR 7% 106,677 218,251
Sale of properties YR E 259,512 551,518
366,189 769,769
Performance obligations (i) BEBREMF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of steel pipes

For sale of steel pipes, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’'s specific
location (delivery). Transportation and handling activities
before customer obtain control

that occur are

considered as fulfilment activities. Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. Payment is generally due 30 days to 90
days from the invoice date, except for new customers,

where payment in advance is normally required.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA HMW A RS @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHNZWA (H)
(i) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHEME (&)

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
physical possession of the completed property is
obtained by the purchasers.

Manufacturing services

The Group provides manufacturing services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue
is recognised for these manufacturing services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method. Payment is generally due within 50 days from
the date of delivery or customer acceptance of the
product processed.

The Group generally offers one-year warranties for its
product. The Group recognised retention money as
contract assets as the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on satisfactory completion
of the warranty period. The retention money will be
recognised as trade receivables at the end of warranty
period.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as
a separate performance obligation in a single contract
as the warranty service is assurance type, and the
Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty products
under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision,
if any.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (iii)
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
Since most of the sales contracts of the Group are for
periods of one year or less. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HtEH

2023 2022
—E== —_=E-—

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[{hg=3 AR¥ T ARET T
Compensation e 31,995 23,058
Provision of claim arising from litigations RAREE MR EE 27 4,536 18,795
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value R 1T & & 7] #15 % & 3,812 —
Land resumption costs =+ U R AR AR — 108,450
Impairment of trade receivables 5 R FURE 19 66,715 24,225
Impairment of other receivables H b fE U FIE BB 20 11,814 2,184
Others Hib 69,027 33,074
187,899 209,786

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

7. BRBLATERF
AEENOBRBATER DENR THISREES

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 AR®T T ARBETT

Employee benefit expenses EERMNAY (BREEE

(including directors’ remuneration): ) -

Fees, wages and salaries we - ITELRFS 151,428 123,652
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAEFIET B 5,539 6,570
156,967 130,222
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 1,758,440 1,221,533
Cost of services provided R W AR S A AR 118,990 174,624
Cost of properties sold B EWEKAR 219,212 495,235
Auditor’'s remuneration % HR B & 1,332 1,283
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BERERETE 13 25,881 61,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 15 15,656 14,431
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWERFURE 19 66,715 24,225
Impairment of other receivables H b fE U BB EE 20 11,814 2,184
Fair value loss on investment properties "EWME 2 A EEE 14 2,000 8,000
Research and development costs T 8% A AR 107,636 64,283
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBERX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXADTHET :

2023 2022
—EBE-=HF —=E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 AR®T R ARBEF T
Interest on bank and other borrowings (including 1T M EMEEF S
bonds and notes) (BEEHFLER) 93,818 88,378
Interest on lease liabilities HEARNE 52 57
Interest on discounted bills ERMIREEN L 678 1,486
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities not at 3 3Fi1% A F{Et AIB %
fair value through profit or loss ZEBEBERSR
B 94,548 89,921
Less: Interest capitalised D= W N IS (a) — (45,278)
94,548 44,643
Note: FftsT -
(@) Interest capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2022 (a) BEF__FH-A=t—RALFEEXCH
arose on the specific borrowings for properties under ETRBEERFMENEEERMEL -

development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

9. EEHM

FR EEFMFBREBIAES LTR

D

Bl - ZB R EMUEMEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (c) K ()i
Al (BBEEEFZEER) RAIFE2WENT

2023 2022
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Fees we 594 585
Other emoluments: Hi 4 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMKLEY
=gl 1,943 1,954
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKAEFIET 8K 76 74
2,019 2,028
2,613 2,613
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIAFBITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RER - ENBLIERTEST 2ESIT
during the year were as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Mr Chen Ping PR oA 198 198
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah X5 B 2 o A 198 189
Mr Tian Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023) HEZFLTE(RZTZ=
FHA—BET) 132 198
Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023) ZEREHEA (R-T—=
FNA—BEZME) 66 —
594 585

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2022: Nil).
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B R M EE R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEFHM @)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
2 A= 3:19 13 BRARBER
e BEUER sTEIME 4 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT ARB TR AR T

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—-ZT_-=%
+=—A=+-—8
LEE
Executive directors: WITES
Mr Chen Chang RS %4 — 1,028 — 1,028
Mr Chen Guo Xiong (resigned  [R Bl 55 4 (1A
on 5 December 2023) —E-=%F
+=ZAAH
BAE) — 253 30 283
Ms Chen Zhao Nian FRIKF 22+ — 662 46 708
= 1,943 76 2,019
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits in scheme Total
Fees kind contributions  remuneration
e 2R RIRAE A
we BEmEN FHEIfT st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARBTTT ARETTT ARBTTT

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_T_-_F

+-B=+—8
IEFE
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr Chen Chang R & A& — 997 — 997
Mr Chen Guo Xiong FeR 2 2 5 A= — 261 29 290
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BRI EFE L+ — 696 45 741

— 1,954 74 2,028
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2022: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2022: three) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

9.

EEHFM @)

(b) HITEE ()
R R AT (] 8 EE SR B E
= Eokree

ERATEEOMEIZ S REERE R
ARBIRAKEEH TR - L5
VM TEFHNMETESRREERN
REEFFRENRE -

10. ZAEBRESHFEE

AEEAURRFREEERE (2T ==
ML) EE  REFMFBEIN XM - F
AT (ZEZZF : =f) = MES GF
ARBEFHTETBRAR) WFHBMFERHTI W
T~

2023 2022
—EC=E —_=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREYEF 3,921 2,128
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRURAE FIFT 8451 — 77
3,921 2,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration which fell within the
following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

10.

Z£%1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,001E7T% 1,500,000 7T

EEERSHES @)
THHHEENFEERITETRAERRSH
BE AT :

Number of employees
EEHE
2023
—E=-=

2022
e ——

=

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

11. INCOME TAX
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman

Islands, is not subject to CIT.

Lessonstart and Lucknow, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, are not subject to CIT. Crown Central,
CKSPG and View Sharp International Limited, which were
incorporated in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates The first HK$2,000,000 (2022:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are
taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

regime.

T SEEEHE

1.

RER AEEREAZEFEFTAREESHE
BEM—BXNEAMSERRSIMARER K
ANAA SR B ) B2 B Sk RE B A 15 -

Frig st
AN o B R BN SR K B 2 R AR AT 1 RLA
8 T E A SRR - SR R LRGP S «

RSB ((EEMEHRD
RRBRASHSEMKL - BABRLEMRSG
i o

F = iE M LucknowN B Z B Bk - &
AEMEEMSHR - P KIHEEERSE
SERAR (BWEFTBFMRTL) REREES

B HAEE—RWE RGN HEMREG
MEMIETHEERER - ZMNBRAHA
2,000,000 7T (=& = —4F : 2,000,000/% 7T)
JE 52 751 MBI 428.25% (— T — —4F : 8.25%) B K
BE - MR T ERAEAIZ16.5% (22 ==
F 1 16.5%) BLEHH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

1.

F—HIEFE

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

PCKSP (Zhuhai), as a High and New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) qualified on 30 September 2015 and with the
qualification renewed in 31 December 2021, is entitled to a
reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. PCKSP (Lianyungang), as a HNTE
qualified on 5 December 2019, is entitled to a reduced tax
rate of 15% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, PCKSP (Lianyungang)
was subject to CIT at a rate of 25%. PCKSP (Lianyungang),
as a HNTE qualified on 6 November 2023,
reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

is entitled to a

According to the PRC corporate income tax law and its
in 2019 and
issued in 2023, entities that qualified as Small and Micro

relevant regulations issued renewed policy
Enterprises are entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
5% for taxable income less than RMB3,000,000 (2022: 2.5%
less than RMB1,000,000 or 5% for
taxable income ranged between RMB1,000,000 to
RMB3,000,000). During the year ended 31 December 2023,

13 (2022: 13) subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as small

for taxable income

and low profit enterprise and enjoyed a preferential tax rate
of 5% (2022: 2.5%), whereas applicable.

204 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

1.

Frig %t (@)
EEREHR ((REMEH D (@)
FE A 2 S 7 4 PR 3 496 7 75 8 7 A o IR A £ B

ARBUE A B W EAE R BB G EE
BEREWIHE G R_F— ﬁihﬂ -i—E!ZE
AT EMEE ((SHRmMEE]) ==

Z—F+= ﬂ7+—EEﬁ%E%§%*mf§
T f—fF—HE-Z-_=%+-_F=+—HF
BEZBE15%H e E - FRHRIME GEEH)
RZZE-—NF+ARABEFTAS TR
BH-E-NF—-A—RHEZE-ZT-_—F+=-RA=+
—HBERZEIS%HREHE HE-_T =
TZTAZT—HIEFE  BREHINE (EEZH)
JBIR25% M B R MRS - FHWIME
(BEB)R_E_=F+—- A BEFAaFKE
M BZE_=F—A—HAZ2=-T_AF+
ZA=T—HRERZE15%NARTE o

BEZT—NERANTEEMESHERER
ﬁ&ﬁu&_?_fiﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬁ e
MOEMNBERERZ A% (ERBMTBEIRA
R#3,000,0007T) (=T = =4 : 2.5% (FERBLFN
15 aE/J AR M1,000,0007T) 35% (FERTLFT1S
27 AR #1,000,0007T = A R #3,000,000
ﬁDW@%%%ﬁﬁ$°%ﬁ§:§:E¢+:
A=+—HILFE AEE+=xR(ZZ==
F=R)WBEARFAENMILENER - ZE5%
(ZEZZF:25%) MEEB X (@A) -

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

1.

—ZE=

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law and the respective regulations,
except for the above-mentioned preferential tax treatments,
the companies of the Group which operate in Mainland China
were subject to CIT at a rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all
income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
rights and buildings in Mainland China (being the proceeds
from the sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of
the sum of the total deductible items.

The Group estimated and made provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the
property development projects and the LAT determined by the
tax authorities might be different from the basis on which the
provision for LAT is calculated.

SEFEERE

1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Long-term tax payable

Certain subsidiaries of the Company relocate their factories
and offices during the year ended 31 December 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the tax authority in the
PRC agreed their CIT and LAT payables can be paid within 5
years or upon completion of the relocations, whichever is
earlier. In the opinion of the directors, the relocations will be
completed after 1 year from the reporting date. Therefore, the
relevant tax payables amounted to approximately
RMB486,614,000 (2022: RMB789,187,000)
31 December 2023 are classified as non-current liabilities.

as at

The major components of the income tax (credit)/expense for
the year are as follows:

1.

FR&H (#)

RHEIEMABIIE
ARARMETHBAGERBE_T_TF+=
A=+ —HLFERBREBETIMENDE - RE
B —F+ZA=+—HLFER  FEM
BAREEEMNMDEMESH R T g EH A
ERFRNAMBRAE UAREERE) N -F
FERE WRESEREABMBH —FRTEK -
f RZFE_=F+=-_A=+—8 BBEEMNH
HL) A ARYA86,614,000C (ZE=—F : AR
#789,187,0007T) ' WH AR ELE -

FAMGH(EL)  EROTEEARBAWT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Current — Mainland China BVER — B

PRC CIT charge for the year FRRETCERSH I 9,085 54,720

PRC CIT overprovision in prior years WMAFEPBEDEMSH
R (51,050) —
PRC LAT B+ s IS E R 7,785 —
Deferred tax (note 28) EFERIE (P 7128) (110,519) (55,289)
Total income tax credit for the year FAFRGHELAE (144,699) (569)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. S @)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARFTERTAENOTIEER (REARE R
tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the HABOMBRAMENBERAEEREAE
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to HAEEERERBEFENRIEERANEERLE
the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a AR EEERTENYRAT :

reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,
are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREET T

Profit before tax B A5 B )t ) 39,079 162,465
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEFTENTIA 10,828 38,173
Tax effect of: MG
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority E R A A 2 B
& (6,032) (58,594)
Expenses not deductible for tax E A 20,427 12,127
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (40,169) (22,468)
Temporary difference not recognised in the current year NEERER L
xR — (4)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised in prior years PABATFERER
KB IEE 1B (185,214) (23,473)
Provision for LAT -+ B R R 7,785 —
Tax loss not recognised in the current year REERERBIIA
(SR 47,676 53,670
Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax rate BEAREBERREE
< TIRE % (144,699) (569)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=-Z=-=F+=A

=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on

RARFEBAREBRER

BREARERTDIRIBEANGES AEGFEE G
KFEARNBD BT EBRMNEFIE1,011 142,000H§
(ZZE =4 :1,011,142,000/%) 5

the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,011,142,000 (2022: 1,011,142,000) in issue during the year.

ﬂS%ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁ?:%:Eﬁ&:?_ —Ft=
A=+—RIFEETEEHSER

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M% - BERRE
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BROER
BT HERRE  HiRE RE  EEIR szt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tn AR%TR AR®Tn AR%TR AR%Tn
As at 31 December 2023 R-B=-=%
+ BA=+-—
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—H—H
Cost A A 674,320 2,016,014 20,076 26,570 99,236 2,836,216
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REITERRE (174,088)  (853,447) (17,482) (21,205) —  (1,066,222)
Net carrying amount REFE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated RZT_=F—H—A8"
depreciation and impairment M RITE RRE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
Additions nE = 4,426 540 1,780 89,514 96,260
Disposals & = (46) (11) = (887) (944)
Depreciation provided during the year FRNTERE (13,142) (11,636) (200) (903) - (25,881)
Transfers from construction in progress EREEETRR 75,534 16,565 — - (92,099) —
Write-off bl €S = = (2 - - )
At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated RZBE-_=F
depreciation and impairment +=—A=+—8"
& 2FHERRE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95764 1,839,427
At 31 December 2023 RZE=Z=
+TZA=+—H
Cost R 749,854 2,036,741 20,492 28,348 95,764 2,931,199
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25 ERRE (187,230) (864,865) (17,571) (22,106) = (1,091,772)
Net carrying amount BREEE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95,764 1,839,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERXE @

(Continued)

Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
RRER
BF BERR EikiE "nE ERIRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBTT ARETT AREBTT ARKTR ARETR
As at 31 December 2022 S
+-A=+—H”
At 1 January 2022 R-_E-_—H—HF—H
Cost AR 660,837 2,004,646 20,872 27,585 168,479 2,882,419
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R ITERRE (162,538)  (806,571) (18,241) (20,760) —  (1,008,110)
Net carrying amount BREEE 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H"
depreciation and impairment Mk RETHITE RRE 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
Additions NE 333 3411 122 274 9,172 13,312
Disposals HE — (1,222) (16) (243) (54,489) (55,970)
Depreciation provided during the year FRWERE (11,550) (48,248) (143) (1,491) — (61,432)
Transfers from construction in progress EREEERIR 13,150 10,776 - — (23,926) -
Write-off LS - (225) — - — (225)
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated .=
depreciation and impairment +=—A=+—8"
Hk 25 E LRE 500232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
At 31 December 2022 i
+-A=+—H
Cost (B 674,320 2,016,014 20,076 26,570 99,236 2,836,216
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2R ERRE (174,088) (853,447) (17,482) (21,205) —  (1,066,222)
Net carrying amount FREDFE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment pledged
to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 26.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the
Group located in Lianyungang with a total net carrying
of approximately RMB13,079,000 (2022:
RMB13,079,000) as at 31 December 2023 have not yet been
issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the end of the

amount

reporting period, the directors of the Company were still in the
process of obtaining these certificates.

Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or operating
entity. The carrying values of these individual plants or
entities were compared to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs, which were based predominantly on value in use.
Value in use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using the same cash flow projections
of the fifth year. Other key assumptions applied in the
impairment tests include the expected product price, demand
for the products, product cost, finance costs and other related
expenses, with the consideration of the possible significant
decrease in finance costs following the measures adopted by
management.
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Y3 - BB RRE @

AEBEREYME  BERREBABERAEER
TTERHF ISR HIE26 °

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H AEEUREE
R TET N ARERETEERAFPIBERE
EE ZEEFNEAFEATHNABARE
13,079,0007c (= ZF = —F : AR ¥13,079,000
TL) e RIEER - ARRIERNERBZERE
BEREFE -

M BERREZRERNR

WALBREMRETR  ABRESRESELS
¥YE - BEMREERERN S ReELSE
UAEEREXEEER ZFEAMEIER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

13.

14.

F—HIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% BERRE @
(Continued)
Impairment testing of property, plant and Y3 MEREEZRERNR (8
equipment (Continued)
Management determined that these key assumptions were ERERAZFHEBREDABERRLEHM
based on past performance and their expectations on market BEREBEHRAKIE - bIN AEBEHABREAKR
development. Further, the Group adopts a pre-tax rate of AR R S EE BN ERBR 2 BRTFE15% (=
15% (2022: 15%) that reflects specific risks related to CGUs T F 15%) ERREIRE o FIREFTIAR D
as the discount rate. The assumptions above are used in MEENHRNREEEEM 2] IRESFE -
analysing the recoverable amounts of CGUs within the
operating segments.
As a result of the impairment assessment, no impairment loss BIBBEN &R BE T _=FR=-_F=
had been recognised against the property, plant and ZFE+ZA=THLFE  UEBEREE S
equipment in the steel pipes segment for the years ended 2ME - BEREEZREERE -
31 December 2023 and 2022.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REVY=E
2023 2022
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Commercial properties in Mainland China, the PRC R R Rt 2 iR
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZE®E 362,000 370,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments NEPEARZFEE (2,000) (8,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December RT+ZA=+—BZKHE 360,000 362,000
The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial AREENKREDEELFMNRTEANMA G AY
properties in Mainland China, which are held under medium ¥ ORPEHBENEE  ERWENME  FEK

term leases. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties are commercial assets, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of the properties.

T =FFERE

P2 9 L
REE -

CARRREEBREVEEESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, as at 31 December
2023, the fair value of investment properties of the Group,
which were mainly shops of Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (&8 & &%) (‘GDC”) Phase | shops, was
RMB360,000,000 (2022: RMB362,000,000). The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decided, upon
approval from the audit committee of the Company, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed
for interim and annual financial reporting.

Maturity analysis of lease payments from
investment properties

14.

REYE (&#)

BB B A ERIEEEHKFTIEREM AR
ARZIEE R-oE-=4+-A=+—0 &
EEMBRENE  NeERVEES ((ER)
F-—HESNETEES EATEAARK
360,000,000T (ZE = —4F : AR¥362,000,000
T) o ARG A Y AT ID G B RS 4 B R E SN IR ik B
Mz AR EESARRIBRES R ER &
FHABEAREEYEZ HEBHE - TR EE0IE
TS BE BUMRKETESEEKE.
AEBOYECERMBRESFERDYREE
BITSRA ET I AR - B ER R E R R Rl
EERETRRGH o

REVMERENRNEBBERD 7

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEF T
Within one year —FNR 960 510
In the second year F_F 960 960
In the third year F=F 800 960
In the forth year ke = 800
Total @t 2,720 3,230

Rental income received from investment properties for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB486,000 (2022: RMB400,000) which was included in
revenue (note 5). There were no direct operating expenses
(including repairs and maintenance) included in cost of sales
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Profit
arising from investment properties carried at fair value for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB486,000 (2022: RMB400,000).

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

AFEER

14. REWE @)

TRHUAAEERANE L AT HBER -

Fair value measurement using

ERBAEFEZATE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERBT 5 EXAEHE BEAFUERE
FR R B A% WAE WAE
(B—4) (B=4) (B=#) -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=F
+=-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEERNFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property EhERZES = — 360,000 360,000
Fair value measurement using
ERHABTE2 R TE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R BT 5 BRAHER FEARIAEBE
PR B HAE BWAE
(=) (F=4) (B=%) #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT AREETTT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2022 fra =S
+-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEM QT ERE
measurement for:
Commercial property [EREERZES — — 362,000 362,000

RERN BE—REF_FzBEIEAFEFEZ
BE TEABE=ABASKER(ZE-_C
&) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BEY (@)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AT EEH (&)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

ATEEMRE=HAZATEH EHE

2023 2022

== —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January W—A—BZEmE 362,000 370,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments ANFERAEZFER (2,000) (8,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBZEHEE 360,000 362,000

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key input to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

fhER M

Significant unobservable input

EXRTABERBAE

Commercial Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate
properties (RMB/sq.m.)
Eliik/ES HELEUE miHEAERE
(AR¥/BFFHXK)

The valuations of investment properties were arrived at using
the direct comparison method with reference to the
comparable sale prices in the relevant locality, adjusted for a
premium or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to recent sales of comparable
transactions. A higher discount for lower quality properties will

result in a lower fair value measurement.
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HEREMEGEMEANBERMTREEZERGAE
MBEEEIIT -

Range or weighted average

EE R ME T
2023 2022
GDV GDV
Phase | Phase |
Shops Shops
—E-= —_E_
GDV GDV
E—HEH E—HEH

20,170-24,619

20,170-24,619

21,731-23,323

21,731-23,323

REDENHEDRAERLBEL 2R E B
EALLERHEEERMER  BECRAAEEME
HEZRERERTE(RANATEREERS
HWEMB)ELRE - RIEERMEZ RS ITES
BHREZAFEFEHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

15. LEASES 15. &
The Group as a lessee AEBEEREABA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its FEBERAREEBEENRLAEMENEES
operations. Leases of a factory and office premises generally W IMMFRNIGHHOEEBRSEB2FMNHEE
have a lease term of 2 years. Generally, the Group is Hlo—RME  AEETERNEEIIBEZER
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets SHEBEEEE o Wtoh - BRAEL — IR MR FRIA
outside the Group. In addition, lump sum payments were MEB ARBHEE T - A AS0F - MIRIEZ
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with SLHENKT BT SEENEMRRIEA -

lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets FRNAEEFEREEENREERERH
and the movements during the year are as follows: T -
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HE L - L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETTT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_H—F—H 660,882 290 661,172
Additions mE — 1,286 1,286
Depreciation charge TERS (13,507) (924) (14,431)
Exchange realignment ME W R (2,057) 43 (2,014)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2023 r—Z-_=%—H—H 645,318 695 646,013
Additions NE = = =
Lease modification HEEE = 937 937
Depreciation charge EMX (15,066) (590) (15,656)
Exchange realignment ME W B 539 (3) 536
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEZ=F
+=—RAR=+—H 630,791 1,039 631,830
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREBEA (H)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) ZEHAEEZE (&)
Note: P eE -

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB481,645,000 (2022: RMB489,399,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

(b) Lease liabilities (b)
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

RZEZ=F+-A=+—0 A£EETEA
EEY B AREAL81,6450000 (- —F : A
R#489,399,0007T) 2 HE T E AEHEE - LA
BERTASEZEFRITER (MFE26) ©

HEARE
Fr - HERENKREE GEAFRRITR
HEERT)REFHWT

2023 2022
—EC=E —_=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January W—A—BZEmE 722 325
New leases HEEE — 1,286
Accretion of interest recognised during the year R EET TS 52 57
Payments (B (713) (991)
Lease modification MEEET 937 —
Exchange realignment P& 3 3 2 (3) 45
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBZEHEE 995 722
Analysed into: BATHA

Current portion BNHAEB 463 686

Non-current portion JERNHAEL 5 532 36

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEEREABAN (B
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) BHEBERBEZBERZZFHEMNT :

relation to leases are as follows:

2023 2022
—EC-_=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGERE 52 57
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERX 15,656 14,431
Total amount recognised in profit or loss MBS HERZ L 15,708 14,488
16. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 16. RPFESRERRSE
2023 2022
—EBEC-=F =~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment W BRE R E 2 B FIE 58,772 69,558
Deposits paid BEffiLe 2,778 2,848
61,550 72,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
17. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 17. ZEREFEWE
The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located in REERERFEEMEAURPEARM - IEE
Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are RAFEWMEDEZN AL R FEREERZ? -
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. No write- HARRBEHENE ENENAER FERRE
down of completed properties held for sale has been made as BREE - MRS -
the net realisable value of the properties was higher than
their carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s completed RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—0 r5EETEE
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of ®wEL A AR1,002,989,000T (= ZE ==
approximately RMB1,002,989,000 (2022: RMB913,698,000) AR %913,698,0007T) 2S5 FFEWEE BER
were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the o DA TAEE 2 ETFRITER (M15E26) -
Group (note 26).
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2023 2022
== —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Raw materials JRA 247,949 134,249
Work in progress G 72,886 79,168
Finished goods 2K G 276,300 202,938
597,135 416,355
Less: Provision against slow-moving and B EHEERETERE
obsolete inventories (13,661) (13,661)
583,474 402,694
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESRUERREREE

2023 2022

—EB=-= —E-

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Trade receivables E 5 KRR 371,628 407,709
Impairment allowance BB (83,159) (28,853)

Trade receivables, net B RrRWERFFEE 288,469 378,856

Bills receivable FE W =i 23,484 —

311,953 378,856
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on FEEREEFPFNESBRREEREE EHE
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance P—RFEBNERKRI - FEH R AEI0H
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days to Z90H - BREBEFEGSEERE - AEERE
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The BESETERIKEEKE BB EERR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding BMERE - @HESBSREEASEHEN -
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are EREMBERRAEE 2 EHRKEFERESD
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the MEPER BUEEREEEFER F~EE
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade EHE SRR EH T M EEE EMEFmR
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, HHMBAEANRE - EZEBERFH AT S o

there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ESRUERRERERE @
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of REEMR  EREZAHRDHNREBERED
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of Z 5 REWRRRE T T
loss allowance, is as follows:
2023 2022
—T—_= —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Within 60 days 60H A 140,259 153,001
61 to 90 days 61HE90H 43,639 17,342
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 5,209 58,830
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 31,848 18,282
1 to 2 years 15225 58,664 57,804
2 to 3 years 2E34F 8,850 7,456
Over 3 years HBE3IF — 66,141
288,469 378,856
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade ESRBEFRESEREZSHNT -
receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR ARBTT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 28,853 13,516
Impairment losses recognised BERBEEE 6 66,715 24,225
Amount written off as uncollectible Hiss =K U [el & B8 (12,409) (8,888)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 83,159 28,853
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19.

=+—HILFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group applied the provision matrix method
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables. The process
involves a review of, among others, the Group’s historical
sales recordings and trade receivables, in order to determine
the default rate of the debtors.

in the

The Group have considered and conducted, among other
things, the following key steps:

. Define a period of sales and bad debts relating to those
sales;

. Collect the historical data of trade receivables;

. Calculate the historical default loss percentage; and

. Calculate the ECL using the default rate determined

aforementioned.

The provision matrix method involves the definition of an
appropriate period of time to analyse the proportion of
receivables written off as bad debts. Based on the best
estimation of the management, over 3 years unpaid trade
receivables as at each reporting date have been defined in
this exercise.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB54,240,000 and RMB179,943,000 due from
a debtor (the “Debtor”)
respectively (the “Specific Debtors”). Based on management’s
experience and best estimation, as a business partner, there
was a high likelihood that the amount payables held by a
subsidiary due to the Debtor could provide coverage against
the potential financial losses embedding in trade receivables
due from the Debtor. as the state-owned
enterprises were normally with lower credit risk,
assumed by the management that their default probability
was insignificant. Therefore, the trade receivables from the
Specific Debtors had been deducted from ECLs. As at 31
December 2023, all the trade receivables of the Group have
been reasonably investigated and assessed for ECLs
regardless of Specific Debtors after management considered
the economic situation. Based on management’s experience
and best estimation, the amount payables held by the
subsidiary due to the Debtor have a relatively high likelihood
to loss. Therefore, impairment loss of 100% on the trade
receivables from the Debtor have been recognised.

and state-owned enterprises

Meanwhile,
it was

TEFFERE

19.

BEZBWRRRERRERE (@
AEERSREMHARABEEDETEE SR
WEERMEREEEE T EMRRBOAT L
- UBHEE S ERERNEREEREE - 26
BYREE (AT e AEENELHELER
BHRWIRR  WETEBANELE -

AEBCEEAET(HPEB)ATIESR

. EHRHERM PN ZFHERBIRE

. WS B 5 e Wi TR ) R S B
. FEELENERBEOL R

. R LEFROEFERBEERSE

TERIERMSH N AR I:WJ *ETJ% EEE'JE*
EhET REBREEHBRA=FNRNESEW
RHRENEBEIERER -

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—A0 AEERKES
ANTEBADRBAECE ((BEEBANDNES
FEMRBR R D B 49 B A R 54,240,000 T & A R #E
179,943,0007T » RIEEE BV H MR EHa
EA¥EBKEMN WBARBENEMNEEARE
1578 7] BE 3 17 FE AR B 75 A B 5 FE URBR 51 R 1) B 2
BiEEE - A ARBEECERTABREN
EARR TEEBERILEBOIRLERIKR A
- XQ%E@%A%%%E%% R E B EHE
BEEETMpR RZZE_=F+=-A=+—8"
KEREEECER SR AEENMEE S EKE
F(BRETEBAIIN HGEREREEBHBRETE
BHEE RTE BEEEELRESERE -
MBARBENEMNERARBERAE ] EELE
B-EAl EHEIARBEHBANE S EUER
100% 2 B EE 18 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ESRWERRRERRERE @)
Based on the provisional matrix method, the Group has RBEBEEREE  AREES T —HFEZ
analysed the historical observed default rate from 2015 to T_FNRLERENE  BRMHEEEDHE
2023, assuming outstanding payment 3-year after credit terms TEMEAREENRE ABRITETTERBRER
is written-off. The amount of outstanding receivable amount at BrmREERWERSRE  EEERME -

the end of each time bucket could then be determined until
the point the bad debt is written off.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk UTEHINERAREBRAREBEEREETENES
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using the provision FEREER M EEREER

matrix method:

As at 31 December 2023 R-E-_=5+=-A=+-—H

Age of trade receivable

g 5 RURRRR
Within 1 to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—FR —EMF ME=F BBR=fF At
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEX 3.7% 12.2% 33.7% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #REE (AREFIT) 229,513 66,837 13,353 61,925 371,628
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHI{=ZE/E1E
(AREFT) 8,559 8,173 4,502 61,925 83,159
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZ=ZF+=A=+—H
Age of trade receivable
B o5 RIERT R R
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—ERQ —EME ME=F HB=F it
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEE 4.1% 20.9% 47.8% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) #fREE(ARETT) 252,246 65,275 11,866 78,322 407,709
Less: Specific Debtors (RMB'000) i : #EEHA
(ANREFT) (135,944) (29,465) (2,633) (66,141)  (234,183)
Net carrying amount (RMB’000) REFEARETT) 116,303 35,810 9,232 12,181 173,526
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  FAHZ & 518
(ANREBTT) 4,791 7,471 4,410 12,181 28,853
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19.

F—HIEFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed certain bills
in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to

receivable accepted by banks

settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB64,975,000. The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to nine months at
the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group
if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills was equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
were not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from
the Continuing Involvement, both during the year and
cumulatively. The endorsement had been made evenly

throughout the year.

There was no Derecognised Bill during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20.

OTHER ASSETS

RANEFIE HitBEWREARE M EE

2023 2022
—E-= —E_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T
Prepayments TE A 5RIE 327,446 418,305
Deposits and other receivables e K& H b fE W EKIE 265,139 275,867
Tax recoverable A] Uy [2] 7 18 16,618 9,731
609,203 703,903
Impairment allowance Ve RERE L] (36,615) (24,801)
572,588 679,102

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BeREMEBUGREREBERHEEZESHOT

deposits and other receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

—E_=F —E-F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

M 7 AR T AREET T

At 1 January ®n—A—H 24,801 163,686
Impairment losses recognised B ERBEEE 6 11,814 2,184
Amount written off as uncollectible i 8E A AR B & 58 — (141,069)
At 31 December B+ZA=+—8H 36,615 24,801

Based on management’s experience and best estimation,
other receivables grouped by nature as at each reporting
date have been separately assumed in the assessment of the
ECLs on other receivables.

The financial assets included in the above balance were
categorised in stage 1 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
Except for the default receivables, the Group estimated that
the expected credit loss rate of other receivables is minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERBEEEBYURBCIEBRRZ R
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK IRITH
BALANCES
2023 2022
—E-=F =~
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B = AR¥TT ARETT

Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4 6 32,191 16,128
Pledged and restricted bank balances B R REIRT
Fe 23 5,730 14,920
37,921 31,048
Less: S
Pledged and restricted bank B R 2RI ER 1T
balances — current @Eer — BE
— Restricted cash — XRHHRe (a) (3,514) (12,117)
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes — BRIRITHEH EE
2 (2,200) (2,800)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — BERKEER (16) (3)
(5,730) (14,920)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAEEHED (b) 32,191 16,128

SE RS KIRRRARMEERERAT 225



OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales
proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for the
construction of the related properties. The deposits can only be
used for purchases of construction materials and payments of
construction fees for the relevant property projects. As at
31 December 2023, such guarantee deposits amounted to
approximately RMB984,000 (2022: RMB12,117,000).

As at 31
equivalents denominated in US$ amounted to approximately
RMB1,051,000 (2022: RMB4,534,000) and denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately RMB30,627,000 (2022:
RMB11,415,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange

December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. EFRENRAREMNRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RBEMKR BRIEEHEAHPAENE SFEMNER
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RENZBEERRTHET
follows:
2023 2022
== —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Trade payables B OREMNER
Within 90 days 90H A 627,595 372,595
91 to 180 days 91H=2180H 55,490 51,645
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 64,566 35,803
1 to 2 years 1FZR2F 35,642 44,972
2 to 3 years 2FEIF 31,463 33,622
Over 3 years 3FLAE 68,786 66,548
883,542 605,185
Bills payable S R I& 59,051 30,884
942,593 636,069
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BORNERATHE B—RER—FAX
settled within a year. The maturity dates of all the bills 7o PR B R T\IT 365 B A FH -

payable are within 365 days.
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MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HtEAFRERETER
2023 2022
=—Z:=-= -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 AR® T AREET T

Deposits received [REE &R (a) 12,606 59,434

Other payables H th fE K08 (b) 373,132 503,012

Payroll payables JE 1< 5 EM 30,558 23,074

Accruals and other liabilities EEERREMEE 171,842 216,061

Other tax payables HhEHiia 13,476 36,745

601,614 838,326

Notes: P E -

(@) Receipt in advance from disposal of non-current assets (@) RZZEZ=ZF+-A=+—HHEELEAFED
classified as held for sale of approximately RMB41,378,000 EZIERBEEBWRIBL A AR 41,378,000
was included in the carrying amount of deposited received as TEAB KRS 2 BREE -
at 31 December 2022.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (b) EMENFEATHERTHHRAME=EA -
term of two to three months.

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, EHNEE
Details of contract liabilities at the end of the reporting period AREHR  GHEEFHBOT -
are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR AREET T
Short-term advances received from customers CW&EFHEHEMNRK
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes ®iE R HEHFEEZIE N
and the provision of related manufacturing 12 (AR R B S R TS
services 439,159 262,514
Sale of properties SHE W 303,625 441,741
Total contract liabilities EHaEEEE 742,784 704,255

-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contract liabilities include sales proceeds

buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of steel pipes

and properties.

received from

WCER Y 35 & PSR IR ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 24, SHEE @@
Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAEGHNBEZEFHNT
2023 2022
—EBE-=HF —=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBEF T
At 1 January ®n—A—H 704,255 1,351,558
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract AFVENBEZ
liabilities at the beginning of the year BRERBA (366,189) (769,769)
Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts EUER & E B E N
recognised as revenue during the year (TEREFREERE
WAZ &%) 404,718 122,466
At 31 December W+—ZA=+—8H 742,784 704,255
25. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES 25. ERESFREE
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-CF
Principal at  Contractual Principal at ~ Contractual
original interest original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  per annum Maturity RMB’000 ‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000
RE% RE%
AEHE BHERNR%) H#A AR%TR KEHE ANFHE%) H#E  ARETRL
Current RE
2017 Bonds A —T-tF US$0.25 7.0 2023 1,867 US$1.1 7.0 2023 7,615
EHA 0.25%7 —B-=& 11ET “E-=F
2020 Notes 2% HK$61 12.0 2023 55,280 HK$80 12.0 2023 71,462
Z 6178 —EBC=F 80T —TC-=F
2022 Bonds A —T--F N/A N/A N/A = HK$1 6.0 2023 893
EHA TER TER TER 1757 —E-=F
2022 Bonds B —Z--F HK$2 8.0 2025 1,812 HK$2 6.0 2023 1,787
5B 28T —E-Rf 28T ZZZ=F
2022 Bonds C —EoCF HK$3 8.0 2024 2,719 HK$3 6.0 2023 2,680
E#C 3BT “E-lmE 3BT —E-F
2022 Bonds D —T--F N/A N/A N/A = HK$1 6.0 2023 893
&#D TER TER TER 1757 —E-=F
61,678 85,330
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-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

25,

F—HIEFE

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
US$3,000,000 7% bonds due in 2023 (2017 Bonds A)

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$3,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2017
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by 28 April
2020 but the expiry date could be extended to 30 June 2022
and further extended to 31 March 2023 and 30 September
2023 by the Company and the investor. The bonds bear
interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 7% per annum,
payable semiannually in arrears commencing on 28 October
2017. The bonds are unsecured. The 2017 Bonds A matured
on 30 September 2023 and was not repaid by the Company
upon the maturity date. Interest on the 2017 Bonds A
carried interest at 7% per annum was recognised in the profit
and loss of the Group and the related interests payable were
included in other payables and accruals (note 23). As at
December 2023, the Company had partially redeemed the
2017 Bonds A with a principal amount of US$2,750,000. At
the end of the reporting period, the 2017 Bonds A with the
principal amount of US$250,000 remained outstanding. The
Company had fully redeemed the 2017 Bonds A on 16
January 2024.

HK$140,000,000 12% notes due in 2023 (2020 Notes)

On 27 April 2020, the Company issued 12% notes due on
27 April 2022 but the expiry date could be extended to
30 September 2022 with a principal amount of
HK$140,000,000 to an investment fund (the “2020 Notes”).
The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum,
payable semiannually in arrears. Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, specific performance obligations are imposed on
the controlling shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the
specific performance obligations may constitute a breach
under the note purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
investment fund is entitled to redeem the 2020 Notes in
accordance with the terms and conditions. The Company and
the noteholder mutually agreed to extend the maturity date to
22 December 2023. The 2020 Notes matured on 22
December 2023 and was not repaid by the Company upon
the maturity date. Interest on the 2020 Notes carried interest
at 12% per annum was recognised in the profit and loss of
the Group and the related interests payable were included in
other payables and accruals (note 23). As at December
2023, the Company had partially redeemed the 2020 Notes
with a principal amount of HK$79,000,000. At the end of the
reporting period, the 2020 Notes with the principal amount of
HK$61,000,000 remained outstanding. Subsequent to 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Company will continue to actively negotiate with the investor
for the extension of the 2020 Notes to be repaid within two
years by instalments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

25,

F—HIEFE

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
HK$1,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds A)

On 3 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 4 January 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed

the Company issued bonds with a

coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December 2023,
the Company had fully redeemed the 2022 Bonds A.

HK$2,000,000 8% bonds due in 2025 (2022 Bonds B)

On 8 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds B”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023 but the expiry date has been extended to
9 January 2024 and further extended to 9 January 2025 by
the Company and the investor. The bonds bear interest at a

the Company issued bonds with a

fixed coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly
in arrears. From 9 January 2023, the interest rate of the
2022 Bonds B increased from 6% per annum to 8% per
annum. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$3,000,000 8% bonds due in 2024 (2022 Bonds C)

On 8 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$3,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds C”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023 but the expiry date has been extended to

the Company issued bonds with a

11 April 2024 by the Company and the investor. The bonds
bear interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 6% per
annum, payable monthly in arrears. From 9 January 2023,
the interest rate of the 2022 Bonds C increased from 6% per
annum to 8% per annum. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$1,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds D)

On 30 September 2022, the Company issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds D”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 1 October 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December 2023,
the Company had fully redeemed the 2022 Bonds D.
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_?KI:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFEBITREMBEE
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-_F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERFE (%) FHE  ARETR EBEANE%) e ARETR
Current wE
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEBE (ME15) 9.13 2024 463 251 2023 686
—E-_ME =
Bank loans RITER
— secured — BHEM 7.00 2024 489,110 3.50-5.88 2023 373,928
—E-ME TEC-=F
— unsecured — EIKH 4.70-5.44 2024 57,500 4.70-5.44 2023 59,622
—E-E —EC=F
Other borrowings Hifg &
— secured — BER 6.40-9.09 2024 71,734 N/A N/A —
—EomE g A i A
— unsecured — K 11.20 2024 202,419 11.20 2023 265,173
—E-NE i
Current portion of long term RHRATBERRD
bank loans 52
— secured — BHEM 4.90-5.39 2024 795,634 4.90-5.88 2023 181,000
—E_ME =
Subtotal NEF 1,616,860 880,409
Non-current ¥R 8
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEBRE (ME15) 9.13 2026 532 251 2024 36
—ECRE —E-NE
Bank loans RITER
— secured — HEH 4.90-5.39  2025-2028 126,000 4.90-5.88  2024-2028 810,203
—EC-RE —ECE
E-E-N\F EZTNF
Other borrowings HEMEE
— secured — AR 6.40-9.09 2025 27,284 N/A N/A —
—EBC-RE i A i A
Subtotal P 153,816 810,239
1,770,676 1,690,648

232 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ip E E R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFERITREMEE @)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

2023 2022
—EC=E —_=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Analysed into: BT A

Bank loans repayable: AR THREEMRITER
Within one year —FR 1,342,244 614,550
In the second year F_F 4,000 680,203

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF

(BPEEEME) 12,000 —
Beyond five years iR hE 110,000 130,000
1,468,244 1,424,753

Other borrowings repayable: ARATHREENEMES :
Within one year —F R 274,153 265,173
In the second year F_F 27,284 —
301,437 265,173

Lease liabilities repayable: ARATHREENHEHERRE
Within one year —FR 463 686
In the second year BF_F 532 36
995 722
1,770,676 1,690,648
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e B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFEBITRAEMEER @

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: REBEETHRITERB TS EERER

(a) the pledge of certain of the Group’s property, plant and (a) HEHAEERBMERREEFENAAR
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately #696,393,000L (=T = =F : AR¥
RMB696,393,000 (2022: RMB598,109,000) as at the 598,109,0007T) BU&E TH% ~ MmNk
end of the reporting period;

(b) the pledge of certain of the Group’s leasehold land with (o) ERAFEERBERAREDFENAAR
a net carrying amount of approximately #481,645,000L (ZE = —F : ARK
RMB481,645,000 (2022: RMB489,399,000) as at the 489,399,0007T) K& THE L
end of the reporting period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s completed properties (c) HEWEAEERBERRSTENARARKE
held for sale amounting to approximately 1,002,989,000t (ZFE = =F : AR
RMB1,002,989,000 (2022: RMB913,698,000) as at the 913,698,0007T) M) TIAAIFEMEE -
end of the reporting period.

Except for the other borrowings of approximately RMB2,950,000 RZZBZ=F+ZA=+—8 ~X5EKRHEME

(2022: RMB2,494,000) as at 31 December 2023, which are EXHARBE2950,000m(ZE-—F: AR¥

denominated in HKS$, the borrowings of the Group are 2,494,0007T) LAVETTIIMESN - 2EEEHUAR

denominated in RMB. ¥EDIME -

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities: RNEEE T HKRIBIRITEE

2023 2022

== —F-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT

Floating rate A B

— expiring within one year — —FREH 103,290 975,052

— expiring beyond one year — —F1& 58 738,366 714,797

Total undrawn banking facilities RIBIIRTTRLE 258 (a) 841,656 1,689,849
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FTE4R Ht &8 ()

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: MeE -

(a)  Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn @ BEBHEEGYN AXEELBEHNAARE
banking facilities of approximately RMB708,366,000 (2022: 708,366,0007C (—Z = —F : AR¥681,797,000
RMB681,797,000) can only be used for property development T ZETARERRITREETARMERRE
projects and are repayable based on the pre-sale progress of B UWIREBMEZTEESEEHEE -

such properties.

27. PROVISION 27. BB
2023 2022
== —F-—

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

b 5 AR®T R AREEF T
Legal proceedings: SRR
At 1 January n—A—H 49,283 30,488
Provision for the year REFERAE 6 4,536 18,795
Utilised during the year FASHA (3,855) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 49,964 49,283
Certain subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in lawsuits AEBETHBARAE = FIRENFLRZE
brought by third parties alleging that the subsidiaries EH RE=HEBZENBRARERRIETE
breached and repudiated certain purchase and construction THEERBZEELN - ZRRAFAEMEETA]
contracts. The claims are subject to the legal arbitration and RERTEHER_Z_=F8FF HE-T=-_=
are expected to be finalised in 2024. During the year ended F+ZA=Z+—RHLEFE  BREEEHTNES
31 December 2023, a provision of approximately AR BEREBEETEROHARE4,536,0007T
RMB4,536,000 (2022: RMB18,795,000) (including related (ZZF=——F : AR®18,795,0007T) (& IEIEEF
interest) was recognised in profit or loss based on directors’ BB -

estimation of the expected probable outcome.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax liabilities

28. EIEHIIE
FEIEHIESE

Changes in/
realisation of
fair value of  Accelerated

GDC tax  Withholding
properties®  depreciation tax Total
SEBWE
AN
B BH MEFERE BB Hat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_#F—HF—H 342,949 4,364 2,265 349,578
Deferred tax credited to the FARGEBERITA
consolidated statement of profit B IR IE #5118
or loss during the year (55,289) — — (55,289)
At 31 December 2022 and R-E-—F
1 January 2023 +ZR=+—8K
—ET-=#—fF—H 287,660 4,364 2,265 294,289
Deferred tax credited to the FARGREBERITA
consolidated statement of profit AR E R I8
or loss during the year (110,519) = = (110,519)
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=%F
+=-A=+—H 177,141 4,364 2,265 183,770

*

© SRENEBIRANE  BEFNERERS

development and completed properties held for sale. LEX

GDC properties include investment properties, properties under

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% (or a lower rate if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

236 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

RIBHBEIDEMETE - R0 BIRERZ SN
BREMBIMYEETIRIE - ZABAN10% (i
o B A3 B2 51 B 9% B TR BARE [ B TR A R4V
REBERE) BIOH - HRER—FTNE—A
—HAER WEAR -_ZTZTLFT _HA=1+—H
BEREREZ R - F it - AR E AL B KBERK L
ZREWNBRAMR-_ZBENF-—A—HRELEZ
BN DR BB AIBI o

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. EFEBIIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEHRIBEE (H)
Since 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by the A-E——F8 A5EREREZNENRZ
Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the EQ%W B R a2 RIE BT 2 FE SN TR E
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject to RELERIE AAEEERAZSEMBARTK
withholding taxes as management considered that it is not AJRETEF] R AR R D IR AERI & A -
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute any earnings in
the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEEE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had tax losses arising in RZFEZ=F+ZA=+—H Xx5EHER %Cf%
Hong Kong of approximately RMB641,251,000 (2022: EEMIBEENARKEE41,251,000 (===
RMB442,276,000), which are available indefinitely for F: AR ¥442,276,0007T)  ZSHIEEET
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in EERHAAFEEFEHRBEN QN RRERY
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses wmH e AEBITARFPRAMEEREEED
arising in Mainland China of approximately RMB280,150,000 AR #280,150,000(Z T = =F : AR¥
(2022: RMB1,708,331,000) that will expire in one to five years 1,708,331,0007T) * R —ERF AN EH - DK
for offsetting against future taxable profits. No deferred tax HARRERN &N NR_T_=FR_Z 77&
assets were recognised in respect of the tax losses of the +TZA=+—0  AEEHERTIEBERRE
Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. EFEHEE -
29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BUAT#HEBL
2023 2022
== —F-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR ARBTT
At 1 January n—A—A 102,593 330,207
Grants received during the year G A 7 % G 50,858 4,022
Recognised as income during the year FAERBEA 5 (6,663) (231,636)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 146,788 102,593

REE BT R - PASE Bl AR R 3R
Tt BREERERMERRENER - ZFHA
BEM B RERGERIASEE  CEARFEMRE
RRWA - 2 Pl AR HREERRET -

Government grants have been received as encouragement for
technological innovation and improvements, the construction
of production plants and rewards for investment
encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attaching to these grants that have been
recognised as income during the year. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been

completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. EBRTRAE
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Authorised: JATE
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0007%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (===
10,000,000,000/%)
SREE0E L LR 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,011,142,000 (2022: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (===
1,011,142,000 %)
FREEI0E Ty EiBR 88,856 88,856

31. RESERVES 31.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

e
AEENARERE R EFEOEESERE
IR BBE 2 GABSEEHERA -

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial

statements.
32. NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD 32. DPEARELHEZERBEE
FOR SALE
On 26 April 2022, PCKSP, an indirect wholly-owned RZZBZZFWHAZ+RA  ARRzEEEE

subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with the joint venture partner, Abdel Hadi Abdullah
Al Qahtani & Sons, Co. (the “AHQ”), pursuant to which AHQ
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and PCKSP had
conditionally agreed to sell, the 50% equity interest in the JV
Company. The consideration paid by AHQ was SR41.5 million
(or equivalent to approximately RMB76,053,000 of which
approximately RMB41,378,000 (note 23) received in

year). After Completion,

last
the Group ceased to hold any
interests in the JV Company. Investment in a joint venture
was classified as non-current asset classified as held for sale

as at 31 December 2022.

The transaction for disposal of investment in the JV Company
had been completed during the year as all conditions fulfilled
and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of investment in
a joint venture of approximately RMB73,790,000, after

deducting costs of disposal of approximately RMB2,263,000.

238 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

B8 A R EE BRI E B4 & A A A 2 AAbdel
Hadi Abdullah Al Qahtani & Sons,
Co.([AHQD) TS & Wik - Bk - AHQB K14
WRERE MEEHKIMEFKGHRAZELE
A& NRINI50%AHE - AHQEN ZREADEE
241,500,000 (KBEERNARE
76,053,0007T + H # 49 A R %41,378,0007T (Ff
FE23) BER EFUWED - RFTE - REBTBER
BAERRMNAE R R —F+-f=
+—H R—EAEREZREEDEARFED
EZIERBEE o

HRATAERKEHEERR MEER—BEE AR
ZREZZGERFRTK  MASEEERALE
R—EEERFHRE 2 a4 AR E73,790,000
T (0B H B R AR 4 A R #2,263,0007T)

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% Rk MY &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. ZEBRERERME
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing () RMEEZBHELEZEEEH
activities
Bank and
other
borrowings
BE-_Z-_=% (other than Fixed rate
+=H=+-—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2023 IF&FE liabilities liabilities) notes director
RITRHE A
BE(HEAE EEEF
HEAE BR4M) REE BEAESERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T T AR¥T T AR¥TR AR¥BTR
At 1 January 2023 i
—H—H 722 1,689,926 85,330 390,195
Changes from financing cash MEBRERE
flows ) (661) 79,689 (24,723) (325,842)
Lease modification MEEET 937 — — —
Interest expense FMEFREZ 52 — — —
Interest paid classified as NEREERS
operating cash flows mEZBR
ME (52) — — —
Foreign exchange movement 4N B (3) 66 1,071 —
At 31 December 2023 RNZZE-Z=%F
+=—A=+—H 995 1,769,681 61,678 64,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 %

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33.
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

=—F—

*=—=

=F+TZA=t+—HIEFE

FERERERMTE B

(a) METDELEZEEEE (@)

Bank and
other
borrowings
He-Z—_— (other than Fixed rate
+ZA=+—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2022 |FF[E liabilities liabilities) notes director
RAT R EH A
BE(HERE EEER
HEAE BRAM) REE RENEZIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 R-E——
—H—H 325 1,720,974 88,930 449,111
Changes from financing cash MERSRE
flows s (934) (31,229) (13,437) (58,916)
New leases A E 1,286 — — —
Interest expense FERXE 57 — — —
Interest paid classified as DEAKERS
operating cash flows mEZ B
ME (57) — — —
Foreign exchange movement SN 5 45 181 9,837 —
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—F
+=—A=+—H 722 1,689,926 85,330 390,195
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. ZEBEREBRMTE @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERESRHALE
The total cash outflow for leases during the reporting RmEHEFTAGEREeRER2HER
period included in the consolidated statement of cash M AENT

flows is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within operating activities B E B (52) (57)
Within investing activities & & & = —
Within financing activities B & & & (661) (934)
(713) (991)
34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 34. BIHER
The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher MBEREQODEEREEEEREHMETRER
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less SHEBEERZZFRACEZRBEETA
the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL 2 -EHEEBEREDRBMGITREERBA
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, FEAEEBENEFNERAEEEGN A ED
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse the ABHER BB ERETE YIBERS
holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that BIER VIR B EREN A TE -

the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The amount
initially recognised represents the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees.

At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees not REEIR - M mERPARBE 2 HBEERET
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities provided FtIZIBENE AAREE Y
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties & TERREMNER 27,430 36,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=

34.

F—HIEFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, in the event of default on mortgage payments by
these purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any
auction proceeds as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, and in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the
legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through
open auction. The Group is responsible for repaying the
banks when the proceeds from the auction of the properties
cannot cover the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the date of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance of
real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the
directors of the Company consider that in the event of default
realisable value of the related

on payments, the net

properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and
penalties, and therefore, no provision has been made in the

financial statements for the guarantees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
35. COMMITMENTS 35. FEiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RB|EIR  REEFUAFERAE

of the reporting period:

2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Construction of buildings EEEF 80,885 105,157
Construction of plant and machinery B 7 R S Mo B3 30,230 35,047
111,115 140,204
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have RIRE IR AR 7)) H fth 8 KA -
any other significant commitments.
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BBARS
(a) Name and relationship of related parties (a) BABEL EWMRER
The directors of the Company are of the view that the RAREERBATAG BT

following companies are related parties:

Name of related parties Relationship
BEE AR RES

Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works GZMT is a company of which Mr Chen Chang is the
Co., Ltd. ultimate equity owner

BT IOTHKBE R A A WIRAKTIHREEERREBREREAZAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BB ARS (@)
(b) Transaction with related parties (b) EEEEEEGS 2R B
The Group had no transactions with related parties REEZZ-=F+=-A=+—HLFE
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). REBMERAE TS (ZF2F @) -
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEAEEAS z4EtR
Outstanding balance at the end of the reporting period RBERARERARFTNES AN &%
with a director of the Company is as follows: R
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Due to a director JETE B FRIE
Mr Chen Chang =P e 64,353 390,195
The outstanding balance with a director is unsecured, HERENAINERDEER 2281
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. & F B RRER o
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) FAXEEFZTZEBRAENTMOT :

Group during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
—E=-= =~

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #&  F&  EZB N EWREF 3,599 3,566
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFT B 5 92 89

Total compensation paid to key management XX ZEE A 8 FE@%

personnel 3,691 3,655
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMENE—PHFBRARTBHRE W
note 9 to the financial statements. F9 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & =2 T - =F+_A=+—HILtFE
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. eWMIENDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R|ERAR SHEAEMITAOEEBENT !
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets SREE
2023 2022
—EB-=F g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFIT
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHEKR AT ENEREE
Financial assets included in long term AARBEBEBNFEREZESHN
prepayments and deposits ERMEE 2,778 2,848
Trade and bills receivables B 5 BRI E W R R 311,953 378,856
Financial assets included in prepayments, other FTATERRIA - HAibEWEIE
receivables and other assets LEMEENERMEE 228,524 251,066
Pledged deposits EEMZE 5,730 14,920
Cash and cash equivalents BehAEEEY 32,191 16,128
581,176 663,818
Financial liabilities cHas
2023 2022
=—T—_= =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEHK AT ENEREE
Trade and bills payables B O RNERRENER 942,593 636,069
Lease liabilities HEBE 995 722
Financial liabilities included in other payables and AT AE AL R FRIE K
accruals EsrERAMESRasE 544,974 719,073
Due to a director BT EFEHE 64,353 390,195
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ERITRAMEE
(other than lease liabilities) (HE B ERIN 1,769,681 1,689,926
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEEAEREER 61,678 85,330
3,384,274 3,521,315

T SEEEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. TRMIBAZAFERAFERER

REREEEREAFEREMEENERIAN K
SEeRMTANE@ERLRFERT

Carrying amounts Fair value
REE AFE
2023 2022 2023 2022
s = = === —_F-_—
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT AR®T R AR¥ETTT
Financial liabilities: EHBE:
Interest-bearing bank and AFERITREMER
other borrowings (other (HEA AR
than lease liabilities) 1,769,681 1,689,926 1,707,908 1,727,178
Fixed rate bonds and EEEFLRER
notes 61,678 85,330 61,678 85,330
1,831,359 1,775,256 1,769,586 1,812,508

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and

cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and an amount due to a director approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities

of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

—ZE=

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in
fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed
rate bonds and notes as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
were assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
these financial instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December

2023 and 2022.

The fair value of warrants was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2022: Nil).

SEFEERE

38.

ERMITECZAFERAFEER @

HERITREMEEREEBFRERBZAT
B DGR EERBRHBTEHREUZTA
WEFATIEITIRE - RBHATRS RAE -
RZBEZ=FRZT-__F+ZA=+—H ' K
SERFERITREMEERTESELFRERZ
BEETRBTREBRER ATFEEZSHIEATE
R RZEBZ=FR-_E__FF+_A=+—
B ZEREBHEHKAARZSMTAZRmMEHR
HAFETHEERER -

REEFNAFETIREL AR —AARE
T - W B B AHE E A IRK R R IR o

DNEEEH
AZE-ZF+-_A=+—H AEBTETM
BEAFENAEZCMEE(ZSE-__F 1 &) -

R-ZZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 AEETETW
EAFEFEZSHAEB(ZE_F &) -

FA F—REE_LoHBEEEEREER
SRHEBEZAFENEER  NEEAZ=HN
BE=ZfEN (T _F &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. ERMITAZAFERAFEER @

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

DNFEER @
BRATFERENEE

Fair value measurement using

EATIZRETAFETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB S EXTEE BEAFITEE

PR E A% W AE W AE

(B—%) (B=#) (B=#) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT ARBETTT ARETT ARETT

2023 —E-=HF
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEES

other borrowings (other (HEAaR’RIN

than lease liabilities) = 1,707,908 = 1,707,908
Fixed rate bonds and notes EBE5NZE — 61,678 — 61,678
2022 T
Interest-bearing bank and ATERITREMEE

other borrowings (other (HEAa’RKRIN

than lease liabilities) — 1,727,178 — 1,727,178
Fixed rate bonds and notes B EHMEE — 85,330 — 85,330
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=-Z=-=F+=A

39.

=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include bank and
other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group also has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces prudent
strategies on its risk management. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks

and they are summarised below:

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to

the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest
rate of bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated operating results would
have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB12,559,000 (2022: RMB11,700,000),
would have been no impact on other components of the

and there

consolidated equity, except for accumulated losses, of
the Group.

T =FFERE

39.
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-:EN:OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE =T -_=F+-A=+—HILFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MXREKREEBEREXK (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) SR
The Group has transactional currency exposures. These REBEBRZEBRAR - ZERABKE
exposures arise from sales by operating units in REBMABUMNNEEE LI EEE
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. ITHVHE - REBIHERH52% (T =
Approximately 52% (2022: 24%) of the Group’s sales F:24%) FZLVEITHENKE BN
were mainly denominated in United States (“US”) BRI BT ([ET))EHE -
dollars, which is other than the functional currencies of
the operating units making the sale.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies RBEMRRNEEUIINEAENEEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at LEBaEMNREERT
the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
—EBE-=HF —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBEF T
Assets BE
US dollar e 27,764 83,965
Liabilities afE
US dollar E7T 309,420 164,707
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at TR P RS HA RS S BB B AT i FIE
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible FIBEEMmEERFTIEBERTHNETE
change in the US dollar exchange rate, with all other EHWEBAEEHNRRE
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax.
Effect on profit before tax BIBRB AT & E
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% ZETTIE R I13% (8,449) (2,422)
Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% FETTE R A 3% 8,449 2,422
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the

specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

T SEEEHE

39. IBKEBREEEEREE @)

(c)

FERR

AEEEEERTREBRIEFZFE=7E
TRG - AKRBZBRERABRIAEES
NETRF 2 EFPHABBEENZEFF -
BESN - BUGRIRESRERFEEEM AR
EeiERERI NEKX - BT AEEEE
BUMNMEEBHENRSIME A&H
EREFREEZIERFHNBR T REHR

EEH-
REEBRFAER

TRETREAEEEERK (E2ERA
HER - BRIFHAREBERASE L
ARGEMER MEEEREEREER
B UER+T A=+ —HBENFREERD

FEIHNeRReMEENREAENRS
BB EREANFAENEERR -
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‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B Rk MY R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MIBEAKRERBZERBUER (&
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERB (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEBERFERER (&
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2023 R=-B-=%+=-RA=+-—H
Lifetime ECLs
12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
12 AHEE 2HAEHEE
BEE—RKR EE{LE @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T
Financial assets included in FFARMBNREREZS
long term prepayments and LEMEE
deposits 2,778 — 2,778
Trade receivables Z 5 MR (i) - 371,628 371,628
Bills receivable e - 23,484 23,484
Financial assets included in & ATERTFIE - EA e
prepayments, other REREMEE 2SR/
receivables and other EE— %
assets — Normal (i) 265,139 — 265,139
Pledged deposits — Not yet B #FiRE — HMR@E
past due 5,730 = 5,730
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY
— Not yet past due — AR 32,191 — 32,191
Guarantees in respect of HETAEENERES
mortgage facilities provided REZEBRERE
for certain purchasers of the E R
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — ETAEEYE
certain purchasers BEEDRD
of the Group’s ME
properties 27,430 — 27,430
333,268 395,112 728,380
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B 765 3 7% B =
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MR EEEERBUR (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERB (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEEBERFERER (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+—-_A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
12 ATBHEE 2 HEHEE
EEE-RER EEEE et
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARETT ARETT AR®T T
Financial assets included in FFARMBNREREZS
long term prepayments and LEMEE
deposits 2,848 — 2,848
Trade receivables B 5 FEWER (i) — 407,709 407,709
Financial assets included in STATERFRIE - Hith fEUL
prepayments, other REREMBEE S/
receivables and other BE —IE8
assets — Normal (i) 275,867 — 275,867
Pledged deposits — Not yet ~ Bik#Re — W@
past due 14,920 — 14,920
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBReEEY
— Not yet past due — A ARE 16,128 — 16,128
Guarantees in respect of BRETAEEMERES
mortgage facilities provided hefit 2 RiB R A R4
for certain purchasers of the R
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — ETAREEYME
certain purchasers BEEHEBIRDZ
of the Group’s ME
properties 36,887 — 36,887
346,650 407,709 754,359
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B8 3R % B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
provision matrix is disclosed in note 19.

(ii) The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of
sufficient funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of
bank and other borrowings with debt maturities
spreading over a range of periods, thereby ensuring
that the Group’s outstanding borrowing obligation is not
exposed to excessive repayment risk in any one year.
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
businesses, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=-Z=-=F+=A

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MXREKREEBEREXK (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) RBESEMR (E)
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its REBMRBDESETEMRBEEBERSR
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from MRS MANERNIHENEE - AKRE
operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, BHIRESBNEAEAENERNFE A
and its ability to obtain external financing to meet its ﬁ 77 o R NEE [ A 18 B AN A AN H th Bl
committed future capital expenditure. With regard to its EFRE RZIEZ=F+=ZHA=+—8"
future capital commitments and other financing $ SEERNBSEZRBITREEHNDARE
requirements, the Group has already obtained banking 2,365,190,000 T A RITEE  HRFHOAR
facilities with several banks of up to an amount of #1,523,534,000 T E W o
approximately RMB2,365,190,000 as at 31 December
2023, of which an amount of approximately
RMB1,523,534,000 has been utilised.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as RI|EBR  NEBERSITHORTRA
at the end of the reporting period, based on the PR RBENIEBBRAT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2023
—B-_=%+=-A=+-—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RER DPR—F —FLE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET R ARBTR ARET R
Trade and bills payables 2 5 RENERR
ENEE = 942,593 = 942,593
Other payables H b FE T FUE — 544,974 — 544,974
Due to a director NS 64,353 — — 64,353
Lease liabilities HEAR = 542 560 1,102
Interest-bearing bank and other &t 2317 R H A
borrowings (excluding lease 1‘“5 (T EE
liabilities) E8E) = 1,685,222 184,462 1,869,684
Fixed rate bonds and notes i%%%&ﬁﬂ%‘? — 76,002 — 76,002
64,353 3,249,333 185,022 3,498,708
Financial guarantees issued: BELZBEER:
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERSE 27,430 — — 27,430
SEEEERE WIAMAARMEZRERAT 255
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B8 3R % B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_A=+—HIEFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30. BIKRREEREBZERBEE @
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBEZ R ()
31 December 2022
—E__F+ZA=+—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
REX DR —F —FUE HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBT T ARBET T ARBT T

Trade and bills payables BIRNERR
AL — 636,069 — 636,069
Other payables H &5 FRIE — 719,073 — 719,073
Due to a director ENEERIA 390,195 — — 390,195
Lease liabilities HEBRE — 707 36 743
Interest-bearing bank and other &t 23877 R H A
borrowings (excluding lease BE (TR
liabilities) HEAR) — 940,107 848,394 1,788,501
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFLRER — 95,045 — 95,045
390,195 2,391,001 848,430 3,629,626
Financial guarantees issued: BEHZEEER:
Maximum amount guaranteed &S ERLHE 36,887 — — 36,887
(e) Capital management (e) EBEXRER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEFBEAERN T ZARRERAEE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BELENEIRBRERN LR UXE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy HEBWFRREBERAL -
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEENAEEEBELXRERFER  Zik
is total debts divided by total assets. Total debts ERBEBHRINAEE - BEBEEFE
include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and RITRHMEBEEREEEFRER R
fixed rate bonds and notes. The gearing ratio as at T =F+ZA=t+—HEEGGBELEAR
31 December 2023 was 28.5% (2022: 27.1%). 285%(ZFE-—F :271%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AR\ z iR &
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the ZIN

N

RAIRMERR 2 BARARERDT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—ZE=

2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 49,591 49,591
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 49,591 49,591
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments TERT IR 213 210
Due from subsidiaries JrE U B B X B 3R IE 206,336 285,928
Cash and bank balances R& MIRITH 57 17
Total current assets mEEELE 206,606 286,155
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBasd
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITRAEMEE 2,969 2,497
Other payables and accruals L FE S FRIE R EET
ZH 4,813 2,512
Due to subsidiaries XS NGIE S 70,610 69,601
Fixed rate bonds and notes TFEEHFLERE 61,678 85,330
Total current liabilities e B EETE 140,070 159,940
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 66,536 126,215
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHERARBERE 116,127 175,806
Net assets BEFE 116,127 175,806
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) i (fsE) 27,271 86,950
Total equity 4B R 116,127 175,806
SEEERE BIRmARRESERARAT 257



For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE T _=F+-_A=+—HAILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

40. AR T Z AR R T @)

Note: M3t -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAZHEBRENOT -
Exchange
Share Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
R =EE BB ZitEE EXREHEE s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBFT AREF T ARBTTT ARBF T
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT=——4F
+=A=+-8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,420,456) (43,222) 73,272
Total comprehensive income A4 &2 EIRESE
for the year — — 3,137 10,541 13,678
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F
+=-—A=+—H 824,219 1,712,731 (2,417,319) (32,681) 86,950
Total comprehensive income/ AT E2EWE,
(loss) for the year (B18) %8 = = (61,100) 1,421 (59,679)
At 31 December 2023 —E =4
+=A=+—8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,478,419) (31,260) 27,271

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEMBHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis
set out in the note below is as follows:

MBERBE

AEER T XM EME R EEREE E R EMBRFER
ERAMEENEERBBEHRENT

Results E4
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g-= —E-— —E-—% CZT-TE —T-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Revenue L'ON 2,650,852 2,362,015 1,813,370 1,141,807 1,193,961
Cost of sales and services S B BR RS A A (2,096,642)  (1,891,392) (1,617,854)  (935120)  (981,769)
Gross profit EH 554,210 470,623 195,516 206,687 212,192
Other income and gains Hp A Rz 15,979 238,743 1,580,778 1,911,272 441,747
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHHAX (65,500) (55,062) (52,906) (34,808) (55,821)
Administrative expenses ARER (270,059)  (245.826)  (263,635)  (287,638)  (336,042)
Other expenses Ei %R (187,899)  (209,786)  (376,014)  (300,702) (69,388)
Exchange gain/(loss), net fE X Wz (B518) -
FRE 15,106 16,416 (33,476) (120,098) 23,528
Finance costs BERA (94,548) (44,643)  (144253)  (475384)  (450,058)
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BELREZ
equipment A = — (596,765) — —
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment — &MEZ ATE
properties (B518), Wz (2,000) (8,000) (17,000) (20,000) 78,008
Fair value gain on a derivative TESRIAZATE
financial instrument Wz — — — — 19,260
Share of loss of a joint venture EiE—REERAZ
&8 s — (15,020) (2,668) (18,655)
Gain on disposal of investment ina  HER—HALAR Y
joint venture RE 2 W 73,790 — — — -
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELAE R (F1R) 39,079 162,465 277,225 876,661 (155,229)
Income tax credit/(expense) Friefisme,/ (BR) 144,699 569 (371,579) (253,750) 13,140
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF(FE) 183,778 163,034 (94,354) 622,911 (142,089)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ ENMBRRIBERLMDS
income for the year, net of tax m(B18),/ s (38,642) (57,611) 63,175 178,815 (21,323)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FRZEUE/(E1E)
the year ot 145,136 105,423 (31,179) 801,726 (163,412)
Earnings/(loss) per share gRAEM/(FHR)
— basic and diluted — ERREE RMB AR¥ RMB AK¥ RMB AR¥ RMB AR¥ RMB AR
0.187% 0.167C (0.09)7% 0.627T (0.14)7¢

—Bo=EEERE
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“FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Y REMBEE
Assets and Liabilities EEHAE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+-—H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E=-= T ZE-—F ZTTF ZT-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBTIT ARBFTT ARKEFT ARETT

Non-current assets EmENE E 2,892,807 2,850,413 2,966,975 4,034,502 4,435,885
Current assets MEVE E 3,528,614 3,704,524 4,956,147 4,507,026 4,053,921
Current liabilities mEBEE (4,374,358) (3,627,690) (4,809,986) (5,457,229) (3,913,293)
Non-current liabilities R EE (970,988) (1,996,308) (2,287,620) (2,227,604) (4,521,544)
Total equity RSB 1,076,075 930,939 825,516 856,695 54,969
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